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UNITED STATES
Securities and Exchange Commission
Washington, D.C. 20549
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Title of each clas Name of each exchange on which registe
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Securities registered pursuant to section 12(ghefAct:
Common Stock, $0.01 par val

(Title of Class)

Indicate by check mark if the registrant is a welbwn seasoned issuer, as defined in Rule 405coBéturities Act. Yes _ No X
Indicate by check mark if the registrant is notuieed to file reports pursuant to Section 13 orti®acl5(d) of the Act. Yes __ No X
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PART |

ITEM 1. BUSINESS
FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

This report contains forwartboking statements within the meaning of SectioR 21 the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, and &e@irA of th
Securities Act of 1933. Any statements containgtisreport that are not statements of historifzdt may be forwardeoking statements. When we

the words “intends,” “estimates,” “predicts,” “potatial,” “continues,” “anticipates,” “plans,” “expects,” “believes,” “should,” “could,” “may,” “will”

or the negative of these terms or other comparadminology, we are identifying forward-looking &ements. Forwardeoking statements involve rit
and uncertainties, which may cause our actual tssplerformance or achievements to be materiaffigidint from those expressed or implied by forward-
looking statements. These factors include ouraedeand development activities, distributor chaspeompliance with regulatory impositions; and
capital needs. Although we believe that the expiecta reflected in the forwartboking statements are reasonable, we cannot guaeafuture result
levels of activity, performance or achievements.

Except as may be required by applicable law, wendbundertake or intend to update or revise oumfarnd-looking statements, and we assum:
obligation to update any forwarlboking statements contained in this report as suteof new information or future events or develepts. Thus, yt
should not assume that our silence over time mésatsactual events are bearing out as expresseinptied in such forwardeoking statements. Y
should carefully review and consider the variouscttisures we make in this report and our other repdiled with the Securities and Excha
Commission that attempt to advise interested paudfethe risks, uncertainties and other factorg thay affect our business.

For further information about these and other riskgertainties and factors, please review thelasce included in this report unddedrt I, Item 1A
Risk Factors.”

General

The Company (Chembio Diagnostics, Inc. and its WhoWned subsidiary Chembio Diagnostic Systems, Ine.callectively referred to herein as
“Company”) develops, manufactures, markets anch$ies rapid point-of-care diagnostic tests (POCHa) tletect infectious diseases. The Company’
main products presently commercially available fatg rapid tests for the detection of HIV antibaiéwo rapid tests for the detection of syphilisd a
rapid test for the detection of canine leishmasiaShree of the HIV rapid tests employ in-licensedl proprietary lateral flow technologies (s€suf
Rapid Test Technologies"§an be used with all blood matrices as samples,aamananufactured in a standard cassette forndipssick format, and
proprietary barrel format. The tests employing¢hssette and proprietary barrel formats were aggrtsy the FDA in 2006 and are exclusively distrdz

by Alere, Inc. (“Alere”)in the United States and by Chembio outside thdddn$tates. Our fourth rapid HIV test, as welloas syphilis and canil
leishmaniasis tests have been developed on ountpdt®ual Path Platform (DPP®), does not requirkcensing. The DPP®IIV test, detects antibodi

to HIV in oral fluid samples as well as in all btbaatrices. We anticipate completing United St&B#\ regulatory submissions for this product, wi
we anticipate launching under Chembio’s brand,0h3

Our new product pipeline is based on this DPfe@hnology for which we were issued a United Statent in 2007 and for which additional pa
protection has issued or is pending worldwide. Wfite DPP® proprietary platform, we can participat¢he point-ofeare market segment of the ne
$40 billion global in-vitro diagnostic market thatestimated to be $8-billion with an overall growth rate of 7% per amm. POCTS, by providing prom
and early diagnosis, can reduce patient stays,rlowerall costs, improve therapeutic interventiang improve patient outcomes as a result of prang
early diagnosis. They can also prevent needlesgitab admissions, simplify testing procedures,iddelays from central lab batching, and elimirthi
need for return visits.

In the areas of infectious and sexually transmittsgtases (such as HIV and syphilis for exampled,utility of a rapid point—o€are test particularly
identifying patients unaware of their disease stdtas been well established. Large and growindketshave been established for these kinds of,
initially in high prevalence regions where they aréispensable for large scale prevention andrireat programs. More recently introduced in the &h
States in 2004, rapid HIV tests now also presesigaificant segment of the U.S. market for HIV @l testing, which is still dominated by laboraf
tests. We have focused our product developmentitgctvithin areas, such as these products wheesatnailability of rapid, point-oEare screenin
diagnostic, or confirmatory results can improveltieautcomes.




PRODUCTS
Lateral Flow Rapid HIV Tests

All three of our lateral flow rapid HIV tests arealitative “yes/no™tests for the detection of antibodies to HIV 1 &Rh visually interpreted results (¢
line “negative”; two lines “positive”pvailable within approximately 15 minutes. Thettemre simple to use, have a shelf life of 24 menémd do nc
require refrigeration. The tests differ principatiply in the method of test procedure, conveniearog cost. One of our FDApproved lateral flow HI
tests incorporates a proprietary plastic “bariddvice that houses the lateral flow strip. Thisrédaformat enables collection of samples direcfyr
example directly from a finger-stick whole bloodrgale) into the barre$ capillary tip. A sealed unitized buffer vial, asthled onto the top of the barre
removed and seated into a stand; the seal is tieeoep by the barrel’s capillary tip, thereby iatthg the upward flow of the resulting sampleffer
solution through a filter, up into the vertical ds/s chamber and onto the lateral flow strip. Thisitssin a unique unitized and closed device systen
can reduce the chance of exposure to potentidigciious samples. We believe that this format fpeyan ideal candidate as an overtbenter HIV tes
and we are participating in certain studies thausth help to better ascertain this. Our other F&pproved lateral flow HIV test uses a more conaa
rectangular plastic cassette format that housesatkeal flow strip. In this case, a sample is\gferred by use of a separately provided transéeice
(“loop”) into a sample well or port of the cassdtiat houses the lateral flow strip, which is posied horizontally or flat.

Both of the above-described products are marketetligively in the United States by Alere as Cleamw® Complete HIV 1/2 (the barrel format) ¢
Clearview® HIV 1/2 STAT PAK® (the cassette formaijnd by Chembio in all other markets as Chembi@ &heck®HIV 1/2 and Chembio HIV 1,
STAT PAK®. Alere has non-exclusive rights to therebproduct outside the United States.

Our third lateral flow HIV test, HIV 1/2 STAT PAK®ipstick is our most cost competitive and compacirfat. It does not have any plastic housin
that 30 test strips can be packaged into a smllitivat is ideal for transporting into remote segti. The test procedure is similar to the caséettrat; al
adhesive backing is provided as a more cost-e¥feethd compact “housing” on which to run the test.

Regulatory Status: The FDA approved our Pre-Market Applications @ieafter “PMA”; see “Governmental Regulatiorerid Glossary) in April 20(
for our SURE CHECK HIV 1/2 (and also now Alere Gldaw® Complete HIV 1/2) and for our HIV 1/2 STATAK (now Alere’ Clearview®HIV 1/2
STAT-PAK in the United States only) products. Aral Laboratory Improvement Act (hereinafter “@Ul see Governmental Regulations) waiver

granted by the FDA for the two FDApproved products in 2006 and 2007, respectivEhe CLIA waiver is required in order for health egroviders t
administer these tests in the settings where theynast suited and needed, such as public healiihdeclinics, hospital emergency rooms and phgsii
offices. Our HIV 1/2 STAT-PAK Dipstick, though nBDA-approved, qualifies under FDA export regulationse to customers outside the United St
subject to any required approval by the importingrdry.

All three of our lateral flow HIV tests have qu&id for procurement under the President's Emergétiap for AIDS Relief (“PEPFAR”).The STA1
PAK (both the cassette and dipstick versions) &e qualified by the World Health Organization (WHfor procurements by the second largest g
program, known as the Global Fund, as well as othited programs funded by agencies affiliatechwiite United Nations, such as UNICEF
UNITAIDS (see Glossary), through qualification witie WHO bulk procurement scheme.

DPP® HIV Test

As in the case of our lateral flow HIV tests, ouPB® HIV test is also a qualitative “yes/nt&'st for the detection of antibodies to HIV 1 &dglivers
visual results within approximately 15 minutessiisiple to use, has a shelf life of 24 months, ameschot require refrigeration. Additionally thisoduct
which is our first product incorporating our patthDPP®technology, can be used with oral fluid samplesyels as with all blood matrices. This prod
also incorporates our patepénding oral fluid collection and storage systeat #mables samples to be fully extracted in budééution before applicatic
to the test device, and also enables the extraaetple to be stored and retested or tested foripteuttonditions. Clinical and laboratory studiesve
shown this product to have improved performancepamed with all of the current FDA-approved CLIA-wad rapid tests including our own.

Regulatory Status: In 2010 we began a 3,000 patient clinical stuith wur DPP®HIV test in the United States which is one of theneents required
support a Pre-Marketing Approval (“PMA"application to the FDA. The trial is 98% completed we anticipate completing the trial as soc
possible. We have already submitted two of theghmodules required for a modular PMA applicatiamg we anticipate submitting the final moc
containing the clinical and other required inforrmatwithin 30 days of completing the clinical tsalWe believe that approval of our PMA applica
will be within approximately six months after websnit the final module. At that time, we plan tgpapfor CLIA waiver of this product.




The product is qualified for procurement under Bresident’s Emergency Plan for AIDS Relief (“PEPFARTI use with all sample matrices and we
pursuing WHO qualification in order to enable pnamuent of this product by the Global Fund and Uhilations agencies, including progre
underwritten by them.

In June 2010 ANVISA (see Glossary) approved the ® PRV test that is being marketed in Brazil througlr @ollaboration with the Oswaldo Ci
Foundation, Brazil’s leading public health inst#utGiven the oral fluid feature, we believe thisquct can be marketed as a premipriced product thi
will address those market segments in the U.S géotahlly that express a preference for a less imeagsting experience.

OTHER DPP® PRODUCTS

Our strategy with respect to our DPP® technology éolved as the Company has evolved. Initiallyipfeing the issuance of our DPPgatent in th
United States in 2007, our strategy was necesslarijed to developing third-partfunded OEM research and development contracts eanttsy Thi
strategy enabled us to conserve capital resowdg@le at the same time acquiring kndww and experience with the platform and developiigl party
references and implicit endorsements of the tedgylAs our capabilities to develop and manufaclDRP® products expanded, and as our finar
position has improved, so have our strategic optexpanded and improved. While we will continuenaploy the strategy of seeking OEM developr
and manufacturing agreements as a way to parteipatarkets that we cannot and/or choose notriede.g., veterinary) , we believe that we can
develop our own branded line of products, and vem pb do this in the public health area. This Hrauiill be launched with our DPP®IV Screenin
Assay in the United States market in 2013, to levied by our Syphilis test and potentially othefated products (SeeRECENT DEVELOPMENT:
AND CHEMBIO’S PLAN OF OPERATIONS FOR THE NEXT TWELE MONTHS).

Following is a discussion of the DPR®oducts for which we have completed our develognaetivity pursuant to OEM agreements with FIOCR&r®
Bio-Rad Laboratories, Inc. The statuses of prodisare still under development are describd@art 1l Iltem 7.

PARTNERS INVOLVED IN MARKETING OUR PRODUCTS

On September 29, 2006, we executed marketing ardde agreements with Alere. The marketing ageatsr(one for each of the two FD#pprove!
products) provide Alere with a 10-year exclusivghti(until September 2016) to market our rapid Hdgts in the United States under Alerbrand. Th
agreements provide Chembio a maxclusive license to certain Alere lateral flowgrets that may be applicable to our lateral flowdois, principall
including our lateral flow HIV tests that we haventinued to market outside the United States. Banaous with the execution of the agreement:
also settled litigation with StatSure Diagnostics,.(SDS) that had been ongoing relating to thepetary barrel device which is incorporated intea
our two FDAapproved rapid HIV tests (See Lateral Flow HIV Beabove). As a result, it is through the agredseiith Alere, that we have be
participating in the growth of the rapid HIV tesarket in the United States.

We have appointed distributors internationally éorr lateral flow HIV tests. Our largest markets @ur lateral flow HIV rapid tests outside the Ud
States are certain countries in Africa and Asiaval as Mexico. Internationally, most of the derddor our products is based on governmental and non
governmental prevention and treatment efforts. e@ithis, these programs can and do often resddtrge orders, but also in periods of relatively ¢z
demand, based on the variations associated walkihid of demand.

Our DPP®HIV test was approved by ANVISA in June 2010. Thisproval was granted to our Brazilian partner, @®&valdo Cruz Foundati
(“FIOCRUZ"), pursuant to one of five technology transfer, suppid license agreements that we entered into Wishpublic health organization in 2C
and 2010 (See OEM DPP® products).

OEM DPP® Products

Oswaldo Cruz Foundation OEM DPP® Agreements

During 2008-2010 we signed five agreements with @svaldo Cruz Foundation (FIOCRUZ) in Brazil retatito products based on our D®PP

technology. FIOCRUZ is the leading public healtbanization in Brazil, and it is affiliated with 8zil's Ministry of Health which is its principal clientt
has extensive research, educational and manufagtfatilities for drugs and vaccines, as well agdbstic products.




During 2010 and 2011 all of the initial productsitamplated under the five agreements were apprimradarketing by the applicable regulatory ager
in Brazil. As a result, during 2011, we shippegraximately $4.25 million of products to FIOCRUZrpuant to the agreements. The agreements be
the Company and FIOCRUZ are unique examples ofitdolyy transfer collaborations between a privatté@eapid test manufacturer and a public he
organization. The five products under agreemenh vitOCRUZ are for DPP@®products for HIV screening, HIV confirmatory, Lemshaniasis
Leptospirosis and Syphilis. All of the agreementthwIOCRUZ contemplate a technology transfer dodnise to FIOCRUZ for the manufacture of
subject products over stipulated periods of timibese technology transfers, and the provision bgn@liio of the information and training that is requ
for this to occur, are subject to Chembio receivimders from FIOCRUZ for a minimum amount of protufor manufacture by Chembio, whict
approximately $23 million. The actual demand foese products may be more or less than this amdirg.actual amount will depend on the ac
demand for the products by the specific programeé&zh product funded by the Brazilian MinistryHgalth as well as the whether and when FIOC
is able to implement the technology transfer siapkiding, for example, the readiness of new prdidacfacilities currently under construction thae
schedule to be completed in n613; thereafter Chembio may receive royalty paymsemder some of the agreements for a defined gdrésed o
product sold by FIOCRUZ to the public health pragsan Brazil.

Bio-Rad Laboratories OEM DPP® Agreement- On April 6, 2008, we entered a milestone-basettld@pment agreement with Biead Laboratorie
N.A., a division of Bi-Rad Laboratories Inc. (NYSE:BIO), a leading inreitiagnostic and life science company. The agesgrwith BioRad was fc
the development of a six-band multiplex producibon DPP®. Based on achieving the proof of concept for thizdpct during 2008, in January 2009
entered a limited exclusive license agreement BithhRad related to the field of use for this applicatiand we continued the development work dt
all of 2009 and until Bio-Rad confirmed that th@guct specifications were met in the second quaft2010. In June 2010, BiRad exercised its opti
to have Chembio transfer the manufacturing of peduct to BioRad subject to a royalty payment payable to Chembisuant to a license agreen
with Bio-Rad based on Bio-Rad's net sales of tkerlsed product, which process was completed inb@ctd010. Chembio believes that Brad it
proceeding with the regulatory approvals of thisdurct, with CE Mark likely by the end of 2012, atlgh there can be no assurance of this. We fi
believe that BioRad has begun discussions with the FDA to disduissproduct, its proposed performance claims aeditended clinical protocol
support its regulatory submission.

During 2008 to 2010, Chembio earned approximatdB0$000 for product development work rendered wad under this agreement, plus an addit
$490,000 in license and other fees related to tweufacturing transfer.

Our Rapid Test Technologies

All of our commercially available current produ@mploy either in-licensed lateral flow technologyaur own patented Dual Path Platform (DPP®
technology and are visually read. We can alsohasel held and desktop readers with our DRP&ucts to objectively measure, quantify, recand
report DPP@®test results. Certain of the products we have arat/® developing incorporate some of these readeaswe are developing other prod
that may be used with or will require use of a exad

Both lateral flow technology and DPP® allow the elepment of accurate, low cost, easy-to-performglstuse diagnostic tests for rapid, visual detec
of specific antigerantibody complexes on a test strip. These formpaiside a test that is simple (requires neithecteicity nor expensive equipment
test execution or reading, nor skilled personneltést interpretation), rapid (turnaround time apgmately 15 minutes), safe (minimizes handlin
potentially infected specimens), non-invasive (iezg1520 micro liters of whole blood easily obtained wihfinger prick, or alternatively, serum
plasma,), stable (24 months at room temperaturaggdn the case of our HIV tests), and highly oepcible.

We believe that products developed using DR&@nology can provide superior diagnostic perfaroeaas compared with products that use lateral
technology. The reason for this is that one ofrtteor differences between the two platforms is thabPP®samples are allowed to incubate with
target analyte in the test zone before introductibthe labeling reagent/conjugate, whereas irrdhftow, samples are combined with the labelinggen
to form a complex before coming in contact with theget analyte. Also, because of the usage in@®&fa separately connected sample strip, the cc
and delivery of sample material is substantiallpioved. This is critical in the development of tipléx tests, as well as tests that involve visceampli
material (such as oral fluid) that can be impedéeémforced to combine with labeling reagents befoigration on the test strip to the test zone area.

Target Markets

Rapid HIV Tests
A large percentage of individuals that are HIV figsiworldwide are unaware of their status. Parhefreason for this is that even those that daegpte:
in public health settings will often not returnaall back for their test results if samples havéeosent out to a laboratory which can take at lsasere
days to process. However, the increased avatigbgreater efficacy and reduced costs for agttioviral treatments (ARVs) for HIV has increagbd
demand for testing, as the stigma associated Wéltdisease is lessened, and the ability to resummaah activities is substantially improved, provigic
positive message to those potentially infected.




There are approximately 53,000 new diagnoses of idf&ction in the United States each year, accgrdinthe CDC. In time, most of these infecti
progress to AIDS. The CDC estimates that approtéipd.1 million individuals in the U.S. are livingith HIV, with an estimated 250,000 Americans
more than 2 @6, unaware that they are infected. It is these@BDinfected people that are reported to accaumb4% of all new infections per year. F
of the reason for this is that even those that etatested in public health settings will often neturn or call back for their test results from gdes tha
have to be sent out to a laboratory and that dematleast several days to process. Making meoplp aware of their HIV status at the pointeafe will
reduce the number of HIV transmissions.

Rapid HIV testing in the United States has now tyed into an estimated 7 million test market. Tikirom zero in 2003 when Orasure Technolos
Inc. received the first FDA approval for a rapidMHiest. We believe that the US professional Higidatest market (not including the OTC market)
the potential to increase to 15-18 million testerothe next several years, which would represeriG® of all HIV tests done today in the United St
for clinical purposes. Assuming an average prze¢ht manufacturers of $8.00 per test, a total m@keU.S. market of nearly $128150 million it
implied.

In 2006, the outlook for HIV testing was given atboost with the release by the CDC of new guidsliior HIV testing. These new CI
recommendations are that an HIV test should bengigea routine test like any other for all paticoesveen 13 and 64 years of age, regardless ofwitth
an opt-out screening option and focused testinggaoral (pre and posttest counseling) guidelines. Adoption of the 2@IBC recommendations by
number of states continues to have an increasipgém

In the international market, PEPFAR, the large bahiStates funded international AIDS relief prograused on fifteen countries, was reauthorize
2008 for up to $48 billion for FY2009-2012 (up frasd5 billion in 20042008). PEPFAR and the Global Fund are the lamgfettte global initiatives th
have helped to make prevention, care and life-gpireatments available to those that need themekample PEPFAR has the goal that by 2013 tl
million infected individuals will be provided treaent and 12 million new cases will be averted. Thieve these goalsmore and more people are lik
to get tested. As more effective treatments becavadable at lower costs , there is a cleareraes be tested.

The U.S. and international economics crisis oflést few years has impacted the growth in fundifithese large programs, though private donations
supplemented the governmental and gomernmental programs. Still, accountability, g#ld corruption, and the eligibility of lower qugliand lowe
cost products make these markets challenging. ubtmaut we believe that Chembio has remained, andcigasingly recognized as, a reputable
dependable supplier of high quality products tmatavailable at reasonably competitive prices.

Oral fluid testing is an established alternativéblmod testing for diagnostic tests, including HRéts. It is also often patient preferred, prawida mor
comfortable, less invasive test. In certain pubBalth clinics, staffs choose not to handle blspecimens; thus, oral sample collection providemhble
alternative. The most well-established market fat 8uid HIV testing is the United States.

There is also now a potential over-ttednter market for HIV tests and we are well posiéd to participate in this market, should we lvelighe
investment is justified. After years of debatés thotential market has received increasing supppithe FDA Blood Products Advisory Committee,
United States Centers for Disease Control, asasekey opinion leaders in the public health and Hitvocacy community. In 2011 Orasure Technolc
Inc. announced that it had submitted its final agapion to the FDA for its oral fluid HIV test, wh may result in FDA approval of the first over-the
counter HIV test during 2012.

Based on the fact that FDA has required any owerictunter HIV test to have first been approvedlier professional market, we believe that Chemt
the only other company that can participate in thaket opportunity if it chooses to. Althoughneés a third company, Trinity Biotech that medta
condition, due to certain features of Trinity’s guzt Unigold®,we do not believe they intend to pursue this paaémarket, particularly since Trinity h
stated this themselves. Therefore Chembio is clyefhonitoring developments in this market, whiclayrbe significant during 2012. Currently we cc
initiate the over the counter approval process wither of our two blood tests. Provided we reediapproval of our prezarketing application for o
DPP®oral fluid HIV test, we could additionally, or atteatively, pursue over the counter approval fot fraduct upon receiving such approval. Howe
the requirements for such approval are estimatdée pproximately $4-6 million, and may take twdhmee years to complete.

Rapid Syphilis Tes

Recent data indicate that approximately 70,200,000 new cases of syphilis are occurring anpiraithe U.S. Syphilis can be treated with antiicgtbu
untreated it can cause pelvic inflammatory diseasertility, ectopic pregnancy and can infect nemis. Treatment cannot be provided witho
confirmed diagnosis of an active case of syph@iarrent testing algorithms in the United Statesumegtwo different tests (called ndreponemal ar
treponemal markers), each requiring trained permsloim laboratory settings and several days to mecéiack results, in order to confirm an aci
previously untreated case. The screening testestiployed in the United States is known as RPRtilizes an old technology that has a high degrf
false positive results.

Development of the POC market for syphilis testimgxpected to be comparable to the developmethieoPOC market for HIV testing, as there
significant public health value to being able toyde results at the point-afare. There are several ways to assess the ngggettunity for this uniqt
rapid test, although we believe the U.S. rapid teatket opportunity may exceed 8 million tests, ahhis approximately 20% of the total numbe
syphilis tests performed in the United States fonical use today. Unlike HIV testing, where a piog result first requires a confirmatory testdagvel
then further tests to measure viral load beforeeagjve treatment decisions are made, an individithl a confirmed active case of syphilis car
prescribed antibiotics immediately.




In February 2011 a study was released by the CBCsiiggested that the “newekdboratory screening tests, which are using tedgies developed
the 1980s (i.e. Enzymigiked Immunoassays), are resulting in a large remab suspected false positive test results, whightest results that are no
fact representing active cases of Syphilis. Thislgtinvolved tests done in high throughput blookening laboratory settings, and not necessaiiiycell
settings. Nevertheless we believe that the studygests that if public health clinicians could davhat is effectively the CD@&commended laboratc
testing algorithm in a point-afare test, this could be an invaluable public tetlbl in higher risk testing (higher STD prevalepesettings. We belie
this is the opportunity we have with this product.

Marketing Strategy
Our marketing strategy is to:
« Support, review and assess the marketing andhision efforts of our rapid HIV tests by Alere. &ké, which is a leading marketer of point-of-
care diagnostic products, has significantly expdnitie distribution footprint since we signed ouregment with them, and although we bel
that this will enhance opportunities for Alere tanket our rapid HIV tests, the product line is ayvemall one for them, notwithstanding

strong growth they have enjoyed with respect tograducts

« Leverage our DPP@intellectual property and regulated product develept and manufacturing experience to continue icigahew
collaborations where Chembio can be the excluséxeldpment and manufacturing partner supportinditegamarketing organization

« Establish strong distribution relationships for @@imembiobranded products in the U.S and abroad and edtabldirect sales and market
organization that is focused in the public healdrket segment, and that utilizes distributors filreo market segments, primarily the acute
market which, together with public health, are thain market segments for rapid HIV tests in thetéthiStates. We believe that creation
Chembio public health brand and marketing orgaminas fundamental to long term creation of shatééovalue.

Competition

The diagnostics industry is a multilion dollar international industry and is inteshg competitive. Many of our competitors are sahstlly larger an
have greater financial, research, manufacturingraarketing resources.

Industry competition in general is based on thinfahg:
« Scientific and technological capability;
« Proprietary know-how;
« The ability to develop and market products and gsees;
« The ability to obtain FDA or other required regolgtapprovals;

« The ability to manufacture products that meet alie FDA requirements, (i.e. FD#\'Quality System Regulations) (see Governm
Regulation section’

« The ability to manufacture products cost-effectyel
« Access to adequate capital;

« The ability to attract and retain qualified perselhmand
« The availability of patent protection.

We believe our scientific and technological capgtibd and our proprietary know-how relating to andlicensed lateral flow technology rapid tests ar
our proprietary knowiow related to our patented dual path platformreddgy, particularly for the development and maetifee of tests for the detect
of antibodies to infectious diseases such as Hi¥ vary strong.

Our ability to develop and market other productimikerge measure dependent on our having addlti@saurces and/or collaborative relationshipsmé
of our product development efforts have been furmed project or milestone basis. We believe thatproprietary knowhow in lateral flow technolog
and in our Dual Path Platform (DPP&)hnology has been instrumental in our obtainirgdollaborations we have and that we continueutsye. W
believe that the patent protection that we havenwitir Dual Path Platform (DPP®&nhances our ability to develop more profitablelatmrative
relationships and to license out the technologpweler there are number of competitive technologiesd and/or seeking to be used in pointark
settings. These technologies may be based on imasgay principles such as the Company’s productshmar technologies such as molecllase:
technologies.




Research and Development

During 2011 and 2010, $4.9 million and $4.1 milligs2.6 million, net of Qualified Therapeutic Disey Project (“QTDP”)grants), respectively, we
spent on research and development (including rémylaactivities). These expenses were in part taditen by funding from R&D and milestor
revenues of $1.8 million in 2011 and $2.8 million2010. All of our new product development actastinvolve employment of our Dual Path Platf
(DPP®) technology. These activities include completdeyelopment of certain products and making sigaificprogress toward the developmer
additional products. Research and developmenteguatory activities are explained in detail irtRhltem 7.

Employees

At December 31, 2011, we employed 140 people, dhoty 137 fulltime employees. We have entered into employmentracts with our Preside
Lawrence Siebert, and our Senior Vice Presideedearch and Development, Javan Esfandiari. Dtieetgpecific knowledge and experience of t
executives regarding the industry, technology araket, the loss of the services of either one efrttwould likely have a material adverse effect la
Company. The contract with Mr. Siebert providest thir. Siebert will serve as the Chief Executivdi€ and President of the Company through
11, 2013. The contract with Mr. Esfandiari hasrart of three years ending March 2013. We havemdxdea key man insurance policy for Mr. Esfand

Governmental Regulation

The manufacturing and marketing of the Compangkisting and proposed diagnostic products arelatgd by the United States Food and [
Administration (“FDA"), United States DepartmentAdriculture (“USDA"), certain state and local agencies, and/or comparagldatory bodies in oth
countries. These regulations govern almost alketspof development, production and marketing,uidiclg product testing, authorizations to mai
labeling, promotion, manufacturing and record kegpiThe Compang’ FDA and USDA regulated products require some fofraction by each ager
before they can be marketed in the United States, after approval or clearance, the Company mastimue to comply with other FDA requireme
applicable to marketed products, e.g. Quality Systéfor medical devices). Failure to comply witie tFDA’s requirements can lead to signific
penalties, both before and after approval or clezea

There are two review procedures by which medicaiags can receive FDA clearance or approval. Spnoelucts may qualify for clearance ur
Section 510(k) of the Federal Food, Drug and Comnett, in which the manufacturer provides a pmarket notification that it intends to begin markg
the product, and shows that the product is suliathnéquivalent to another legally marketed pradfie., that it has the same intended use and &6
and effective as a legally marketed device and do¢saise different questions of safety and elfectess). In some cases, the submission mustde
data from human clinical studies. Marketing maynotence when the FDA issues a clearance lettemigngliich substantial equivalence. FDA clear
of our DPP® Syphilis Screen & Confirm test will bg means of a 510(k) submission.

If the medical device does not qualify for the 30)qgrocedure (either because it is not substapteduivalent to a legally marketed device or beeadti
required by statute and the FDA's implementing fations to have an approved application), the FDAstmapprove a Prigtarketing Applicatiol
(“PMA") before marketing can begin. PM&'must demonstrate, among other matters, that guécal device provides a reasonable assurancefetly
and effectiveness. A PMA application is typicallycomplex submission, including the results of nbmical and clinical studies. Preparing a P
application is a much more expensive, detailed &mé-consuming process as compared with a 510(i&)market notification. The Company |
approved PMAs for the two rapid HIV tests now maekicby Alere Medical as Clearview® Complete HIV & Clearview® HIV 1-2 STAT PAK®.

FDA approval of our DPP®1IV screening assay for use with oral fluid or kdogamples is being pursued by means of a PMA eagjiin. The Clinice
Laboratory Improvement Act of 1988 (“CLIA"prohibits laboratories from performing in vitro tedor the purpose of providing information for
diagnosis, prevention or treatment of any diseasignpairment of, or the assessment of, the hedithuman beings unless there is in effect for :
laboratories a certificate issued by the UnitedeSt®epartment of Health and Human Services (\@aFDA) applicable to the category of examinatio
procedure performed. Although a certificate is remjuired for the Company, it considers the appilids of the requirements of CLIA in the designd
development of its products. The statutory dabnitof “laboratory”is very broad, and many of our customers are censitllabs. A CLIA waiver wi
remove certain quality control and other requiretsdinat must be met for certain customers to us€ttmpanys products and this is in fact critical to
marketability of a product into the point-o&re diagnostics market. The Company has recev@tlA waiver for each of the two rapid HIV testew
marketed by Alere Medical as Clearview® Complet® HI2 and Clearview® HIV 1/2 STAT PAK®The CLIA waiver was granted by the FDA for F
1/2 STAT-PAK on November 20, 2006 and for the Gleaw® Complete HIV 1/2 on October 22, 2007.




In addition, the FDA regulates the export of mebdmvices that have not been approved for marketirthe United States. The Federal Food, Drug
Cosmetic Act contains general requirements for megical device that may not be sold in the Unit¢éates and is intended for export. Specificall
medical device intended for export is not deemedbaocadulterated or misbranded if the product: @hglies with the specifications of the fore
purchaser; (2) is not in conflict with the lawsthE country to which it is intended for export; {8)prominently labeled on the outside of the simg
package that it is intended for export; and (4)as sold or offered for sale in the United Statelwever, the Federal Food, Drug and Cosmetic Aet
permit the export of devices to any country inwld, if the device complies with the laws of fingoorting country and has valid marketing authdian
in one of several “listedtountries under the theory that these listed c@strave sophisticated mechanisms for the reviemetfical devices for safe
and effectiveness.

The Company is also subject to regulations in fpraiountries governing products, human clinicall$rand marketing, and may need to obtain apf
or evaluations by international public health agesc such as the World Health Organization, in orte sell diagnostic products in cert
countries. Approval processes vary from countrgdantry, and the length of time required for apptoor to obtain other clearances may in some
be longer than that required for United States gawental approvals. On the other hand, the fadtdbhaHIV diagnostic tests are of value in the A
epidemic may lead to some government process feipgdited. The extent of potentially adverse gormmtal regulation affecting Chembio that m
arise from future legislative or administrativeiantcannot be predicted.

One or more of the Comparsyrapid HIV tests are also approved or pending a@irfor marketing in several foreign jurisdictigriscluding but nc
limited to Brazil, Mexico, and a number of othetioas in the developing world.

Environmental Laws

To date, we have not encountered any costs relatingmpliance with any environmental laws.
Intellectual Property

Intellectual Property Strateg

Our intellectual property strategy is to: (1) lbudur own intellectual property portfolio aroundrddual Path Platform technology; (2) pursue lice,
trade secrets and know-how within the area of rgpidt-of-care testing, and (3) develop and acquire propyigiasitions to reagents and new hardy
platforms for the development and manufacture picrdiagnostic tests.

The Company has obtained patent coverage on the®iBéhnology, including three U.S. patents, and gatém China, Malaysia, Eurasia, Mexi
Singapore, Japan and the U.K. Additional pateptiegtions on the DPP®roduct line are pending in the U.S., as well aswany foreign countries su
as Australia, Brazil, Canada, the European Uniadja, Indonesia, Israel, Korea, and South AfriPatents have also been filed on extensions i
DPP® product line concept such as 4th generatisayas

The Company has also filed for patents and obtagosge patents in the U.S. for other inventions sagits multiple host species veterinary TB test
patent applications for the other inventions arganous stages from being recently filed and reitgxamined, to already examined and allowed bt
yet issued. The Company selectively and stratdgifcaeign files its patent applications basedaonumber of economic and strategic factors relttee
invention.

Trademarks

The Company has filed and obtained trademarkstfopilioducts including DPP®, SURE CHECK® and STATK®A The DPP®trademark is als
registered under the European convention (ECT).

Trade Secrets and Know-How

We believe that we have developed a substantiay lmédrade secrets and know-how relating to theettgsment of lateral flow and DPP®ase!
diagnostic tests, including but not limited to theurcing and optimization of materials for suchtgeand how to maximize sensitivity, speedsult
specificity, stability and reproducibility. The Cgainy possesses proprietary knbow to develop tests for multiple conditions usgajored latex. Ot
buffer formulations enable extremely long sheleBvof our rapid HIV and other tests and we beligna this provides us with an important compet
advantage.

Lateral Flow Technology and Reagent Licer

As part of our agreements in 2006 with Alere far tharketing of our HIV tests, we were granted ea&nlusive licenses to certain lateral flow techigy
for certain products manufactured and marketed lbgnibio including but not limited to our HIV testlthough we believe our DPP® outside of th
scope of all lateral flow patents of which we aneaee, we consult with patent counsel, and seeksies and/or redesigns of products that we bel@be
in the best interests of the Company and our stldiens. Because of the costs and other negatinsecpiences of timesnsuming patent litigation, \
often attempt to obtain a license on reasonablagemMNevertheless there is no assurance that e Adteral flow patents we have licensed will be
challenged or that other patents containing claiebsvant to the Company’s lateral flow or DPP&ducts will not be granted to third parties ahd
licenses to such patents, will be available onaeable terms, if any. In the past Alere has aggrelssenforced its lateral flow intellectual propg
although some of the main patents will expire wittiie next couple of years and we are not awangfpatent enforcement litigation that is ong
with respect to the Alere lateral flow intellectymbperty.
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Regardless, the DPP@chnology provides us with our own intellectuaberty, we believe it provides us with a freedonoperate, and that it al
enables tests to be developed with improved seitgitas compared with comparable tests on latdmb fplatforms. The Company has signed
anticipates signing new development projects bagemh the DPP®&echnology that will provide new manufacturing amdrketing opportunities. V
have filed other patents that we believe will sytnen the DPP® intellectual property and have filed for patent protection for certain other peai-
care technologies or applications thereof.

The peptides used in our rapid HIV tests were gatkby Adaltis Inc. and were licensed to us undé@0gear norexclusive license agreement d¢
August 30, 2002. However, in connection with Agalbankruptcy, during théhird quarter of 2009 we bought out all of our rémray obligations undt
that agreement. We also have licensed the antigssts in other tests including our Syphilis, Tubéssis, Leptospirosis, Leishmaniasis and Chagds,
and we may enter other license agreements. Im pears we concluded license agreements relatéatatectual property rights owned by the Un
States associated with HIV- 1, and during the figsarter of 2008 we entered into a sub-licenseesgeat for HIV-2 with BioRad Laboratories N.A., tl
exclusive licensee of the Pasteur Institute’s HIV¥2llectual property estate.

Corporate History

On May 5, 2004, we completed a merger with TradBajutions, Inc. through which Chembio Diagnosticsteyns Inc. became our wholbwnec
subsidiary, and through which the management asthbss of Chembio Diagnostic Systems Inc. becamenamagement and business. As part o
transaction, we changed our name to Chembio Didgspdnc. In 2003, we had sold our prior businessd as a result, we had no specific bus
immediately prior to the merger.

Since the formation of Chembio Diagnostic Systems In 1985, it has been involved in developingnaofacturing, selling and distributing iritro
diagnostic tests, including rapid tests beginnm@995, for a number of conditions in humans arithals.

On March 12, 2004, we implemented a 1-for-17 reveydit of our common stock. All references irstRiorm 10K to shares of our common stock h
been adjusted to reflect this reverse split.

In February 2010, Crestview Capital Master, L.L(Crestview Master"), a Delaware limited liabiligpmpany that held 18,907,431 shares of Chen
common stock, spun off all these shares, constgudipproximately 30.5% of Chembio's outstandingeshao its three equity holders. One of the 1
equity holders of Crestview Master immediately spidf) to its approximately 126 equity holders, aflthe 12,990,569 shares of Chembio stock tl
received in this distribution. As a result, asFebruary 24, 2010, Crestview Master no longer owareyg shares. The former direct and indirect e
holders of Crestview Master owned all these shawith, none of these individual stockholders haviveneficial ownership of more than 5.61% of
outstanding common stock of Chembio.
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Glossary

AIDS

ALGORITHM (parallel or

serial)

ANTIBODY

ANTIGEN

ANVISA
ARVs

CDC

CLIA waiver

DIAGNOSTIC

EITF
FASB
FIOCRUZ
FDA
FDIC

FAS

19G

NGO

oTC

PEPFAR

PMA
PROTOCOL
REAGENT
RETROVIRUS
SAB
SENSITIVITY
SPECIFICITY

USDA
WHO

Acquired Immunodeficiency Syndrome. AIDS is caubgdhe Human Immunodeficiency Virus, HI

For rapid HIV testing this refers both to methodpootocol (in developing countries to date) forngsrapid tes
from different manufacturers in combination to sereand confirm patients at the pointaafre, and may also re
to the specific tests that have been selected bggancy or ministry of health to be used in thigywA paralle
algorithm uses two screening tests from differeanofacturers and a tiereaker test only if there is a discrepe
between the screening tests results. A serial ithgoronly uses a second confirmatory test if thsra positive rest
from the screening test, meaning that the numbegoofirmatory tests used is equal to the positivage in th
testing venue. A t-breaker test resolves discrepancies between thersand the confirmatory te

A protein which is a natural part of the human inmawystem produced by specialized cells to nemérantigen:
including viruses and bacteria that invade the bd8gch antibody producing cell manufactures a umigntibod
that is directed against, binds to and eliminates and only one, specific type of antig

Any substance which, upon entering the body, stitesl the immune system leading to the formatioantibodies
Among the more common antigens are bacteria, paltexins, and viruse

Anti-Retroviral Treatments for AIDS

The National Health Surveillance Agency of Brazil

Anti-retroviral medications developed to fight All

United States Centers for Disease Control and Rtmre

Clinical Laboratory Improvement Act designationttadiows simple tests to be performed in pointafe settinc
such as doctrs offices, wal-in clinics and emergency roon

Pertaining to the determination of the nature arseaof a disease or condition. Also refers toeasgor procedur
used in diagnosis to measure proteins in a clirdaadple

Emerging Issues Task For

Financial Accounting Standards Board

The Oswaldo Cruz Foundation of Bra

United States Food and Drug Administrat

Federal Deposit Insurance Corporat

Financial Accounting Standa

IgG or Immunoglobulin are proteins found in humaoold. This protein is called an “antibodghd is an importa
part of the bodys defense against disease. When the body is attdogkbarmful bacteria or viruses, antibodies
fight these invader:

Non-Governmental Organizatic

Ovel-the-Counter

The Presider's Emergency Plan for AIDS Reli

Pre-Marketing Approval FDA approval classification for a medical devicattis not substantially equivalent t
legally marketed device or is otherwise requiredstatute to have an approved application. Rapi tdkts mus
have an approved PMA application before marketiinguch a product can beg

A procedure pursuant to which an immunodiagnosst is performed on a particular specimen in ord@btain th
desired reactior

A chemical added to a sample under investigatioorder to cause a chemical or biological reactidrictv will
enable measurement or identification of a targbstnce

A type of virus which contains the enzyme Reversan$criptase and is capable of transforming intece&ls tc
produce diseases in the host such as A

Staff Accounting Bulletir

Refers to the ability of an assay to detect andsomeasmall quantities of a substance of interelsé greater tf
sensitivity, the smaller the quantity of the substof interest the assay can detect. Also refetise likelihood c
detecting the antigen when prese

The ability of an assay to distinguish between lsimnaterials. The greater the specificity, thidrean assay is
identifying a substance in the presence of substaotsimilar makeug

U.S Department of Agricultur

World Health Organizatio
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ITEM 1A. RISK FACTORS

You should carefully consider each of the followiist factors and all of the other information pided in this Annual Report. The risks describeldw
are those we currently believe may materially d@ftec An investment in our Common Stock involveigla degree of risk, and should be considered
by persons who can afford the loss of their entivestment.

Risks related to our industry, business and strategy

Because we may not be able to obtain or maintain ¢hnecessary regulatory approvals for some of our pducts, we may not generate revenues
the amounts we expect, or in the amounts necessaxy continue our business. Our existing products agell as our manufacturing facility must
meet quality standards and are subject to inspectioby a number of domestic regulatory and other gowamental and non-governmental agencies.

All of our proposed and existing products are scibje regulation in the U.S. by the U.S. Food amididoAdministration, the U.S. Department
Agriculture and/or other domestic and internatiogalvernmental, public health agencies, regulatordids or norgovernmental organizations.
particular, we are subject to strict governmentaitmls on the development, manufacture, labeldigtribution and marketing of our products.
process of obtaining required approvals or cleaana@ries according to the nature of, and usesaf@pecific product. These processes can in
lengthy and detailed laboratory testing, humanromal clinical trials, sampling activities, and ethcostly, timeeonsuming procedures. The submis
of an application to a regulatory authority does guarantee that the authority will grant an apptar clearance for product. Each authority mapast
its own requirements and can delay or refuse totgrpproval or clearance, even though a producbbaes approved in another country.

The time taken to obtain approval or clearanceegadiepending on the nature of the application aad nesult in the passage of a significant periotinoé
from the date of submission of the application.la®g in the approval or clearance processes inerdesrisk that we will not succeed in introducior
selling the subject products, and we may deterr@rdevote our resources to different products.

Changes in government regulations could increaseaats and could require us to undergo addititnels or procedures, or could make it impractiak
impossible for us to market our products for certzges, in certain markets, or at all.

Changes in government regulations may adversedgadiur financial condition and results of openagibecause we may have to incur additional exp
if we are required to change or implement new ngstmanufacturing and control procedures. If weraquired to devote resources to develop suct
procedures, we may not have sufficient resourceletote to research and development, marketingthar activities that are critical to our business.

We can manufacture and sell our products only ifcamply with regulations and quality standards ld&thed by government agencies such as the
and the USDA as well as by ngovernmental organizations such as the ISO and WW®.have implemented a quality system that isihéel to compl
with applicable regulations. Although FDA appro&inot required for the export of our productgrehare export regulations promulgated by the
that specifically relate to the export of our prottu Although we believe that we meet the regmwattandards required for the export of our pros,
these regulations could change in a manner thad @alversely impact our ability to export our protiu

Our products may not be able to compete with new dignostic products or existing products developed bwell-established competitors, whic
would negatively affect our business.

The diagnostic industry is focused on the testifdpiological specimens in a laboratory or at thénpof-care and is highly competitive and rap
changing. Our principal competitors often havesidarably greater financial, technical and marlgtiesources than we do. Several companies pr
diagnostic tests that compete directly with outings product line, including but not limited to, &ure Technologies, Alere Medical and Tri
Biotech. As new products enter the market, oudpects may become obsolete or a compett@roducts may be more effective or more effecy
marketed and sold than ours.
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We have granted Alere exclusive rights to marketSWRE CHECK® HIV 1/2 in the United States and rextiusive rights in the rest of the world :
exclusive rights to market our HIV 1/2 STAT PAK@®the U.S. only. Alere has no rapid HIV tests that approved for marketing in the U.S. and Ale
obligated to inform us of any such products witbertain time frames We believe that Alere is cottedito successfully marketing our products ir
U.S. Alere may however choose to develop or acquorapeting products for marketing in the U.S. andh an action could have at least a temp
material adverse effect on the marketing of thesdycts until such time as alternative marketingrgements could be implemented. In particulare
manufactures and markets a rapid HIV test prodatied Determine® that, with its @ generation test, is the leading product used indéaeelopin
world. The Determine HIV test product line, whiefas until 2006 a division of Abbott DiagnosticsJiapan that was then sold to Alere, has had at#
few versions, the newest of which is the so calle#h Generation'Determine test which, according to its claims, detddlV antibodies and HIV antige
The claim of such a # generation product is that it detects infectionlieathan tests that solely rely on antibody détegtwhich required immur
response before detection can occur. Alere haterstatements that it is or will be seeking FDArapgl of this product which, if approval is gran
could potentially be a competitive product to thiee@bio products that Alere markets as Clearvie@@nplete (barrel) and Clearview HIV %2 ST
PAK® (cassette). Under our agreements, Alere ifaot expressly permitted to “exploiSuch a product in the United States without breaghhe
agreement, though there are defined consequenaeglincase: for the cassette product, Chembio titlagr éderminate Alere or make the agreement
Alere non-exclusive, and for the barrel producte@bio and StatSure Diagnostics (the other parthdécAlere 3way agreement pertaining to the be
product) can jointly agree to either continue tiggeament with Alere or to also make the barrel egpent norexclusive. As part of any decision
Chembio to market either product, Alere would exptre lateral flow license granted to allow Chentoianarket the product under Chembio brands.

Although we have no specific knowledge of any otb@mpetitors product that will render our products obsoldteye fail to maintain and enhance
competitive position or fail to introduce new pretiuand product features, our customers may degidse products developed by our competitors, v
could result in a loss of revenues and cash flow.

We have developed an oral fluid rapid HIV test adl\as other applications utilizing our Dual Patat®rm technology, which we believe will enha
our competitive position in HIV rapid testing anther fields. During 2011 we made significantgness toward the commercialization of this proc
However we still have technical, manufacturing, ulagpry and marketing challenges to meet beforewile know whether we can successfi
commercialize products incorporating this techngloghere can be no assurance that we will overcthiese challenges.

We plan to introduce our DPP@ral fluid HIV test, which test also can be usedwiblood samples, in the U.S. market under a Clieimtand once it
FDA approved, currently anticipated in 2013, butvidiich there can be no assurance. Under oud 2@@eement with Alere, Alere has a right of 1
negotiation for the right to market any new rapitd/Hntibody detection test that we develop. Inaadance with this provision in our agreement
presented this product to Alere in 2007, and in72B&re waived its right of first negotiation undée agreement. While such waiver does not pit
Alere from reconsidering the marketing of this protl we have no reason to believe that they wlso, although we believe that the primary ma
opportunity for the DPP® IV product is for those customers that have argheaference for an oral fluid HIV test, the prodiscalso likely to compete
some extent with our FDApproved rapid HIV tests being marketed by AleteerEfore this could have a material and adversefin our business w
Alere.

More generally, the point-of-care diagnostics irtduss undergoing rapid technological changes, viigguent introductions of new technolodsiver
products and services. As new technologies becomteduced into the point-afare diagnostic testing market, we may be requteedcommi
considerable additional efforts, time and resoutoesnhance our current product portfolio or depelew products. We may not have the available
and resources to accomplish this, and many of aunpetitors have substantially greater financial alder resources to invest in technoloc
improvements. We may not be able to effectivelplament new technologgriven products and services or be successful nketiag these products &
services to our customers, which would materiadyntn our operating results.

Although we own our DPP®atent, we own no issued patents covering latéval fechnology, and the field of lateral flow tedhogy is complex ar
characterized by a substantial amount of litigatemthe risk of potential patent challenges isoamg for us in spite of our DPP@atent. Moreover, v
believe that certain lateral flow patents are gamgxpire in the next couple of years which mayemally impact the competitive landscape.

Although we have been granted nexclusive licenses to the lateral flow patents aivhg Alere, there is no assurance that its laféwel patents will nc
be challenged or that licenses from other partiag not be required, if available at all. In aduliti certain of the Alere patents will expire in thex
couple of years which expiration could open thekagato certain competitors. In the event that idétermined that a license is required and it it
possible to negotiate a license agreement undecessary patent, we may be able to modify our HiMd test products and other products such 1
license would not be necessary. However, themmiassurance that we would be able to do so, aed iEaccomplished, this alternative could dela
limit our ability to sell these products in the Ua®id other markets, which would adversely affeetresults of operations, cash flows and business.
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On March 13, 2007, our Dual Path Platform ImmunagpsBevice patent application was issued as UnitedeS patent no. 7,189,522. Additic
protection for this intellectual property is penglim a number of other countries. This platforns l&hown improved sensitivity as compared
conventional platforms in a number of studies. Mééeve that this new platform is outside of thepse of currently issued patents in the field oéia
flow technology, thereby offering the possibility @ greater freedom to operate. However therebmmo assurance that our patents or our pro
incorporating the patent claims will not be chadled at some time in the future.

New developments in health treatments or new non-agnostic products may reduce or eliminate the demahfor our products.

The development and commercialization of productsside of the diagnostics industry could adversdfect sales of our products. For example
development of a safe and effective vaccine to Hi\treatments for other diseases or conditionsdbaproducts are designed to detect, could redu
eventually eliminate the demand for our HIV or atd@gnostic products and result in a loss of reesn

We may not have sufficient resources to effectiveiptroduce and market our products, which could maerially harm our operating results.

Introducing and achieving market acceptance forrapid HIV tests and other new products will regusubstantial marketing efforts and will requireot
our contract partners, sales agents, or distrisutomake significant expenditures of time and nyonen some instances we will be significantlytotally
reliant on the marketing efforts and expendituresuy contract partners, sales agents, and/orloistrs. If they do not have or commit the expsertan
resources to effectively market the products thatwanufacture, our operating results will be matlgrharmed.

The success of our business depends on, in addititmthe market success of our products, our abilityo raise additional capital through the sale ¢
debt or equity or through borrowing, and we may notbe able to raise capital or borrow funds on attrative terms and/or in amounts necessary
continue our business, or at all.

Our revenues and gross margins have increasedisagmly in recent periods, and we have been mbfé for three consecutive years. Nevertheless:,

to 2009 we sustained significant operating losgeses2004. At December 31, 2011, we had a stoderslequity of $12.5 million and a working cap

surplus of $6.1 million The Company estimates that its resources are ®uffito fund its needs through the end of 2012 laeybnd. The Company’
liquidity and cash requirements will depend on salfactors. These factors include (1) the levetenfenues; (2) the extent to which, if any, thakereue

level improves operating cash flows; (3) the Comyparinvestments in research and development, fas)itmarketing, regulatory approvals, and ¢

investments it may determine to make; and (4) tbenganys investment in capital equipment and the extenwhéh it improves cash flow throu

operating efficiencies. There are no assurancdstlitaCompany will remain profitable or generateipwee cash flow in 2012 or, in the alternative

successful in raising sufficient capital to funslfiieeds through 2012 and thereafter.

The increase in revenues anticipated in 2012 fronhe launch of our DPP®products in Brazil, continued revenues from Alere fom the U.S. rapic
HIV test market, increased sales to developing wall markets, and continued strength in our contract @velopment and grant revenues are ¢
critical for us to continue to maintain and increag our profitability while funding our new product r egulatory approval and commercializatior
programs. If we fail to meet any of these objectivee we may not generate revenues in the amounts nesary to maintain and increase ot
profitability and/or to fund our planned research, development, regulatory, selling, general and admistrative expenses in 2012 .

We intend to attempt to increase internationalssafeour products. A number of factors can slow@vent international sales, or substantially éas
the cost of international sales, including:

« regulatory requirements and customs regulations;

« cultural and political differences;

« foreign exchange rates, currency fluctuations anitfs;

« dependence on and difficulties in managing intéomal distributors or representatives;

« the creditworthiness of foreign entities;

« difficulties in foreign accounts receivable coliect;

« competition;

« pricing; and

« economic conditions and the absence of availabidifig sources.

If we are unable to increase our revenues frontiatéonal sales, our operating results will be mally harmed.
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Although we have an ethics and antcorruption policy in place, and have no knowledge roreason to know of any practices by our employee
agents or distributors that could be construed asi violation of such policies, our business includezales of products to countries where there is
may be widespread corruption.

Chembio has a policy in place prohibiting its enygles, distributors and agents from engaging inupbrousiness practices, including activities prdabd
by the United States Foreign Corrupt Practices(RE€PA). Nevertheless, because we work through ienégnt sales agents and distributors (and ¢
have any employees or subsidiaries) outside théedrfitates, we do not have control over the dajago-activities of such independent agents
distributors. In addition, in the dondiunded markets in Africa where we sell our produtisre is significant oversight from PEPFAR, thielial Fund
and advisory committees comprised of technical ggpmncerning the development and establishmenatiénal testing protocols. This is a procest
includes an overall assessment of a product whichudes extensive product performance evaluatiowduding five active collaborations &
manufactures quality systems, as well as price and delivényBrazil where we have had a total of six prodcetiaborations with FIOCRUZ, tho
programs that our products are or may be deplayeds all funded by the Brazilian Ministry of HdalAlthough FIOCRUZ is affiliated with the Brazik
Ministry of Health, it is not its exclusive supplidHowever because each of our collaborations WIBCRUZ incorporates a technology transfer as
we believe we have a competitive advantage verther suppliers to the Brazilian Ministry of Healtassuming other aspects of our product offe
through FIOCRUZ are otherwise competitive in congaar. We have no knowledge or reason to know ofamstivities by our employees, distributor:
sales agents of any actions which could be in timteof the FCPA, although there can be no asserafthis.

We rely on trade secret laws and agreements with okey employees and other third parties to protecbur proprietary rights, and we cannot be
sure that these laws or agreements adequately pratieour rights.

We believe that factors such as the technologicdl@eative skills of our personnel, strategictiefeships, new product developments, frequent pt
enhancements and name recognition are essentialrtesuccess. All our management personnel arecobymonedisclosure agreements. If persot
leave our employment, in some cases we would bgirestjto protect our intellectual property rightsguant to common law theories which may be
protective than provisions of employment, non-cotitipa or non-disclosure agreements.

We seek to protect our proprietary products undadet secret and copyright laws, enter into licemgeeements for various materials and met
employed in our products, and enter into strateglationships for distribution of the products. €Bk strategies afford only limited protection.

currently have some foreign patents issued, andame seeking additional patent protection in sevethker foreign jurisdictions for our DRP
technology. We have licenses to reagents (antigadspeptides) used in several of our productspaoducts under development Despite our effor
protect our proprietary assets, and respect thedlentual property rights of others, we participateseveral markets where intellectual propertyhtd
protections are of little or no value. This caaga our products and our company at a competitsaddantage.

Despite efforts we make to protect our confiderititdrmation, such as entering confidentiality agnents in connection with new business opports;
unauthorized parties may attempt to copy aspectsipproducts or to obtain information that we megas proprietary. We may be required to ex
substantial resources in asserting or protecting imiellectual property rights, or in defending tsurelated to intellectual property rights. Disgx
regarding intellectual property rights could subsitdly delay product development or commercial@atactivities because some of our available f
would be diverted away from our business activitiBssputes regarding intellectual property rightight include state, federal or foreign court ktigr
as well as patent interference, patent reexamimgpiatent reissue, or trademark opposition procggsdin the U.S. Patent and Trademark Office.

To facilitate development and commercializatioragfroprietary technology base, we may need to olatdditional licenses to patents or other propm

rights from other parties. Obtaining and maintagnthese licenses, which may not be available, regqyire the payment of upent fees and royalties.
addition, if we are unable to obtain these typelécehses, our product development and commerei#dia efforts may be delayed or precluded.
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Our continued growth depends on retaining our curret key employees and attracting additional qualifid personnel, and we may not be able
do so.

Our success will depend to a large extent uponskilés and experience of our executive officers,nagement and sales, marketing, operation:
scientific staff. We may not be able to attractretain qualified employees in the future due te itense competition for qualified personnel an
medical products businesses, geographic considesatbur ability to offer competitive compensaticelpcation packages, benefits, and/or other re;ason

If we are not able to attract and retain the nemrgspersonnel to accomplish our business objectiwesmay experience constraints that will advel
affect our ability to effectively manufacture, satid market our products to meet the demands o$tategic partners in a timely fashion, or to st
internal research and development programs. Aghowe believe we will be successful in attractimgl aetaining qualified personnel, competition
experienced scientists and other personnel fromenons companies and academic and other researitutioas may limit our ability to do so «
acceptable terms.

We have entered into employment contracts with@hief Executive Officer and President, Lawrenceb8ig and our Senior Vice President of Rese
and Development, Javan Esfandiari. Due to theiipé@owledge and experience of these executiegsurding the industry, technology and market
loss of the services of either one of them woukélli have a material adverse effect on the Compdie contract with Mr. Siebert provides that
Siebert will serve as the Chief Executive Officad@resident of the Company through May 11, 2013 contract with Mr. Esfandiari has a term of &
years ending March 2013. We have obtained a keyinsarance policy for Mr. Esfandiari.

We believe our success depends in part on our alylito participate in large testing programs in theU.S. and worldwide and we may not be able
do so.

We believe it to be in our best interests to megfuiltly participate in large testing programs. Rapition in these programs requires alignment
engagement with the many other participants inehegrams including the World Health Organizatidr. Center for Disease Control, U.S. Agenc
International Development, foreign governments dhdir agencies, nogevernmental organizations, and HIV service orgations. If we ar
unsuccessful in our efforts to participate in thesegrams, our operating results could be matgrieimed.

Although we were profitable in 2009, 2010 and 201We cannot be certain that we will be able to sustaprofitability in 2012.

From the inception of Chembio Diagnostic Systems, In 1985 through the period ended December 8282we incurred net losses and we have
become profitable during the last three years. @kt anticipate growth in our product revenues 0A2as compared with 2011, there can b
assurance of this. Moreover in 2012 we expect akensubstantial expenditures for regulatory subiorss product development and other purp
which may impact profitability. Our ability to ctinue profitability in the future will primarily dgend on our ability to increase sales of our pris
reduce production and other costs, and to sucdBsaftroduce new products and enhanced versiorsuofexisting products into the marketplace. I
are unable to increase our revenues at a ratestisaftficient to achieve profitability, or adequigteontrol and reduce our operating costs, our ajieg
results would be materially harmed.

To the extent that we are unable to obtain sufficiet product liability insurance or that we incur product liability exposure that is not covered b
our product liability insurance, our operating results could be materially harmed.

We may be held liable if any of our products, oy @noduct which is made with the use or incorparaf any of the technologies belonging to us, e¢
injury of any type or is found otherwise unsuitabligring product testing, manufacturing, marketisgle or usage. We have obtained product lia
insurance we have never received a product lighildim, and have generally not seen product lighilaims for screening tests that are accompahy
appropriate disclaimers. Nevertheless, in the etrene is a claim, this insurance may not fullyeoour potential liabilities. In addition, as atempt t
bring new products to market, we may need to irsgeaur product liability coverage which would bsignificant additional expense that we may nc
able to afford. If we are unable to obtain suéfiti insurance coverage at an acceptable cost tegpbros, we may be forced to abandon effor
commercialize our products or those of our stratpgitners, which would reduce our revenues.
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Risks related to our Common Stock

In the past, our Common Stock has been classified @enny stock, and it continues to be extremelyiijuid, so investors may not be able to sell
much stock as they want at prevailing market prices

In the past, our Common Stock has been classifiggeany stock. Penny stocks generally are eqaityrgies with a price of less than $5.00 and traic
the over-thezounter bulletin board market (OTCBB, currentlytbe QTCQB). As a result, an investor may find @rendifficult to dispose of or obte
accurate quotations as to the price of the seearitiat are classified as penny stocks. The “petogk” rules adopted by the Commission undei
Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (tkkeH&nhge Act”),subject the sale of the shares of penny stock isgoeregulations that impose si
practice requirements on broker-dealers, causingyrbaokerdealers to not trade penny stocks or to only dffierstocks to sophisticated investors
meet specified net worth or net income criteriantdfeed by the Commission. These regulations dbate to the lack of liquidity of penny stocks.

At the present time, transactions in our CommorciStre not subject to the “penny stoakiles because our average revenue for 2009, 204 @@k
exceeded $6 million per year. However, there aandoassurance that transactions in our Commork Stiicnot be subject to the “penny stockiles ir
the future.

The average daily trading volume of our Common Stme the over-the&ounter market was less than 35,000 shares peowdaythe three months enc
March 6, 2012. If limited trading in our stock ¢wmes, it may be difficult for investors to sefieir shares in the public market at any given tad
prevailing prices.

Our management and larger stockholders exercise sigicant control over our Company.

As of March 6, 2012, our named executive officelisgctors and 5% stockholders beneficially ownegragimately 24.3%of our voting power. For tt
foreseeable future, to the extent that these aviite similarly, they may be able to exercise ifigant control over many matters requiring apprdvg
the board of directors or our stockholders. Assult, they may be able to:

« control the composition of our board of directors;

« control our management and policies;

« determine the outcome of significant corporategdaations, including changes in control that mayp&eeficial to stockholders; and

« act in each of their own interests, which may donflith, or be different from, the interests othather or the interests of the other stockhol
ITEM 2. PROPERTIES
Our administrative offices and research facilitiee located in Medford, New York. We lease apprately 28,000 square feet of industrial spac
$18,223 per month. The space is utilized for nedeand development activities (approximately 4,%60are feet), offices (approximately 4,640 sq
feet) and production (approximately 19,200 squast)f The lease term expires on April 30, 201We have entered into two additional leases: tis
effective on November 1, 2011, covering 2,000 aduditl square feet; and the second signed on Deaeh®e2011, effective January 1, 2012, cove
2,600 additional square feet; principal terms efthleases are the same as the one entered 2269rwhich was as follows: (a) a lease term endipgl
30, 2014; (b) an initial rent of $11,350 per month) the monthly rent for year two of the leasdl imcrease by the lower of (i) the change in tbesume
price index, or (ii) five percent; and (d) the midgtrent for years three through five of the leaskincrease each year by the lower of (i) theradain th
consumer price index, or (ii) two and one half patc Additional space may be required as we expgamdproduction and research and develop
activities. We do not foresee any significantidiffties in obtaining any required additional fécss.
ITEM 3. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS
From time to time, we may be involved in litigatioelating to claims arising out of our operationstiie normal course of business. We know ¢
material, existing or pending legal proceedingsraiais, nor are we involved as a plaintiff in angterial proceeding or pending litigation. There ac
proceedings in which any of our directors, officersaffiliates, or any registered or beneficial rgtmlder, is an adverse party or has a materiatést the
is adverse to our interest.
ITEM 4. MINE SAFETY DISCLOSURES

Not Applicable.
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PART Il

ITEM 5. MARKET FOR REGISTRANT'S COMMON EQUITY, RELATED STOC KHOLDER MATTERS AND ISSUER PURCHASES OF
EQUITY SECURITIES

Market Information

Our stock is quoted on the OTCQB, which is the sdcof the three tiers of the OTC Market Group, urttie symbol “CEMI.” Prior to February 2
2011, our stock was quoted on the OTC Bulletin Boafhe table below sets forth the high and low fimides per share of our common stock for
guarter of our two most recently completed fiscahng. These prices represent imtealer quotations without retail markup, markdowncommissio
and may not necessarily represent actual transectio

Fiscal Year 2011 High Bid Low Bid
First Quarter $ 50C % .39C
Second Quarter $ 58C $ .41C
Third Quarter $ 48C $ .41C
Fourth Quarter $ A48C 3 .36C
Fiscal Year 201C High Bid Low Bid
First Quartel $ 33C % .20C
Second Quarte $ 28C $ .15¢
Third Quartel $ 29C % .21C
Fourth Quarte $ 490 3 .22E

We are considering alternative markets for our lstaecluding but not limited to NASDAQ and NYSEmex. At the most recent annual meetin
Chembio shareholders in September 2011, sharekaigianted authority to our board of directors tieatfiate a reverse split of the Compangbmmo
stock without further shareholder approval reqlir@his authority was granted for the two yearigubfollowing the date of the authorization, fc
reverse split in the range between, and includfivgg-to-one and fifteen-t@ne. At the current level of its stock price, tBempany would need
undertake a reverse stock split in order to hastaek price sufficient to qualify for listing on NSDAQ or NYSE-Amex.
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Rule 15¢9 of the Securities and Exchange Commission, knasvthe Penny Stock Rule, imposes requirements akelidealers who sell securities 1
are subject to this rule to persons other tharbisteed customers and accredited investors (A<atdd below, the Penny Stock Rule currently doe
apply tp Chembio.) For transactions covered byrtie, brokers/dealers must make a special suigbliétermination for purchasers of the securitiag
receive the purchaser'written agreement to the transaction prior tee.sdlhe Securities and Exchange Commission alsorhias that regula
broker/dealer practices in connection with trarisastin “penny stocks.’Penny stocks generally are defined under this aslequity securities with
price of less than $5.00 (other than securitiessteged on certain national securities exchangeguoted on the NASDAQ system, provided that cu
price and volume information with respect to tratisms in that security is provided by the exchangsystem), except for securities of companiet
have tangible net assets in excess of $2,000,0@@amge revenue of at least $6,000,000 for theique three years. The Penny Stock Rule requ
broker/ dealer, prior to a transaction in a pertogls not otherwise exempt from the rules, to deli@estandardized risk disclosure document preply
the Commission that provides information about gesiocks and the nature and level of risks in theny stock market. The broker/dealer also

provide the customer with current bid and offer tations for the penny stock, the compensation efittoker/dealer and its salesperson in the traiosg
and monthly account statements showing the mariketevof each penny stock held in the customeccount. The bid and offer quotations, ant
broker/dealer and salesperson compensation infamatust be given to the customer orally or inting prior to effecting the transaction and mus
given to the customer in writing before or with #hestomers confirmation. These disclosure requirements lilageeffect of reducing the level of trad
activity in the secondary market for penny stockues. As a result of these rules, investors somestifind it difficult to sell shares of penny st
issuers. At the present time, transactions inamnmon stock are not subject to the Penny Stock BRetause our average revenue for 2009, 201
2011 exceeded $6 million per year. However, tlvarebe no assurance that transactions in our consteck will not be subject to the Penny Stock |
in the future.

Holders
As of March 1, 2012, there were approximately 1,B&5brd owners of our common stock .
Dividends

The Company has never paid cash dividends on fitsr@n stock and has no plans to do so in the foabdeduture.

ITEM 6. SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA

Presented in this table are selected financial fdatédne past five years ended December 31, 2011.
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CHEMBIO DIAGNOSTICS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

SELECTED HISTORICAL FINANCIAL DATA

Statement of Operations Data:

December 31, 20. December 31, 20. December 31, 20(

As of and For the Years Endec

December 31, 20(

December 31, 20(

TOTAL REVENUES $ 19,388,03 $ 16,704,70

GROSS MARGIN 9,390,30: 8,100,69!

OPERATING COSTS:

Research and development exper 4,878,11 2,586,30:!

Selling, general and administrative

expenses 3,424,29 2,940,72.
8,302,41! 5,527,02!

INCOME (LOSS) FROM

OPERATIONS 1,087,88 2,573,671

OTHER INCOME (EXPENSES): (12,329 (14,507

INCOME (LOSS) BEFORE

INCOME TAXES 1,075,56: 2,559,16'

Income tax (benefit) provisic (5,133,22) 45,82

Effect of preferred stock conversion

2007 - -

NET INCOME (LOSS) $ 6,208,79. 2,513,34

Basic income (loss) per shar $ 0.1C 0.04

Diluted income (loss) per share $ 0.0¢ 0.04

Weighted average number of share

outstanding, basic 62,998,40 62,102,86

Weighted average number of share

outstanding, diluted 68,450,22 70,920,91

Balance Sheet Data:

Working capital $ 6,133,95 $ 4,560,27

Total asset 15,485,74 9,086,17-

Total liabilities 2,991,111 3,277,23!

Shareholders' equi 12,494,63. 5,808,94.
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48%

15%

18%

$ 13,834,24 $ 11,049,57

35%

24%

3C%

$ 9,230,94

15%

(1,948,77) -18%

$

$

$

$ 1,493,97

$ 1,663,91

$ 3,228,72

3C%

21%

41%

(2,626,89) -28%

$ (1,948,77) -18%3 (8,272,20) -9C%




ITEM 7. MANAGEMENT 'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AN D RESULTS OF OPERATIONS
Overview

This discussion and analysis should be read inuomtipn with the accompanying Consolidated Findristatements and related notes. Our discussio
analysis of our financial condition and resultpgrations are based upon our consolidated finbsigtements, which have been prepared in accoe
with accounting principles generally accepted ig thnited States. The preparation of financial statets in conformity with accounting princip
generally accepted in the United States of Ameamggpuires us to make estimates and assumptiongffieat the reported amounts of assets and lisds
disclosure of any contingent liabilities at thedfirtial statement date and reported amounts of vevand expenses during the reporting period. C
ongoing basis, we review our estimates and assongtOur estimates are based on our historicalriqme and other assumptions that we believe
reasonable under the circumstances. Actual reatdttikely to differ from those estimates undefat#nt assumptions or conditions, but we do naeke
such differences will materially affect our finaakiposition or results of operations. Our critiegicounting policies, the policies we believe arest
important to the presentation of our financial eta¢nts and require the most difficult, subjectind aomplex judgments, are outlined below i@ritical
Accounting Policies,” and have not changed sigaifitly.

In addition, certain statements made in this repoaly constitute “forward-looking statements”. Téderwardiooking statements involve known
unknown risks, uncertainties and other factors thay cause the actual results, performance or aetments of the Company to be materially diffe
from any future results, performance or achievemerpressed or implied by the forwdadking statements. These factors include, amohgrst 1) oL
ability to obtain necessary regulatory approvatsofar products; and 2) our ability to increase rexes and operating income, which is dependent opc
ability to develop and sell our products, geneanmmic conditions, and other factors. You can fifigfiorward4ooking statements by terminology si
as “may,” “could”, “will,” “should,” “expects,” “irtends,” “plans,” “anticipates,” “believes,” “estines,” “predicts,” “potential,” “continuesdr the
negative of these terms or other comparable terdmgyo Although we believe that the expectationdexed in the forwardeoking statements &

reasonable, we cannot guarantee future resullsle¥ activity, performance or achievements.

Except as may be required by applicable law, wendbundertake or intend to update or revise ouwdwd{ooking statements, and we assum
obligation to update any forwatdeking statements contained in this report assaltef new information or future events or develgmts. Thus, yc
should not assume that our silence over time m#wtsactual events are bearing out as expressedptied in such forwardeoking statements. Y
should carefully review and consider the variouscldisures we make in this report and our other rtepiiled with the Securities and Excha
Commission that attempt to advise interested madie¢he risks, uncertainties and other factorsthey affect our business.

All of the Company’s future products that are cothebeing developed are based on its patented Patl Platform (DPP®hich is a unique diagnos
point-of-care platform that has certain advantages ovetalaflew technology. The Company has completedettgyment of several products that em|
the DPP® technology, two of which will be marketatler Chembio’s label (DPP® HIV 1/2 Screening Asaagt DPP@Syphilis Screen & Confirm) ai
several others that have been developed spedffitted to private label agreements with The @dav&€ruz Foundation (“FIOCRUZ"or the Brazilial
public health market, as explained below.

All of the Company’s products other than its latdlaw tests (see PRODUCTS and Our Rapid Test Teldyies) are based on the Companpatente
Dual Path Platform (DPP®pechnology. The Company has had very active rebeand development programs and has significamtityeased i
spending on research and development during théheee years. Thirgharty funding from research and development cotdrand grants have offse
significant portion of these increased researchdeatlopment expenses. Externally funded R&D o were particularly instrumental in helping
Company to avoid raising capital during 200&t0, which was a very difficult period for fundsaig. Moreover these collaborations have resuh
significant third party validations of our DPR@chnology and an increasing capability to devetopnufacture, validate, and improve current andré
DPP® products and product features.

The Company has a number of additional producteudedvelopment that employ the DPR®hnology. These product development activitresfarthe
described below.

DPP® Leptospirosis -Our work under the thregear $3 million Small Business Innovative ResedBBIR) Phase Il grant we were awarded in 2
by the United States National Institutes of HedltiH) to fully develop, validate, and commercialiaerapid diagnostic test for Leptospirosis
general use worldwide is progressing on schedulevamexpect to complete this grant in the secoradtguof 2012. The test is being developed
our DPP®technology utilizes proprietary reagents developgdYale University and the Oswaldo Cruz Foundatirthe Brazilian Ministry c
Health. Development of the test has been in cotiaiion with the Division of Infectious Diseasesal& University in New Haven, CT and

Oswaldo Cruz Foundation, the largest biomedicaagsh institution in Latin America.
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DPP® Tuberculosis —As reported in February 2011, we were awarded eetygar $2.9 million, subsequently reduced to $2.4ioni] Smal
Business Innovative Research (SBIR) Phase Il dram the United States National Institutes of HedNIH) to continue development of a sim|
rapid, accurate, and cost-effective serological fes active tuberculosis that can be utilized esourcdimited settings. During 2011 we he
screened and identified TB antigens useful forlsgioal assay in caperation with Infectious Disease Research Insti{lDRI) and during 2012 v
intend to continue development of a POC test watk PP technology.

Battelle/CDC DPP® Influenza Immunity Test — In 2010, we received approximately $804,000 fronitdke Memorial Institute pursuant tc
development contract for an Influenza Immunity .tebhis is a multiplex antibody detection test tieatild be used in connection with pande
influenza preparedness strategies to determinesexedo various strains of influenza in differemographic regions or in different populatior
demographic segments. Upon completing this worlary 2011 we provided prototype tests kits asiireq by the contract. These prototypes \
evaluated by Battelle and by the CDC and, basati@satisfactory results of these prototypes, wtered into an amendment of this contract that
to begin in November 2011 to continue additiodavelopment work for this product in the fourth gdea of 2011 and the first quarter
2012. However, due to a delay in our contractmeag obtaining access to certain biomarkers negefsathe project to proceed, this developn
work has been postponed at least through thedfiratter of 2012.

Qualifying Therapeutic Discovery Projects -On November 1, 2010, the Company was notified BylRS that it received awards in the total am
of $1.467 million relating to six "Qualifying Thepautic Discovery Projects" under the U.S. Patigotdtion and Affordable Care Act of 2010 (F
111-148), a program that was created as part ahtijer United States federal health care refornslagion enacted earlier that year.

Under the award guidelines, qualified therapeutscalvery projects had to show a reasonable potewtieesult in hew therapies to treat area
unmet medical need or to prevent, detect or treatréc or acute diseases and conditions, reducéotigeterm growth of health care costs in
United States, or significantly advance the goaturing cancer within 30 years. Chembio's projéictd received awards include products base
the Company's patented DPP(r) pointeafe diagnostic platform that are in various staiféts development pipeline such as its produatdte rapi
diagnosis of HIV, Hepatitis-C, and Syphilis.

Other Research & Development Activities -We are considering certain new DPR®&duct opportunities, either as OEM developmeafgut:
and/or as Chembibranded products. These products are being idshtifased upon our assessment of opportunitidgeimiarket and upon whetl
they can be addressed with our proprietary teclyyl@long with our development and manufacturiagabilities and experience. We are
identifying and assessing additional technologlest tve believe could provide us with additional darets, and capabilities, and thereby pro
additional revenue streams.

Chembio continues to work with commercial, governtak and private organizations in order to obtai®DRcontracts and grant funding -
development projects. These programs have subsidize Company’s development expenses while expgritie applications for and knolew
related to DPP®, while also creating importantaodirative relationships.

There can be no assurance that any of these grplitations will result in any funding awards tet@ompany, nor that any of the existing rese
and development contracts or grants will continuthat they will meet regulatory or any other teicahrequirements and specifications, and/or tf
continued, will result in completed products, aatteuch products, if they are successfully comglatan or will be successfully commercialized.

Regulatory Activities

CE Mark for FDA-approved HIV tests — The final studies for the CE Marking requirementhjch we have been pursuing for some time, °
submitted to our notified body during October 20However, due to the length of time it has takerathieve this regulatory approval, and
additional fees requested by our notified bodyetgaw our file again with the supplemental datauessjed, we decided to reassess the justificati
this. During this reassessment we also becameeasfaa new submissions strategy, as well as paleméiw marketing opportunities for rapid F
testing in certain markets in Europe. As a res@ltare in discussions with respect to this new ssiion strategy and we are more optimistic bot
our prospects for CE Marking and for the outlook dommercial opportunities in Europe. We expechave an updated timetable and outlool
this project during the second quarter.

Regulatory Approvals in Brazil through the OswaldoCruz Foundation (FIOCRUZ) — During 2011 we received notification from FIOCRUxzi
our DPP® Syphilis Treponemal screening test and our DR@tospirosis tests were each approved by Bratétional Health Surveillance Ager
(ANVISA). Also during 2011 our DPP® visceral caeiteishmania rapid test was approved by Bradinistry of Agriculture, Livestock and Fo
Supply ("MAPA"). This is the first diagnostic procithat FIOCRUZ has successfully submitted for appl to MAPA in Brazil.
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FDA Approval for DPP® HIV 1/2 Screening Assay -We began submitting the PMA (Pkéarketing Approval) application to the FDA usinge
Modular PMA option, and we have thus far submitiodule | containing manufacturing information andddle Il containing norlinical data
which was submitted in the beginning of October20We have enrolled 98% of the 3,000 patient clihfrial. We expect the trial to be complete
soon as possible depending on the recruitmentofatiee remaining pediatric enrolees. We contimuéé satisfied with the results and believe
continue to support product performance that widletnor exceed requirement for a PMA approval ot ftwad, finger-stick whole blood, venor
whole blood, serum and plasma samples. Assumirly By completion, we would submit Module Il tbhe FDA during the second quartel
2012. Based on statutory FDA timetables, we waulticipate an FDA approval at least on an apprav&dA decision well before year end.
would then immediately apply for CLIA waiver, whithexpected to take approximately three monttxetgranted.

Syphilis - As a result of our having received a CE Mark fag tiroduct in Q3'11 and our business developmenttefiuring Q4'11, we have n
established several European distributors forphigluct. Product evaluations are being completderamce and the UK. In the U.S. we have dec
to incorporate a reader for the U.S. market produnct as an option in Europe. We believe this héltter ensure that there will be an accep
agreement of our test results to the legacy RPRésslts which is the reference for the noeponemal marker on our dual marker test. Weadj)
are manufacturing large volumes of a visually resehonemabnly test for Brazil with outstanding performan@ais product would be an alternat
pathway to bringing a syphilis POCT to the U.S. kear However such a test, like the laboratory drepnal tests, would not differentiate betw
active and previous infections, which are a pref@rfieature at least for testing in higher prevaeacd risk groups. Assuming we can succes:
incorporate the reader, we believe we can compieteelinical trials and make the 510(k) submisdimithe FDA for this product in 2012. Theref
FDA 510(k) clearance could be within the first haflf2013 followed by commercial launch in the US.

Sure Check® HIV OTC Study - We have made progress toward completing theirements for submitting an IDE (“Investigational \Dee
Exemption”)application. This exemption must be granted ireotd begin clinical studies that would be necaessagain FDA approval of this pro
which approval could take two or three years fromtime that we initiate such clinical studies. Bétieve that this year (2012) there will be extérna
events that will help us to better define the madgportunity. This principally includes a meetiofgthe FDA's Blood Products Advisory Committe
not determined yet) that is likely to result inimal recommendation concerning the application bgsQre Technologies for OTC use of its oral flu
test. Assuming it is recommended, and the produatiually launched, we will be able to assessrtheket approach and its reception by their targ
consumers. This information will help us before @eenmit additional significant sums to this prograWve can do this knowing that we are the only
company other than this competitor that has a @etiat is qualified to begin the studies necessagain OTC approval.

Since our meeting with the FDA in October 2011 vahitarified the regulatory pathway to commercidii@a, we continue to make progress tow.
the HIV rapid test for Over-the-Counter (OTC) mark&/e have completed the “instructional manual’ fmme-testing using the Flesttincaid
readability tests. The initial validation on thentprehension of the manual has been initiatederfitet quarter of 2012 using groups identifiedidg
our market research (completed in 2011), this gmilipcomprise of individuals with limited educatieand/or English as a second language.

In addition to making progress towards the regulapmth for commercialization, we are actively wiatkwith public health agencies to begin stu
in 2012. The objective of these studies is to wstdad the barriers and facilitators to uptake hossting and other strategies that can be empltm
prevention and care of certain demographics attosklIV infection. These studies, while providiimvaluable health care strategies, can prc
feedback to Chembio to improve upon or validatedhbsign of the product to assure it remains safeedfective in a nomprofessional laborato
setting.

Recent Events

In accordance with the terms of the Compar8008 Stock Incentive Plan, on February 16, 2€H&2 Company determined to grant on February 162,
to certain employees of the Company, options telmse an aggregate of 203,125 shares of the Congpemymon stock. The exercise price for t
options was to be equal to the last traded pricéhfe Companys common stock on February 16, 2012, which was5it ler share. The options bect
exercisable on the effective date of the grantchEaption granted will expire and terminate, if eaercised sooner, upon the earlier to occur o8Qajay
after termination of the employeeemployment with the Company or (b) the fifth arensary of the effective date of the grant. Thkofeing table
identifies the portions of these options issuedffizers of the Company.

Name of Executive Officer Number of Shares of Common Stock Option
Richard Bruce- Vice President of Operatior 20,500
Javan Esfandia— Executive Vice President of R& 63,750
Tom Ippolito- Vice President of Regulatory Affairs, QA & G 24,000
Richard J. Larkir— Chief Financial Office 22,375
Lawrence A. Sieber Chief Executive Office 72,500
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RESULTS OF OPERATIONS FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2011 AS COMPARED WITH THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31,
2010

Income:

Income before income taxes for the year ended Dkeeil, 2011 decreased to $1,076,000 from $2,569@0the year ended December 31, 2010.
Income increased from $2.5 million for 2010 to $M®lion for 2011 despite the decrease in incom®igetaxes. The increase in income is attributéd
a $5.1 million addition resulting from the parte&imination of the tax valuation allowance. In 20hs a result of a 28.9% increase in Net Prochiet
and a 38.4% decrease in nproduct revenues, the Company had a $1,290,0015.68%6, increase in its gross margin, to $9,390,00is increased gra
margin funded increased operating expenses, thesigrsficant of which was increase clinical treatpenses of $590,000. Also, during the fourth g
of 2010, the Company was awarded $1,467,000 ofifgacallherapeutic Discovery Project grants whictueed R&D Expense in 2010.

Revenues:
Selected Product Categories: For the years ended
December 31, 201 December 31, 201! $ Change % Change

Lateral Flow HIV Tests and Components $ 12,865,54 $ 12,111,56 $ 753,98: 6.2%
DPP Tests and Component 4,255,03: 628,10: 3,626,93. 577.4%%
Other 301,73¢ 776,69¢ (474,96() -61.15%
Net Product Sales 17,422,31 13,516,35 3,905,95: 28.9(%
License and royalty revenue 140,32: 432,23t (291,916 -67.5%
R&D, milestone and grant revenue 1,825,40: 2,756,101 (930,709 -33.71%
Total Revenues $ 19,388,03 $ 16,704,70 $ 2,683,33. 16.06%

Revenues for our lateral flow HIV tests and relatechponents during the year ended December 31, P@tdased by $754,000 over the same peri
2010. This was primarily attributable to increasades in the U.S., through Alere, of $1,928,0004sia of $1,665,000, and increased sales to Mexd
$874,000, partially offset by decreased sales tacAfof $3,789,000. These increases were part@ffiset by reduced other sales, which decreasi
61%, or $475,000. Sales of our DPP® products itldAcreased by $3,627,000, or 577%, comparedviddeén 2010. Most of the DPP@oduct sold i
2011 related to products that were approved fag BaBrazil as compared to products sold in 201Bictv sales primarily related to products use:
FIOCRUZ in evaluations and submissions to Brazitiegulatory agencies for approval. The decrea$®8ib, milestone and grant revenue was primi
due to $1,221,000 earned in 2010 as a result ofdh#pletion of certain milestones, versus $570j602011. In addition $804,000 in 2010 from Ba#
for influenza immunity test was not repeated in ROR&D revenues in 2011 also include funds, reaehon an “as expenses are incurredsis, from
Phase Il NIH grant for Leptospirosis, which waseefive as of June 1, 2009, and from a Phase lItdoariTuberculosis which was effective Marct
2011. License and royalty revenue in 2010 inclugespayments of $340,000 from BRad pursuant to the License Agreement we signeld thvém ir
January 2009, partially offsetting this decreass imareased royalties of $48,000 from Brazil unmar 2004 technology transfer and license agreement.

Gross Margin:

Gross Margin related to Net Product Sales For the years endec
December 31, 2011 December 31, 2010 $ Change % Change
Gross Margin per Statement of Operations $ 9,390,30: $ 8,100,69' $ 1,289,60. 15.92%
Less: R&D, milestone, grant, license and
royalties 1,965,72! 3,188,34 (1,222,61) -38.35%
Gross Margin from Net Product Sales $ 742457 $ 491235 $ 2,512,22. 51.1/%
Gross Margin % 42.62% 36.3%%

The gross margin increase included a 51.14% iner@agross margin from product sales, thereby rttuaia offsetting a 38.35% decrease in non-product
revenues. The 51.14% increase in our product gnasgin was primarily due to the increase in prodatés and from the mix of products sold in 2011,
which included more products sold in the U.S, Brazj and Asian markets, at more favorable margiss;ompared to 2010, when more products were
sold to the African region which sales tend to bsemewhat lower margins.

25




Research and Development:

This category includes costs incurred for prodasearch and development, regulatory approvalsniealsupport, evaluations and registrations.

Selected expense lines: For the years ended
December 31, 201 December 31, 201! $ Change % Change

Clinical and Regulatory Affairs:
Wages and related cost $ 465,68¢ $ 424,03t $ 41,65( 9.82%
Consulting 7,67 30,52¢ (22,849 -74.8%%
Stock-based compensation 18,85¢ 11,88: 6,977 58.72%
Clinical trials 1,244,23! 654,25! 589,98¢ 90.18%
Other 58,19! 74,25¢ (16,067) -21.62%
Total Regulatory 1,794,65. 1,194,95. 599,70: 50.1%%
R&D Other than Regulatory:
Wages and related costs 2,145,37 1,889,70: 255,67" 13.5%
Consulting 68,79! 19,43( 49,36: 254.0%
Stock-based compensatioi 36,76t 73,65¢ (36,89) -50.09%
Materials and supplies 552,45¢ 635,91: (83,459 -13.12%
Other 280,07 239,53! 40,54 16.97%
Total other than Regulatory 3,083,46! 2,858,23. 225,23; 7.86%

$ 4,878,111 $ 4,053,18 $ 824,93! 20.35%
Less: QTDP grant - 1,466,87 (1,466,87) -100.0(%
Total Research and Development $ 4.878,11' $ 2,586,300 $ 2,291,81. 88.61%

Expenses for Clinical & Regulatory Affairs for tigear ended December 31, 2011 increased by $60a966mpared to the same period in 2010. Thit
primarily due to expenses we incurred in 2011 florical trials conducted for our DPP®IV Screen Assay. In addition, wages and relatestcals
contributed to the increase.

R&D expenses other than Clinical & Regulatory Affaincreased by $225,000 in the year ended DeceBiher011 as compared with the same peri
2010 and were primarily related to an increase @ms@nnel and consulting expenses, partially offsetdecreases in material costs and stoage
compensation.

On November 1, 2010, the Company was notified ley IRS that it received awards in the total amoudn$1467 million relating to six Qualifying
Therapeutic Discovery Projects” under the U.S.dratProtection and Affordable Care Act of 2010 (PLL1148), a program that was created as ps
the major United States federal health care reflegislation enacted earlier in 2010. The $1.46[ioni reduced R&D expenses in the fourth quarte
2010. This grant was not renewed for 2011.

Research and development expenses, before the @Td® net of revenues from R&D, milestones andhigrdsee sub-headirigevenuesbove) wa
$3,053,000 for the year ended December 31, 201,B78400 less $1,825,000, this includes clinicalgrof $1,244,000 and does not include the Q
reduction) compared to $1,297,000 ($4,053,000325856,000, this includes clinical trials of $650) for the same period in 2010.  This demotes
that the Company has not just maintained, butdhias increased its investment in Research & D@weént personnel and materials, after accountir
outside clinical trial expenses, even with lowerarues supporting these activities. This has edalbrk to be done on developing a pipeline of Ciiie
branded products, and also to support the traasf@validation of such new products into our macufiang operation.
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Selling, General and Administrative Expense:

Selected expense line: For the years endec
December 31, 201 December 31, 201! $ Change % Change

Wages and related costs $ 1,24990 $ 1,076,44 $ 173,46: 16.11%
Consulting 199,65¢ 215,39: (15,739 -7.3(%
Commissons 603,37" 183,76: 419,61! 228.3%
Stock-based compensatioi 115,47¢ 64,42¢ 51,047 79.2%
Marketing materials 50,90( 17,627 33,27: 188.7(%
Investor relations/investment bankers 176,29 197,18: (20,88¢) -10.5%%
Legal, accounting and SOX 404 complianc 448,67¢ 563,27" (114,60) -20.3%%
Travel, entertainment and trade shows 67,50¢ 59,00t 8,501 14.41%
Bad Debt Allowance (5,000 - (5,000 100.0(%
Other 517,50: 563,60« (46,10°) -8.1%
Total S, G &A $ 3,42429 $ 2,940,72. $ 483,57¢ 16.4%

Selling, general and administrative expenses ferygar ended December 31, 2011 increased by 16s48rapared with the same period in 2010.

was primarily due to increases in commission experfs$420,000 primarily on sales to Brazil, wagesl related expenses of $173,000, stoa&e
compensation of $51,000 and marketing material$3%,000, partially offset by decreases in invesadations of $21,000, consulting of $16,000
legal, accounting and SOX 404 expenses of $115,000.

Other Income and Expense:

For the years endec

December 31, 201. December 31, 201! $ Change % Change
Other income (expense) $ - $ (3,927 $ 3,92¢ -100.0(%
Interest income 6,29¢ 4,145 2,151 51.81%
Interest expense (18,629 (14,729 (3,896 26.4%%
Total Other Income and (Expense $ (12,32 $ (14,50) $ 2,17¢ -15.02%

Other (expense) for the year ended December 311, R@teased approximately $2,200 to $12,300 as eoedpwith $14,500 for the same period in 2
primarily as a result of the loss on the sale ohsset in 2010 of $3,900 not repeated in 2011 aridaease in interest income of $2,100, partiaffge
by increased interest expense of $3,900 due ttetheloan with HSBC.

Income tax (benefit) provision:

Prior to 2011 and through September 30, 2011, tragany had a full valuation allowance recorded regjaileferred tax assets. In the fourth quart
2011, based on our sustained profitable operaterfppnance over the past three years and our pedititlook for taxable income in the future,
Company reevaluated its deferred tax asset. Baged the guidance under ASC 740, we concluded thaa$ more likely than not that the Comp
would realize the benefit of such deferred tax @stke Company reversed $5,156,000 of the valnailowance previously recorded against its dedl
tax assets, which resulted in a tax benefit ineeéaset income of that amount. It also increakedCompany's book value by that amount. The ded
tax asset will be amortized against future incomeexpense that would be payable in the absent®eaiet operating loss carryforward. The Com,
still maintains a full valuation allowance on resgeand development tax credits.

27




MATERIAL CHANGES IN FINANCIAL CONDITION

Selected Changes in Financial Condition As of
December 31, 201. December 31, 201! $ Change % Change

Cash and cash equivalel 3,010,95 $ 2,136,35. $ 874,60 40.9%
Accounts receivable, net of allowance for doubt

accounts of $30,000 and $35,000 for 2011 ar

2010, respectivel 2,998,44 3,946,39: (947,949 -24.02%
Inventories 2,300,28: 1,349,16: 951,12¢ 70.5(%
Prepaid expenses and other current a: 681,89: 204,82« 477,06¢ 232.9%
Fixed assets, net of accumulated deprecit 1,062,271 813,21« 249,06: 30.6%%
Deposits on manufacturing equipm 139,79( - 139,79( 100.0(%
Deferred tax asset, net of valuation allowa 4,749,62. - 4,749,62. 100.0(%
Accounts payable and accrued liabilit 2,789,501 2,055,94. 733,55 35.6&%
License fee payab - 875,00( (875,000 -100.0(%

Cash increased by $875,000 from December 31, 3@rifarily due to the collection of accounts reckieawhich decreased by $948,000 along wit
increase in accounts payable of $734,000, partiaflyet by an increase in inventories of $951,006 ay the payment to BiRad of $875,000 (s
reduction in license fee payable). Prepaid expemsereased primarily due to the current portiontted deferred tax asset. The Company inv
$289,000 in fixed assets and deposits in fixedtasse

The decrease in accounts receivable was primatilibatable to a large amount of credit sales inc&@eber of 2010 which were collected in 2
compared to a large amount of December 2011 ssdese of which were prepaid. The increase in adsopayable and in inventories were both prim.
due to a larger amount of materials ordered andufaatured for orders due to ship in the first geadf 2012.

In addition, the increase in deferred tax ass@0ihl, net of valuation allowance, was a direct ltesfuthe Company's reversal of $5,156,000 in atir
allowance previously recorded against its defetagdhssets as discussed earlier.

LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

For the years ended

December 31, 201. December 31, 201! $ Change % Change
Net cash provided by operating activities $ 2,268,40i $ 1,016,85 $ 1,251,55i 123.0¢%
Net cash used in investing activitie (726,68() (182,29)) (544,38 298.6%
Net cash (used in) provided by financing
activities (667,125 233,55¢ (900,68 -385.6%
INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH
EQUIVALENTS $ 874,60 $ 1,068,111 $ (193,51)) -18.12%

The Company had an increase in cash for each ojahes ended December 31, 2011 and 2010 which prararily attributable to cash provided
operations. The increased cash from operation®iri 2vas primarily attributable to net income fromemations of $1,088,000. In addition, opere
activities contributing to the increase in cash2®ll included an increase in accruals and payatfléb734,000 and a decrease in receivable
$953,000. These increases were partially offseabyncrease in inventories of $951,000, an ineeéaprepaid expenses of $71,000 and an increi
other assets of $6,000, as well as a decreasefénrele revenue of $65,000. The Company’s nash expenses totaled $622,000, which consist
$338,000 from depreciation expense, $189,000 iokdbased compensation expense and $100,000 in thetizamion of licenses, partially offset by
decrease in allowance for doubtful accounts of 5,0 Investing activities represent the Comparigvestment in fixed assets. The cash used amdim¢
activities is primarily due to the payment to Biad of $875,000 (see reduction in license fee dayand partially offset by proceeds from the eiszro
options and warrants of $288,000.

As of December 31, 2011, the Company had paid dspms various pieces of equipment aggregating ¥I3M) which is reflected in Other Assets on

balance sheet. The Company is further committeahtadditional equipmemurchase obligation of $152,000 as various milestcare achieved by 1
various vendors
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RECENT DEVELOPMENTS AND CHEMBIO’S PLAN OF OPERATION S FOR THE NEXT TWELVE MONTHS
2011 RESULTS

In 2011 Chembio achieved record product revenue/tiref 28.9%, funded increased development expersesdelivered strong Income before inc
taxes of $1,076,000. A $3,906,000, or 28.9%, iaseein Net Product sales offset a $1,223,000 dserianonproduct revenues. This resulted in
Company producing a $1,290,000, or 15.9%, incr@aie gross margin, to a record $9,390,000.

In the fourth quarter of 2011, based on our susthprofitable operating performance over the gastet years and our positive outlook for taxabl@ine
in the future, the Company reevaluated its defetagdasset. Based on anticipated continued philiitathe Company believes it is more likely thaat
that it will realize these tax benefits and accogtif has reversed $5,156,000 of the valuation alwwe previously recorded against the deferre
assets. This reversal of the tax valuation allavearesulted in an addition of $5.1 million to then@panys net income for 2011. The Company
maintains a full valuation allowance on researath @evelopment tax credits.

The Company generated $2,268,000 in cash flow foperations in 2011, more than doubling its previmeord of $1,107,000 in 2010. The Comg
utilized portions of this cash flow from operatiots fund an $875,000 license obligation and to &v$727,000 in new equipment and fac
improvements that are expected to improve effigeshand increase capacity to serve current andipated demand.

The record product and resulting record total reresnwere achieved as a result of the launch ofdbour DPP®products in Brazil combined with strc
sales growth for our two FDApproved rapid HIV tests in the US market. Weéased sales to FIOCRUZ to $4,255,000 in 2011 fr628%00 in 201(
a 577% increase, substantially exceeding the $Bomilve anticipated in June 2011. Sales of our Fapproved rapid HIV tests in the US through
agreements with Alere increased $1,928,000 to erde®7,209,000, a 36.5% increase over 2010. Thimgtincrease provides us with strong eviden
continued growth in the U.S. rapid HIV test markaatd that growth is being captured at this timeoby two outstanding lateral flow products distriéa
by Alere under their Clearview® label, as our cotitpes’ sales were essentially flat during 2011. Our mmadional lateral flow HIV test revent
decreased somewhat as doharded markets experienced uncertainties geneaalty in the markets we were participating in paldcuNeverthele:
during the year we significantly strengthened axgl@ded our distribution network and resulting nedirkg opportunities, giving us some optimism f
potential resurgence in these sales during 2012.

PLAN OF OPERATIONS FOR THE NEXT TWELVE MONTHS

The 3,000 patient study we commenced in 2010 ipeumf a Pre-Marketing Application approval forrddPP®HIV Screening Assay for use with @
fluid or blood samples is nearly complete. Oncecamplete these trials we will need approximatdlydays to submit the third and final module of
PMA to the FDA. Within 180 days we expect that EFi2A will respond to our PMA application. The inteof the modular submission is to increase
possibility that we will receive such response syahan the 180 day statutory period though thimisrequired and cannot be assured. Neverthele
believe that we will submit and get this respongdl within the 2012 calendar year.
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As a result of our having received a CE Mark for 8yphilis Screen & Confirm product in Q3'11 and business development efforts during Q4'11
have now established several European distribdtorshis product. Product evaluations are being gleted in France and the UK. Assuming we
successfully incorporate the reader into our UliBical trials, we believe that we can complete dfeical trials and make the 510(k) submissiorthe
FDA for this product during 2012. Therefore FDA @0clearance could be within the first half of 30followed by commercial launch in 1
US. Alternatively we could decide to pursue a é@regmal-only product in the U.S. We are alreadydpoing large quantities of the treponemaly
screening test for FIOCRUZ with excellent performman

The Company has a number of new product opporasithd new product features that could resultin rewenue streams in future periods. In each
these would utilize our patented DPPR&tform to develop proprietary products, and calkb combine additional proprietary features sagliomarkel

in collaboration with others or other features waynadd to our platform technology. These produdlisbe developed either under the Chembio BPP
brand or the brands of potential OEM customers itmedrporate our DPP@&ademark. We are working on a number of new fa@kprojects in thi
regard and in some cases conducting feasibilitdissu These include potential products with agpion to the areas of womenhealth, veterina
diagnostics, and blood viruses. We believe thegelprojects can ultimately result in potential mewenue streams in future periods, although tbaneb:
no assurance of this.

In the meantime, based on substantially increasednues that are anticipated this year from our @ R¥EM products with FIOCRUZ in Braz
combined with even modest growth in the US rapi¥f kst market and/or our market share with our Fapproved rapid HIV tests marketed by Alere
well as possible gains from existing and/or newrimational distributors for our lateral flow and P® products. We are overall very optimistic in reg
to Chembios financial outlook for 2012, which we believe wiitlude strong improvements to our revenues andheeme. Our recording of the value
our net operating loss carry forward as a finarasalet is a reflection of our optimism.

Fixed Asset Commitments

As of December 31, 2011, the Company had paid depos various pieces of equipment aggregating ¥&9 which is reflected in Other
Assets on the balance sheet. The Company is fuctiramitted to additional equipment-purchase oliggaof $151,910 as various milestones
are achieved by the various vendors.

Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates

The preparation of the financial statements in confty with accounting principles generally accept@ the United States of America requ
management to make estimates and assumptionsffibett the amounts reported in the financial stateim@nd accompanying notes. Actual results ¢
differ materially from those estimates.

We believe that there are several accounting mdithat are critical to understanding our histérégad future performance, as these policies affes
reported amounts of revenue and the more signifigegas involving managemesjudgments and estimates. These significant aticmupolicies relai
to revenue recognition, research and developmests cealuation of inventory, valuation of lofiged assets and income taxes. These policies tta
related procedures, are described in detail below.

Revenue Recognitic—

We recognize revenue for product sales in accomlamith Securities and Exchange Commission Staff aioting Bulletin No. 104, Revenu
Recognition” (“SAB 104”). Under SAB 104, revenue is recognized when thepeiisuasive evidence of an arrangement, deliverpbasrred or servic
have been rendered, the sales price is determiratndecollectability is reasonably assured. Reedmgpically is recognized at time of shipment. eSahr
recorded net of discounts, rebates and returns.

For certain contracts, we recognize revenue fromDRé&nilestone and grant revenues when earned. &rarg invoiced after expenses
incurred. Revenues from projects or grants furidextivance are deferred until earned.

For certain collaborative research projects, wegeze revenue by defining milestones at the iroaptf the agreement and applying the miles
method of revenue recognition for relevant contract
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Stock-Based Compensation —

We recognize the fair value of equitsed awards as compensation expense in our stdtefr@perations. The fair value of our stock optawards we
estimated using a Black-Scholes option valuatiordehoThis valuation moded’ computations incorporate highly subjective asdiomp, such as tl
expected stock price volatility and the estimatéldf each award. The fair value of the optiorfieraconsidering the effect of expected forfeityriegher
amortized, generally on a straighte basis, over the related vesting period ofdption. The fair value of our restricted sharelsdsed on the market va
of the shares at the date of grant and is recodminea straight-line basis over the related vegtiexgod of the award.

Research & Development Co—

Research and development activities consist priynafinew product development, continuing enginegrior existing products, regulatory and clin
trial costs. Costs related to research and dewaop efforts on existing or potential products expensed as incurred.

Valuation of Inventories —

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost or ®ianksing the first-in, firsbut method (FIFO) to determine cost. Our policyoiperiodically evaluate tl
market value of the inventory and the stage of pebdfe cycle, and record a reserve for any ineentonsidered slow moving or obsolete.  For egxar
each additional 1% of obsolete inventory would esuch inventory by approximately $23,000.

Allowance for doubtful accoun—

Our policy is to review our accounts receivableaoperiodic basis, no less than monthly. On a gugrbasis an analysis is made of the adequacyr
allowance for doubtful accounts and adjustmentsraade accordingly. The current allowance is axiprately 1% of accounts receivable. For exar
each additional 1% of accounts receivable that imesouncollectible would reduce such balance of autsoreceivable by approximately $30,000.

Income Taxe—

Income taxes are accounted for under ASC 740 atdhive guidance (“Guidancetyhich requires the asset and liability method afoamting for deferre
income taxes. Deferred tax assets and liabilidies determined based on the difference betweerfiribacial statement and tax bases of asset:
liabilities. Deferred tax assets or liabilitiesté end of each period are determined using theata expected to be in effect when taxes arealgtpaic
or recovered.

The Guidance also requires that a valuation all@egdre established when it is more likely than hat &ll or a portion of a deferred tax asset wailt he
realized. A review of all available positive anelgative evidence needs to be considered, inclugiogmpanys current and past performance, the mi
environment in which the company operates, lenfittaayback and carryforward periods and existingtcacts that will result in future profits. Prim
2011 and through September 30, 2011, the Compathy Hall valuation allowance recorded against defééitax assets since it was not more likely
not that the Company would realize the benefitsuafh deferred tax assets. During 2011, the Compatgrmined based upon the guidance under
740 that it was more likely than not that it wouéhlize the benefit of such deferred tax assetgeaslt, the Company reversed the valuation all@s
previously recorded against the deferred tax as§hts Company still maintains a full valuation alemce on research and development tax credits

The Guidance also prescribes a comprehensive nfiode¢cognizing, measuring, presenting and disolpsh the consolidated financial statements
positions taken or expected to be taken on a taxmeincluding a decision whether to file or noffile in a particular jurisdiction.

The above listing is not intended to be a comprsivenlist of all of our accounting policies. In macases, the accounting treatment of a parti
transaction is specifically dictated by accountimmnciples, generally accepted in the United Stafe&merica, with no need for managementidgmer
in their application. There are also areas in Whitanagemers’ judgment in selecting any viable alternative wlonbt produce a materially differt
result. See our audited financial statements andsnthereto which contain accounting policies atiter disclosures required by accounting princ
generally accepted in the United States of America.

ITEM 8. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY DATA

The Consolidated Financial Statements and schethaégonstitute Item 8 are attached at the enttlisfAnnual Report on Form 1K- An index to thes
Financial Statements and schedules is also incladgzhge F-1 of this Annual Report on Form 10-K.
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ITEM 9. CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTANTS ON AC COUNTING AND FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE.

There have been no disagreements, or transactioevemts similar to those which involved such disagnents or reportable events, with for
accountants on any matter of accounting principlegractices, financial statement disclosure oitagiscope or procedure, which disagreementsot
resolved to the satisfaction of the former acconttaould have caused it to make reference to tigest matter disagreements in connection with af
its reports.

ITEM 9A. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES

@) Disclosure Controls and Procedutdsder the supervision and with the participatiomof senior management, consisting of our chietetree
officer and our chief financial officer, we condedtan evaluation of the effectiveness of the deaighoperation of our disclosure controls and pmtaoe
(as defined in Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e) uttdeiSecurities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended“flRchange Act”)as of the end of the peri
covered by this report (the "Evaluation Date").s8a on that evaluation, the Companyhanagement, including our chief executive offiaed chie
financial officer, concluded that as of the EvaloatDate our disclosure controls and procedure®weéfective to ensure that information requiredé¢
disclosed by us in the reports that we file untierExchange Act is recorded, processed, summaaizédeported within the time periods specified EC
rules and forms. Our disclosure controls and pfaees include, without limitation, controls and gedures designed to ensure that information redti
be disclosed by us in our Exchange Act reportsceaumulated and communicated to our managementydimg our chief executive officer and ct
financial officer, as appropriate to allow timelgadsions regarding required disclosure.

Management's Annual Report on Internal Control (vieancial Reporting. The Company's managemergsgonsible for establishing and maintail
an adequate system of internal control over firgrreiporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rule 18&)). Our internal control over financial repod is
a process, under the supervision of our chief ez wfficer and chief financial officer, designeaprovide reasonable assurance regarding theoiléij:
of financial reporting and the preparation of fingh statements for external purposes in accordantegenerally accepted accounting principleshie
United States. These internal controls over fifgneporting processes include policies and pracesithat:

a. Pertain to the maintenance of records that in retsle detail accurately and fairly reflect the s@agtions and dispositions of the assets ¢
Company;

b. Provide reasonable assurance that transactionme@eded as necessary to permit preparation ofifiahstatements in accordance with gene
accepted accounting principles, and that receipts expenditures of the Company are being made ionbccordance with authorizations
management and directors of the Company;

c. Provide reasonable assurance regarding preventiomely detection of unauthorized acquisition, wsalisposition of the Company's assets
could have a material effect on the financial stetets.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal cohtover financial reporting may not prevent or ad¢tenisstatements. Therefore, even those sy:
determined to be effective can provide only reablnassurance of achieving their control objectives

In evaluating the effectiveness of our internaltoainover financial reporting, our management usecriteria set forth by the Committee of Sponsg
Organizations of the Treadway Commission (COSQhternal Control {ntegrated Framework. Based on this evaluationntanagement concluded t
our internal control over financial reporting wdfeetive as of December 31, 2011.

This annual report does not include an attestaport of our registered public accounting firmaedjng internal control over financial reporting.

Management's report was not subject to attestaiprour registered public accounting firm pursuamtthe rules of the Securities and Exche
Commission that permit the Company to provide angnagement's report in this annual report.

(b) Changes in Internal Control over Ficial Reporting. There were no changes in ourrir@lecontrol over financial reporting identified
connection with the evaluation required by parabr@l of Rule 13a-15 or Rule 15d-15 under the ErgieaAct that occurred during the Companids
fiscal quarter of the period covered by this reghet have materially affected, or are reasonaiiglyl to materially affect, our internal control
financial reporting.

ITEM 9B. OTHER INFORMATION

Not applicable
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PART Il
ITEM 10. DIRECTORS, EXECUTIVE OFFICERS AND CORPORATE GOVERNA NCE
Directors and Executive Officers

Lawrence A. Siebert (55),President, Chief Executive Officer and Chairman. Biebert was appointed President of Chembio Diatics, Inc. and
member of our board of directors upon consummatithe merger in 2004. Mr. Siebert has been Chairof Chembio Diagnostic Systems Inc.
approximately thirteen years and its PresidentesMay 2002. Mr. Siebed’background is in private equity and venture ehpitvesting. From 1982
1991, Mr. Siebert was associated with Stanwich neast Inc, which during that period invested in dhéd market manufacturing and distribui
companies. From 1992 to 1999, Mr. Siebert wasmastment consultant and business broker with Si€tspital Corp. and Siebert Associates LLC,
was a principal investor in a privately held testl aneasurement company which was sold in 2002. Sidbert received a JD from Case Western Re
University School of Law in 1981 and a BA with Digttion in Economics from the University of Conrieat in 1978. Mr. Siebert as president and (
is an integral part of the Chembio management teldim.experience in the rapid test field and finagcmarkets made him an excellent candidat
serving on the board and as its chairman.

Richard J. Larkin (55), Chief Financial Officer. Mr. Larkin was appointad Chief Financial Officer of Chembio Diagnostits;. upon consummati
of the merger in 2004. Mr. Larkin oversees ouaficial activities and information systems. Mr. kiarhas been the Chief Financial Officer of Cher
Diagnostic Systems Inc. since September 2003.r Rrimining Chembio Diagnostic Systems Inc., Markin served as CFO at Visual Technology G
from May 2000 to September 2003, and also led gwisultancy program that provided hamasexpertise in all aspects of financial servioe|uding the
initial assessment of client financial reportingiugements within an Enterprise Resource Planning (Manufacturing) emvirent through training a
implementation. Prior to joining VTG, he servedGO at Protex International Corporation from M&81 to January 2000. Mr. Larkin holds a BB/
Accounting from Dowling College and is a membettef American Institute of Certified Public Accounts

Javan Esfandiari (45),Executive VP of Research and Development. Mr. igditai joined Chembio Diagnostic Systems, Inc,®@@. Mr. Esfandiari co-
founded, and became a owamer of Sinovus Biotech AB where he served as dbireof Research and Development concerning lafeal technolog'
until Chembio Diagnostic Systems Inc. acquired SirsoBiotech AB in 2000. From 1993 to 1997, Mr. d&&sfiari was Director of Research .
Development with Orgite Biotech/National Veterinary Institute, Uppsagweden, which was working in collaboration wittn&us Biotech AB o
development of veterinary lateral flow technolodyr. Esfandiari received his B.Sc. in Clinical Chstry and his M. Sc. in Molecular Biology from Lu
University, Sweden. He has published articlesarnous veterinary journals and has co-authoredlastion tuberculosis serology with Dr. Lyashchenko.

Richard Bruce (58), Vice President, Operations. Mr. Bruce was hiredApril 2000 as Director of Operations. He is respblesfor manufacturing
maintenance, inventory, shipping, receiving, andelvause operations. Prior to joining Chembio Dagdit Systems Inc., he held director level pos#
at Wyeth Laboratories from 1984 to 1993. From 1893998, he held various management positionserCperations Department at Biomerieux. F
1998 to 2000, he held a management position affédhnologies. Mr. Bruce has over thirty yearspérations management experience with Fortun:
companies in the field of in-vitro diagnostics didod fractionation. Mr. Bruce received his BSManagement from National Louis University in 1997.

Tom Ippolito (49), VP of Regulatory Affairs, QA and QC. Mr. Ippolijoined Chembio in June 2005. He has over twentysyexperience with in vitr
diagnostics for infectious diseases, protein themtips, vaccine development, Process DevelopmegRtory Affairs and Quality Management. Ovel
years, Mr. Ippolito has held Vice President levekifions at Biospecific Technologies, Corp. from0Q0- 2005, Director level positions in Qual
Assurance, Quality Control, Process DevelopmentRegllatory Affairs at United Biomedical, Inc. frab®87 -2000. Mr. Ippolito is the Course Direc
for “drug development process” and “FDA RegulatBrpcessfor the BioScience Certificate Program at the NesvkyState University of Stony Brook
program he has been a part of since its incepti@903.

Dr. Gary Meller, M.D. (61), Director. Dr. Meller was elected to our Board afdators in March 15, 2005, and currently servestenBoards Audit
Compensation and Nominating and Corporate Govem@umnmittees, including as Chairman of the Comp@rs&ommittee. Dr. Meller also servec
Chairman of the Board’ Special Committee for handling certain strategpportunities. Dr. Meller has been the presidehCommSense Inc.,
healthcare business development company, since. 200thmSense Inc. works with clients in Europe,aA®lorth America, and the Middle East
medical information technology, medical recordsamphaceutical product development and financingljtheservices operations and strategy, and
product and new market development. From 1999 @601 Dr. Meller was the executive vice presidévdrth America, of NextEd Ltd., a leadi
internet educational services company in the Asiaffe region. Dr. Meller also was a limited patrand a member of the Advisory Board of Crest
Capital Master LLC, which at one time was our latggockholder. Dr. Meller is a graduate of theudnsity of New Mexico School of Medicine and
an MBA from the Harvard Business School. Dr. MeBeexperience in the medical field both domestic fordign (especially his experience v
CommSense Inc.) as well as his financing experiemage him an excellent candidate for serving orbtieed.
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Kathy Davis (55), Director. Ms. Davis was elected to the Companysaml of Directors in May 2007, and currently sereesthe Board of Directot’
Audit, Compensation and Nominating And Corporatez€&pnance Committees, including as Chairman of efi¢he Audit Committee and the Nominat
And Corporate Governance Committee. Ms. Davis alswed on the BoardSpecial Committee for handling certain strategi@arfunities. Sinc
January 2007, Ms. Davis has been the owner of Dg&gn Group LLC, a company that provides anaytand visual tools for public policy desic
Previously, from February 2005 to December 2006,s#rved as the Chief Executive Officer of Globetéss Point, a stanp company with products 1
data transport, data processing, and data stortgerk and hub facilities. From October 2003 tauky 2005, Ms. Davis was Lieutenant Governc
the State of Indiana, and from January 2000 to @xt@003 was Controller of the City of Indianapolisrom 1989 to 2003, Ms. Davis held leader
positions with agencies and programs in the Sthtadiana including State Budget Director, Secretaf Family & Social Services Administration, ¢
Deputy Commissioner of Transportation. From 1982989 Ms. Davis held increasingly senior positievith Cummins Engine, where she mane
purchasing, manufacturing, engineering, and assewofbtertain engine product lines. Ms. Davis di the startup of and initial investments by a
million Indiana state technology fund, serves oa tiot-forprofit boards of Noble of Indiana, University of &hsville Institute of Global Enterpri
Purdue College of Science Dean’s Leadership Coamadl Indiana University School of Public and Enmiteental Affairs Dears Advisory Council. St
has a Masters of Business Administration from HahBusiness School and a Bachelor of Science inhislieical Engineering from the Massachu:
Institute of Technology. Ms. Davis has varied eigrece in business, political and financial areaslenher an excellent candidate for serving on tlzed:

Dr. Barbara DeBuono, M.D., M.P.H., (56),Director . Dr. DeBuono, who was elected to the Canys Board of Directors in June 20%4,a renowne
expert in public health innovation, health poli@ducation and research. In May 2011, Dr. DeBuons a@pointed President and CEO of OR
International, which is dedicated to saving sighdl &liminating avoidable blindness worldwide withaldquarters in New York City. Previously, fr
2009-2011, Dr. DeBuono was Chief Medical OfficeartRer and Global Director of Health and Social kéting at Porter Novelli, and from 20@D0¢
she was Executive Director, Public Health and Gomremt at Pfizer Inc. Dr. DeBuono has served asr@igsioner of Health for the state of New Y
and as Director of Health in Rhode Island and shs onored by the CDC Foundation in 2005 as ofieePublic Health Heroes nationwide. She se
as adjunct professor at The George Washington WsityeSchool of Public Health, and is a fmnder of The MAIA Foundation, a charity dedicate
women'’s health in suBaharan Africa. A Fellow of the American CollegeRifysicians, Dr. DeBuono received her B.A. from theversity of Rocheste
her M.D. from the University of Rochester, SchoblMedicine, and a Masters in Public Health (M.P.ftdm Harvard University School of Puk
Health. Dr. DeBuon@ experience in and knowledge of, both domesticiatenational, public health services, public tle@hnovations, and the medi
field make her an excellent candidate for servingh® board.

Dr. Peter Kissinger , Ph.D. (67)Director. Dr. Kissinger, who was elected to the @amy’s Board of Directors in June 2014 a scientist, entreprent
and academic, with a multiceted career in biotechnology and biomedical netdgies. He is the founder of Bioanalytical Sys$e Inc. (NASDAQ
BASI), which he led from 1972007, and is Professor of Chemistry and Associapatment Head at Purdue University, West Lafayétigiana. Di
Kissingers academic research has involved the study of mdagrid chromatography techniques, and in vivo lmeblogy for drug metabolism and
neurosciences. Dr. Kissinger has published mas #80 scientific papers and is a Fellow of the Aga® Association of Pharmaceutical Scientists
the American Association for the Advancement ofeSce. In 2005, he became the Chairman of Prosehish markets mass spectrometry innovalt
for life science, industrial and homeland secuapplications. In 2007, he and Candice Kissingenéted Phlebotics, Inc., a medical device com
focused on diagnostic information for intensiveecaredicine. He is a columnist for the trade puliiceDrug Discovery News. Dr. Kissinger receive
B.S. in Chemistry from Union College, SchenectadyY. and a Ph.D. in Analytical Chemistry from thailersity of North Carolina in Chapel Hill. [
Kissinger has knowledge of and experience in blotetogy and biomedical technologies as well asiplybtraded companies, all of which make hin
excellent candidate for serving on the board.

Section 16(a) Beneficial Ownership Reporting Compdinces
Section 16(a) of the Securities Exchange Act of419% amended (the “Exchange Act”), requires thengamy’s directors, executive officers ¢
beneficial owners of more than 10% of the Compamgmmon stock to file with the Securities and Exde Commission initial reports of ownership
reports of changes in ownership of common stockahdr equity securities of the Company. The Camggdzelieves that during the year ended Dece
31, 2011, each person who was an officer, diresmar beneficial owner of more than 10% of the Comgmoommon stock complied with all Sectior
(a) filing requirements .
Code of Ethics
The Company has adopted a code of ethics thategpialiits principal executive officer, principahdincial officer, principal accounting officer, cauiter,
and persons performing similar functions. A copyhe Company’s code of ethics is available onGoenpany’s website at www.chembio.com.
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Identification of Audit Committee; Audit Committee Financial Expert
The Companys board of directors has established an audit cteeni Katherine L. Davis, Dr. Pete Kissinger and®ary Meller each serves on the a

committee, with Ms. Davis serving as chairman. Twnpanys board of directors has determined that Ms. Dsvan audit committee financial exg
and is independent.

ITEM 11. EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION

The following table summarizes all compensatiororded by the Company in each of the last two cotegléiscal years for our principal executive off
and our two most highly compensated executive effiother than our principal executive officer wlhasnual compensation exceeded $100,000.

All Other

Name / Option Awards Stock Compensatior

Principal Salary 1 Bonus? 3 Awards 5 Total

Position Year ($) ($) ($) ($) ($) (€]
Lawrence A. Siebert4 2011 $ 281,34t $ 101,50( $ - $ - $ 12,60 $ 395,44¢
CEO 2010 265,00( 87,45( - - 7,20( 359,65(
Javan Esfandiari 2011 $ 253,07 $ 89,25( $ - $ - $ 8,54( $ 350,86°
VP-R&D 2010 242,92: 80,85( 66,03( - 4,80( 394,60:
Tom Ippolito 2011 $ 190,70: $ 33,60( $ 42,72« $ - $ 3,95¢ $ 270,98
VP-Regulatory 2010 185,81! 40,30( - - - 226,11!

1 Salary is total base salary.
2 Bonuses earned in 2011 and 2010 were partiafigdan reaching certain objectives, which includa@nue dollar levels and operating profit levels,
additional amounts earned were discretionary.

3 The estimated fair value of any option or comratutk granted was determined in accordance with ASE; "Stock-Based Payment".
4 Mr. Siebert also serves as a director on the Gayip board of directors. Mr. Siebert does noerez any compensation for this director role.

5 Other compensation includes an employer matdf®1gK) contributions and car allowances where applie.
Employment Agreements

Mr. Siebert. Effective, May 11, 2011, the Compensation Coneritof the Board of Directors extended the Compmmyhployment agreement (
“Employment Agreement”) with Lawrence A. SiebethigtCompany’s President and Chief Executive Offiéer,an additional ongear term throug
May 11, 2013, with an increase in salary to $290,06r year. Previously, effective May 11, 200® €@ompanys Board of Directors had approved
Comapany’s extension of the June 15, 2006 EmployrAgneement for an additional thrgear term through May 11, 2012. On June 15, 2006
Siebert and the Company entered into an Employgreement, effective May 10, 2006, which was tanieate on May 10, 2008, extended in 20C
May 10, 2009. Pursuant to the Employment Agreemdnt Siebert serves as the President and Chiefike Officer of the Company and receivec
initial salary of $240,000 per year, which had bemmeased to $265,000 per year until Mr. Siebgréad to a 15 percent reduction, to $225,000, &t
January 19, 2009. Mr. Siebextsalary was restored to $265,000 per annum eféeatiJuly 2009. Mr. Siebert also is eligible fobonus of up to 50%
his salary, consisting of (i) a bonus of up to 26&his salary that is at the complete discretiod determination of the board of directors, andgifonu
of up to an additional 25% of his salary that Wil determined based upon revenue and earninggparioe criteria established each year by the bok
directors. Mr. Siebert is eligible to participateany profit sharing, stock option, retirementrplanedical and/or hospitalization plan, and/or othenefi
plans except for disability and life insurance ttiet Company may from time to time place in efflectthe Companys executives during the term of |
Siebert’s employment agreement. If Mr. SielBEmployment Agreement is terminated by the Compaitiyout cause, or if Mr. Siebert terminates
Employment Agreement for a reasonable basis, asatkin the Employment Agreement, including withid months of a change in control, the Comj
is required to pay as severance Mr. Siebes&lary for six months. Mr. Siebert has agreedfperiod of two years after the termination & @mploymer
with the Company not to induce customers, agemtstteer sources of distribution of the Companipusiness under contract or doing business wé
Company to terminate, reduce, alter, or divert mess with or from the Company. The terms of thiereded May 11, 2011, May 11, 2009 and May
2008 Employment Agreements are identical to thee JUF, 2006 Employment Agreement, except that utiteeMay 11, 2008 extended Employrr
Agreement, Mr. Siebert received additional consitien in the form of incentive stock options to ghaise 250,000 shares of the Comparggmmo
stock exercisable at $0.13 per share, which waslibging price of the Company's common stock oneJ8n2008. The incentive stock options
immediately exercisable and they expire on the B r2913.
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Mr. Esfandiari. The Company entered into an employment agreeniet®d March 4, 2010, and to be effective March B,02(the "Employmel
Agreement"), with Mr. Esfandiari to continue as tBempany's Senior Vice President of Research anelDgment for an additional term of three yi
through May 5, 2013. Mr. Esfandiari's salary unier Employment Agreement is $245,000 for the fjestr, $255,000 for the second year, and $26!
for the final year. Mr. Esfandiari is eligible far cash bonus of up to 50% of his base salary doh eespective year, which, on June 29, 2011
amended, effective March 5, 2011, to consist ofsteme components in the same percentages as the bomponents as those described immed
above for Mr. Siebert. Prior to that amendment] since March 5, 2010, Mr. Esfandiarbhonus consisted of the following: (i) a cash afiup to 309
of his calendar year base salary based on therpafe of the Company's Dual Path Platform Techgywlavhich is directly related to certain anr
revenue targets budgeted by management of the Gom@i a cash bonus of up to 10% of his calendzar base salary based on the attainment of ¢
specific research and development objectives, tssrdaed by the Board, and (iii) a cash bonus ofauf0% of his calendar year base salary that tise
complete discretion and determination of the boafrdlirectors. The Company also granted Mr. Esfandipursuant to the Company's 2008 S
Incentive Plan, incentive stock options to purch2@,000 shares of the Company's common stockpiibe per share of these options is equal to ti
market value of the Company's common stock aseotlisse of the market on March 5, 2010, which ésdhte on which the Agreement was effective
these stock options, options to purchase 100,08feshvest on the effective date, options to puechasadditional 100,000 shares of the stock opties
on the second anniversary of the Employment Agreg¢mend options to purchase an additional 100,0@0es of the stock options vest on the 1
anniversary of the Employment Agreement. Mr. Edfan is eligible to participate in any profit skay, stock option, retirement plan, medical an
hospitalization plan, and/or other benefit plansept for disability and life insurance that the Gamy may from time to time place in effect for
Company’s executives during the term of Mr. Esfand employment agreement. If Mr. Esfandiari’s goyment agreement is terminated by
Company without cause, or if Mr. Esfandiari terntésahis employment agreement for a reasonable, basidefined in the Employment Agreem
including within 12 months of a change in conttbk Company is required to pay as severance Mar8gdri's salary for twelve months.

Mr. Ippolito does not have an employment contraith whe Company.

Executive Bonus Plan

The Company has established a bonus plan for @swutives who do not have a contract. For the ffigear ended December 31, 2011, there were
executives eligible for this bonus plan. Each etiee can earn up to 25% of that executivgalary in the form of a bonus. The Compensaiommitte:
determined that 40% of the executive’s bonus wéllquantitative factors, based on the budget. @W¥be based on other factors; with ohal of the
60% (or 30%) based on management objectives, andttier ondialf of the 60% (or 30%) will be discretionary. €lplan, during 2011 for the 40
called for a sliding percentage of the execusvsalary, from zero to 5% for attaining 85% to 100%aevenue goals, and from zero to 5% of
executives salary for attaining between zero percent to 180%he designated operating profit goals. The @any achieved nearly 99% of its reve
goals for 2011, resulting in a bonus of 4.5% ofreaexecutives salary, and achieved nearly 93% of its operagiodit goal, resulting in a bonus of 2.2
of salary, for a total of 6.75% of salary. In adui, the Compensation Committee approved 5.25%addry in discretionary bonuses for the sul
executives and 5.50% in management objectivesgimgnthe total plan bonus to approximately 17.5%safary. Goals for 2012 have not yet
established.
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OUTSTANDING EQUITY AWARDS AT FISCAL YEAR -END 2011

Option Awards Stock Awards
Number of Number of Option Option Option Number of  Market Value Foot-
Securities Securities Exercise  Expiration Vesting Shares of of Shares of note
Underlying Underlying Price Date Date Stock That Stock That
Unexercised Unexercised %) Have Not Have Not
Options Options Vested Vested
Exercisable (#) Unexercisable #) %)
Name (#)
Lawrence A. Siebert 133,33 0.1 5/6/201¢ 5/6/201: 5
133,33 0.1 5/6/201¢ 5/7/201: 5
133,33 0.1 5/6/201¢ 5/6/201( 5
250,00 0.1 6/3/201: 6/3/200¢ 3
75,00 0.2  2/15/201: 2/15/200¢ 2
50,00 0.1 5/28/201: 1/1/200° 1,4
50,00 0.1 5/28/201. 4/17/200t 1,4
10,00 0.1 5/4/201:  4/17/200¢ 4
50,00 0.1 5/4/201: 5/5/200: 4
Javan Esfandiari 100,00 0.2 3/4/201¢ 3/5/201: 3
100,00 0.2 3/4/201* 3/5/201: 3
100,00 0.2 3/4/201* 3/5/201: 3
100,00 0.1 5/6/201¢ 5/6/201: 5
100,00 0.1 5/6/201¢ 5/7/201( 5
100,00 0.1 5/6/201¢ 5/6/201( 5
100,00 0.1  4/23/201: 3/5/200¢ 1,4
100,00 0.1  4/23/201: 3/5/200¢ 1,4
60,00 0.2  2/15/201: 2/15/200¢ 2
25,00 0.1 5/28/201. 5/28/200° 4
100,00 0.1  4/23/201: 4/23/200° 1,4
18,75 0.1  3/24/201: 1/1/200
25,00 0.1 5/28/201. 4/17/200t 1,4
25,00 0.1 5/28/201. 4/17/200t 1,4
5,00 0.1 5/4/201:  4/17/200¢ 4
18,75 0.1  3/24/201. 3/24/200t 4
30,00 0.1 5/4/201: 5/5/200: 4
Tom Ippolito 62,50 0.5 5/9/201¢ 5/9/201¢ 6
62,50 0.5 5/9/201¢ 5/9/201: 6
75,00 0.1 5/6/201¢ 5/6/201: 5
75,00 0.1 5/6/201¢ 5/7/201: 5
75,00 0.1 5/6/201¢ 5/6/201( 5
50,00 0.2  2/15/201: 2/15/200¢ 2
15,00 0.1  3/24/201. 3/24/200t 4

1 Stock issued in connection with an employment @attand under the 1999 Stock Option Plan.

2 On February 15, 2008 the Company granted optiodsmtime 1999 Stock Option Plan.

3 Options issued in connection with an employmentreat and under the 2008 Stock Incentive Plan.

4 0On May 7, 2009, the Compensation Committee of tben@any reduced, to $0.13 per share, the exercise pf each outstanding employee option
was issued under the 1999 Equity Incentive Plam ‘(18999 Plan”) for which the exercise price wasagee than $0.44 per share of the Compsimmgmmo
stock. There was no other change made to the tefriige stock options other than the reductiorhim éxercise price. A total of 1,036,750 optionse
affected and the fair value difference of the amibefore and after the reduction was $31,660 awlexpensed in the three months ended June 30, 200¢
5 On May 7, 2009 in accordance with the terms ofGeenpanys 2008 Stock Incentive Plan, the Company grantehioeemployees of the Compa
options to purchase an aggregate of 2,925,000 shafré¢he Compang common stock. The exercise price for these pgtis equal to $0.13
share. The options become exercisable in thirdtherfirst, second and third anniversaries of tate df the grant. Each option granted will exgire
terminate, if not exercised sooner, upon the gadi®ccur of (a) 30 days after termination of émployees employment with the Company or (b) the
anniversary of the date of grant. The fair valtithese options is being amortized over the vedifagf the options.

6 On May 3, 2011 and effective May 9, 2011 in accoogawith the terms of the Compary2008 Stock Incentive Plan, the Company grantethio
employees of the Company, options to purchase greggte of 500,000 shares of the Compsmmgmmon stock exercise price for these optionstowas
equal to the VWAP (Volume Weighted Average Pricgrket price for the Comparg/’common stock on May 9, 2011. The options becexegcisabl
evenly on the second and third anniversaries otffective date of the grant. Each option gramtébexpire and terminate, if not exercised soongror
the earlier to occur of (a) 30 days after termiratdf the employeg’ employment with the Company or (b) the fifth ammsary of the effective date
grant.
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Director Compensation

All non-employee directors are paid an $18,000 ahnetainer in semannual payments, and once every five years, oddbe of the annual meeting
stockholders that directors are elected oelested (every 5 years), receive stock optionstuiae, subject to vesting as described below, BXbshare
of the Company's common stock, with an exerciseepeiqual to the market price on the date of thatgr&tock options to acquire 75,000 shares be
exercisable on the date of grant, and options tpiae an additional 75,000 shares become exereisablthe date of each of the four succeeding a
meetings of stockholders if and to the extent thatnonemployee director is reelected as a director ah sach annual meeting. The audit comm
chairman is paid an annual retainer of $2,500, paiti-annually. In addition, the n@mployee directors are paid $1,000 in cash for dmerd o
directors' meeting attended, and paid $500 in daskeach telephonic board of directors meetinge lonemployee directors who are members
committee of the board of directors are paid $5006ash for each committee meeting attended, or $76ash for each committee meeting attended t
nonemployee director is the committee chairman. Daexalso may be paid for serving ad hoc commitiefethe Board. In fact, when the Bo
established its Special Committee in 2010 to hatitepossible sale of the Company, the ChairmaheCommittee was paid $12,000 per month, an
other director-member of the Committee was pai@@8per month.

DIRECTOR COMPENSATION

Fees Earned ol

Paid in Cash Option Awards Total
Name $* ($)2 €]
Katherine L. Davis $ 38,50 $ - $ 38,50(
Barbara DeBuono 10,50( 27,72 38,22
Pete Kissinger 10,50( 27,72 38,22:
Gary Meller 40,25( - 40,25(

1 Fees earned or paid in cash represents a yeargnfbéees for meeting expenses: (a) Ms. Davis vedean $18,000 annual fee as a member of
the board of directors, a $2,500 annual fee ast @adimittee chairman, $40,000 as a member of ai@psmmmittee and $9,000 in meeting fees
paid during 2010; (b) Mr. Meller received an $1&0&nnual fee as a member of the board of direct$6§,000 as a member of a special
committee and $9,000 in meeting fees.

2 Each outside member of the board of directorsasigd, once every five years, the right to purct3&000 shares of the company’s common
stock with an exercise price equal to the markietepon the date of the grant as part of their ahoampensation. One-fifth of these options are
exercisable on the date of grant, one-fifth becaxercisable on the first anniversary of the datgmint, and additional one-fifths become

exercisable on the second through fourth annivgrshthe date of grant. The fair value of opti@ishe date of grant was estimated using the
Black-Scholes option pricing model.

Compensation Committee Interlocks and Insider Parttipation
No executive officer of the Company served as a b@rof the Board of any other public company dutimg year ended December 31, 2011. No me

of the Compensation Committee serves as an execafficer of any other public company during theayended December 31, 2011. No interloc
relationship exists between the members of our Gusation Committee and the Board or compensatiomitiee of any other company.
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ITEM 12. SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT AND RELATED STOCKHOLDER
MATTERS

The following table sets forth certain informatimygarding the beneficial ownership of our commarlstby each person or entity known by us to b
beneficial owner of more than 5% of the outstandihgres of common stock, each of our directord) edour “named executive officersdnd all of ou
directors and executive officers as a group as aifdkl 6, 2012.

Amount and
Nature of
Name and Address o Beneficial Percent of
Beneficial Owner Ownership Class

Siebert, Lawrencé&)

3661 Horseblock Road

Medford, NY 11762 7,203,27. 11.2¢%
Esfandiari, Javaf®

3661 Horseblock Road

Medford, NY 1176¢ 1,011,32: 1.5¢%
Larkin, Richard®

3661 Horseblock Road

Medford, NY 11762 565,04" .8%%
Ippolito, Tom®

3661 Horseblock Road

Medford, NY 11762 314,00( 4%
Bruce, Richard®

3661 Horseblock Road

Medford, NY 1176% 405,57* .64%
Meller, Gary®)

3661 Horseblock Road

Medford, NY 11762 738,00( 1.16%

Davis, Katherine L(7

3661 Horseblock Road

Medford, NY 11762 388,36¢ .61%
DeBuono, Barbar®)

3661 Horseblock Road

Medford, NY 11762 90,62¢ .14%
Kissinger, Petef®)

3661 Horseblock Road

Medford, NY 11763 90,62¢ .14%
GROUP (10) 10,806,83 16.27%
Alere, Inc.

51 Sawyer Road, Suite 200

Waltham, MA 0245: 5,367,84! 8.4&%

Beneficial ownership is determined in accordancth whie Rule 13@(a) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, asratad, and generally incluc
voting or investment power with respect to secesiti Except as subject to community property lawsere applicable, the person named above ha
voting and investment power with respect to allekaf our common stock shown as beneficially owmgtim.
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The beneficial ownership percent in the table Iswdated with respect to the number of outstandingres (62,240,483) of the Company's common
outstanding as of March 6, 2012; and with respeatach stockholder, the denominator is the sunh@itumber of common shares outstanding an
number, if any, of outstanding options includedhat stockholdes beneficial ownership. Each stockholder's owriprghcalculated as the numbel
shares of common stock owned plus the number aéshaf common stock into which any preferred stegdrants, options or other convertible secul
owned by that stockholder can be converted witQi#éys.

The term “named executive officer&fers to our principal executive officer, our twmwst highly compensated executive officers othantthe principe
executive officer who were serving as executivéceff at the end of 2011, and two additional irdlingils for whom disclosure would have been proy
but for the fact that the individuals were not segvas executive officers of the Company at the @fr2D11.

(1) Includes 591,666 shares issuable upon exercisptmfng exercisable within 60 days. Does not ineld83,334 shares issuable upon exerci
options that are not exercisable within the next&gs.

(2) Includes 360,000 shares issuable upon exercisptmfng exercisable within 60 days. Does not inel@00,000 shares issuable upon exerci
options that are not exercisable within the next&gs.

(3) Includes 350,000 shares issuable upon exercisptmfng exercisable within 60 days. Does not ineld§0,000 shares issuable upon exerci
options that are not exercisable within the next&gs.

(4) Includes 275,000 shares issuable upon exercisptmfng exercisable within 60 days. Does not ineld@5,000 shares issuable upon exerci
options that are not exercisable within the next&gs.

(5) Includes 275,000 shares issuable upon exercisptwfns exercisable within 60 days. Does not inelt@0,000 shares issuable upon exerci
options that are not exercisable within the nextags.

(6) Includes 273,000 shares issuable upon exercisptwfns exercisable within 60 days. Does not ineld80,000 shares issuable upon exerci
options that are not exercisable within the nextags.

(7) Includes 300,650 shares issuable upon exercisetafng exercisable within 60 days. Does not inclt86,000 shares issuable upon exerci:
options that are not exercisable within the nextags.

(8) Includes 90,625 shares issuable upon exercise tafnspexercisable within 60 days. Does not incl@88,000 shares issuable upon exerci:
options that are not exercisable within the nextags.

(9) Includes 90,625 shares issuable upon exercise tafnspexercisable within 60 days. Does not incl@88,000 shares issuable upon exerci:
options that are not exercisable within the nextags.

(10) Includes footnotes (-(9).

Equity Compensation Plan Information

Combined Equity Compensation Ple Information as of December 31, 20

Number of Number of Securities
Securities to be Remaining Available fc
Issued Upon Weighted-Average  Future Issuance under
Exercise of Exercise Price of Equity Compensation
Outstanding Outstanding Plans (Excluding
Options, Warrants  Options, Warrants  Securities Reflected in
Plan Categor and Rights and Rights Column (a)
(a) (b) (©)
Equity compensation plans approved by security drgl 6,127,061 $ 0.21: 1,313,43!
Equity compensation plans not approved by sechotgiers - - -
Total 6,127,06: $ 0.21: 1,313,43!

1 The “Number of Securities to be Issued Upon ExerosOutstanding Warrants and Rightepresents 1,575,500 from the 1999 Stock Option
and 4,551,568 under the 2008 Stock Incentive Plahe 2008 Stock Incentive Plan was increased 8901000 units at the Annual Stockholder mee
hekd September 23, 2011. The “Number of SecurRiemaining Available for Future Issuance Under Bg@ompensation Plangepresents shat
issuable under the 2008 Stock Incentive F
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ITEM 13. CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACTIONS, AND DIRECTOR INDEPENDENCE.

The executive officers of the Company are as fallobawrence A. Siebert, president, chief executiffieer and chairman of the board of directorsh®
Company, Richard J. Larkin, chief financial officgrthe Company, and Javan Esfandiari, executice president of Research and Development ¢
Company.

On May 7, 2009, the Compensation Committee of them@any reduced, to $0.13 per share, the exercise pf each outstanding employee option
was issued under the 1999 Equity Incentive Plam ‘(#8999 Plan”) for which the exercise price wasagee than $0.44 per share of the Compamgmmo
stock. There was no other change made to the tefrie stock options other than the reductiorhim ¢xercise price. A total of 1,036,750 optionse
affected. Mr. Siebert, Mr. Esfandiari and Mr. Liarkhad options to purchase common stock that wereeduced of 160,000, 497,500 and 137,
respectively.

In addition, on May 7, 2009 in accordance with tbems of the Compang’2008 Stock Incentive Plan, the Company grantethioeemployees of ti
Company, options to purchase an aggregate of )@A@5hares of the Compasycommon stock. The exercise price for these opti® equal to $0.13
share. The options become exercisable in thirdtherfirst, second and third anniversaries of tate af the grant. Each option granted will exg@ine
terminate, if not exercised sooner, upon the aadi@ccur of (a) 30 days after termination of émeployee$ employment with the Company or (b) the |
anniversary of the date of grant. Mr. Siebert, Esfandiari and Mr. Larkin received options to puase common stock of 400,000, 300,000 and 27t
respectively.

In accordance with the terms of the Compar3008 Plan, on May 3, 2011, the Company deterntimgglant on May 9, 2011, to certain employeede
Company options to purchase an aggregate of 506/3@&@s of the Comparsytommon stock. The exercise price for these nptwas to be equal to 1
VWAP (Volume Weighted Average Price) market prioe the Company common stock on May 9, 2011. The options becexeecisable evenly on t
second and third anniversaries of the effective d&tthe grant. Each option granted will expire éerminate, if not exercised sooner, upon thee¥ad
occur of (a) 30 days after termination of the emgpldls employment with the Company or (b) the fifth aemsary of the effective date of grant.
Ippolito, Mr. Bruce and Mr. Larkin received optiotsspurchase common stock of 125,000, 100,000 &0¢D0O0, respectively

During the quarter ended December 31, 2008, Aletdied the Company that Alere had entered intmat@ct with Bio-Rad Laboratories, Inc. (“Bio-
Rad”) for royalties on Bio-Rad’s patent for the eftion of HIV2 antibodies. The agreement also provided foreéterpay past royalties. On June
2009, the Company and Alere entered into a letieeeanent whereby certain obligations aggregatimyagmately $1,010,000 as of December 31, :
were agreed to be paid from future revenues. Tigations include the Company’s share under iteagents with Alere for the amount of HR/-
royalties that Alere paid when Alere entered intoHiIV-2 license agreement with Biead Laboratories, Inc. of approximately $485,000 eoyaltie:
owed by Chembio on lateral flow licenses to Alefeapproximately $525,000 as of December 31, 2008ded the agreement Alere will retain
additional 10% of Clearview® HIV 1/2 STAT-PAK® netales and 5% of Clearview®@omplete HIV 1/2 net sales until these obligaticars
extinguished. As of December 31, 2011 this badamas fully paid.

On February 16, 2012, the Company granted optiomsitchase the following numbers of shares of thenganys common stock set forth below to
executive officers of the Company named below. &kercise price for these options was the lasettadarket price for the Compasy¢common stock ¢
February 16, 2012, which was $.50 per option. ®pgons become exercisable on the effective dathefgrant. Each option granted will expire
terminate, if not exercised sooner, upon the gadi®ccur of (a) 30 days after termination of émployees employment with the Company or (b) the
anniversary of the effective date of grant.

Name of Executive Officer Number of Shares ol
Common Stock

Options

Richard Bruce- Vice President of Operatior 20,500

Javan Esfandia— Executive Vice President of R& 63,750

Tom Ippolito- Vice President of Regulatory Affairs, QA & G 24,000

Richard J. Larkir— Chief Financial Office 22,375

Lawrence A. Sieber Chief Executive Office 72,500

Director Independence

Our stock is quoted on the OTCQB, which is the sdcof the three tiers of the OTC Market Group unither symbol “CEML.” . As such, we are n
currently subject to corporate governance standafrdisted companies, which require, among othérgs, that the majority of the board of directoe
independent.

We are not currently subject to corporate goveraatandards defining the independence of our dirgcand we have chosen to define an “indepefident
director in accordance with the NASDAQ Global Matkeequirements for independent directors. Urnter definition, we have determined that C
Meller, Katherine L. Davis, Pete Kissinger and BaebDeBuono currently qualify as independent dinect We do not list the “independertd&finition

we use on our internet website .
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ITEM 14. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTANT FEES AND SERVICES

Audit Fees

For the year ended December 31, 2011, the Compaygged BDO USA, LLP as its independent accountiimg to audit the Company’s annual financial
statements and review of financial statements dedun the Company’s Forms 10-Q and 10-K for tharysnded December 31, 2011, for $110,000 in
fees.

Audit-Related Fees

For the year ended December 31, 2011, the Compangependent accounting firm, BDO USA, LLP, did poovide the Company with any assure
and related services reasonably related to thempeahnce of the audit or review of the Companfihancial statements that are not reported aloke
“Audit Fees.”

Tax Fees

For the year ended December 31, 2011, the Compangependent accounting firm, BDO USA, LLP, billdte Company $44,000 for professic
services for tax compliance, tax advice and tarmilag.

All Other Fees

For the year ended December 31, 2011, the Compangiependent accounting firm, BDO USA, LLP, did poovide the Company with any otl
matters.

Audit Committee Pre-Approval Policies

The Audit Committee approves in advance all audid aonaudit services performed by the independent acamyiirm. There are no other spec
policies or procedures relating to the pre-approvalervices performed by the independent accogffitim.
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ITEM 15.
Number Description

3.1 Articles of Incorporation, as amended.

3.2 Amended and Restated Bylaws.

4.1* Form of Employee Option Agreement. |

4.2 1999 Equity Incentive Plan. (:

4.3 2008 Stock Incentive Plan. (

4.4 Rights Agreement, dated March 8, 2010

4.5 Form of Warrant (to be filed by amendment) [to beised]

10.1* Employment Agreement dated June 15, 2006 with Lagege\. Siebert. (7
10.2* Employment Agreement dated March 5, 2010 with J&sfandiari. (8

10.3 HIV Barrel License, Marketing and Distribution Agraent, dated as of September 29, 2006, by and atheriRegistrant, Alere and
StatSure. (9

10.4 HIV Cassette License, Marketing and Distributionrégment, dated as of September 29, 2006, betwedRdpistrant and Alere. (

10.5 Non-Exclusive License, Marketing and Distribution Agmeent, dated as of September 29, 2006, betweendbsstRant and Alere. (¢

10.6 Joint HIV Barrel Product Commercialization Agreematated as of September 29, 2006, between thesiRagfi and StatSure. (
10.7 Secured Term Note, dated as of June 14, 2010, dbpmwong the Registrant, Chembio Diagnostics SystBrasand HSBC Bank, NA (1!
10.8 Secured Revolving Demand Note, dated as of Jun2Qif), by and among the Registrant, Chembio DiagsoSystems, Inc. and HSBC
Bank, NA (10)
10.9 Loan and Security Agreement, dated as of Juned#),2by and among the Registrant, Chembio Diage®8ystems, Inc. and HSBC
Bank, NA (10)
10.10 Revolving Term Note, dated as of July 22, 2011abg among the Registrant, Chembio Diagnostics Bystic. and HSBC Bank, NA
(11)
10.11 Loan and Security Agreement, dated as of July @212by and among the Registrant, Chembio Diagee8ystems, Inc. and HSBC
Bank, NA (11)
141 Ethics Policy (12
21 List of Subsidiarie:
23.1 Consent of BDO USA, LLP, Independent RegisterediP#lzcountants
23.2 Consent of ParenteBeard LLC, Independent Registeudtic Accountants
311 Certification of the Chief Executive Officer pursuido Section 302 of the Sarba-Oxley Act of 2002
31.2 Certification of the Chief Financial Officer pursuao Section 302 of the Sarba-Oxley Act of 2002
32 Certification of Chief Executive Officer and Chieihancial Officer pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section@ 85 adopted pursuant to Section 906
of the Sarban«-Oxley Act of 2002
101.INS XBRL Instance Documet
101.SCH XBRL Taxonomy Extension Schema Docum
101.CAL XBRL Taxonomy Extension Calculation Linkbase Docuntr
101.DEF XBRL Taxonomy Definition Linkbase Docume
101.LAB XBRL Taxonomy Label Linkbase Docume
101.PRE XBRL Taxonomy Presentation Linkbase Docum
1 Incorporated by reference to the Regist's annual report on Form -KSB filed with the Commission on March 31, 2C.
2 Incorporated by reference to the Registrant’s tegfisn statement on Form SB-2 (File No. 333-8578&) with the Commission on
August 23, 1999 and the Registrant's For-K filed on May 14, 2004, December 20, 2007 and Ap8i 2008.
3 Incorporated by reference to the Regist's annual report on Form -KSB filed with the Commission on March 12, 20!
4 Incorporated by reference to the Regist's definitive proxy statement on Schedule 14A fildth the Commission on May 11, 20(
5 Incorporated by reference to the Regist's definitive proxy statement on Schedule 14A fildth the Commission on April 14, 200
6 Incorporated by reference to the Regist's registration statement on Fori-A filed with the Commission on March 11, 20:
7 Incorporated by reference to the Regist's Current Report on Forn-K filed with the Commission on June 21, 20
8 Incorporated by reference to the Regist's registration statement on Fori-1/A filed with the Commission on March 11, 20:
9 Incorporated by reference to the Regist's Current Report on Forn-K filed with the Commission on October 5, 20

10 Incorporated by reference to the Regisf's Quarterly Report on Form -Q filed with the Commission on July 29, 20:

11 Incorporated by reference to the Regis’'s Quarterly Report on Form -Q filed with the Commission on November 3, 20

12 Incorporated by reference to the Regist's annual report on Form -KSB filed with the Commission on March 30, 20!

*) An asterisk (*) beside an exhibit number indicatesexhibit contains a management contract, congtensplan or arrangement which is

required to be identified in this registration staent.
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SIGNATURES

In accordance with Section 13 or 15(d) of the ExgjgaAct, the registrant has caused this reporetsipned on its behalf by the undersig
thereunto duly authorized.

CHEMBIO DIAGNOSTICS, INC.

Date: March 8, 2012 By /s/ Lawrence A. Siebert
Lawrence A. Siebert
President, Chief Executive Officer and
Chairman of the Board

In accordance with the requirements of the Exchakgethis report has been signed below by theofeithg persons on behalf of the regist
and in the capacities and on the dates indicated.

Signature: Title Date

Chief Executive Officer, President and ChairmanT®é

Board (Principal Executive Officer) March 8, 2012

[s/ Lawrence A. Siebert
Lawrence A. Siebel

Chief Financial Officer (Principal Financial & Acuanting March 8. 2012

/s/ Richard J. Larkin Officer)
Richard J. Larkir

Director March 8, 2012
sl Gary Meller
Dr. Gary Meller

Director March 8, 2012
[s/ Katherine L. Davis
Katherine L. Davis

Director March 8, 2012
[s/ Pete Kissinger
Pete Kissinge

Director March 8, 2012

/s/ Barbara DeBuono
Barbara DeBuon
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

To The Board of Directors and Stockholders of
Chembio Diagnostics, Inc. and Subsidiary
Medford, New York

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balsheet of Chembio Diagnostics, Inc. and Subsidtae “Company”)as of December 31, 2011 ¢
the related consolidated statements of operatisttgkholders' equity and cash flows for the yeantlended. These financial statements an
responsibility of the Company's management. Oysaesibility is to express an opinion on these foiahstatements based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the stedslof the Public Company Accounting Oversighti@d@nited States). Those standards require
we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonabtirance about whether the consolidated finastaééments are free of material misstatement.
Company is not required to have, nor were we erdyégeerform, an audit of its internal control ofi@ancial reporting. Our audit included considina
of internal control over financial reporting as asls for designing audit procedures that are apjatepin the circumstances, but not for the purpof
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of thm@any's internal control over financial reportingccordingly, we express no such opinion. An ¢
also includes examining, on a test basis, evidenpgorting the amounts and disclosures in the fiahistatements, assessing the accounting prirg
used and significant estimates made by managememigll as evaluating the overall financial statenpgesentation. We believe that our audit provie
reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements referre@bove present fairly, in all material respedis, ¢consolidated financial position of Chembio Diagfics

Inc. and Subsidiary as of December 31, 2011, aadc:tinsolidated results of their operations and tteesh flows for the year then ended in confor
with accounting principles generally accepted m thhited States of America.

BDO USA, LLP

/s/IBDO USA, LLP

Melville, New York
March 8, 2012
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

To The Board of Directors and Stockholders of
Chembio Diagnostics, Inc. and Subsidiary
Medford, New York

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balgineet of Chembio Diagnostics, Inc. and Subsidthe “Company”as of December 31, 2010 ¢
the related consolidated statements of operat&toskholders' equity and cash flows for the yeantanded. These consolidated financial statensee
the responsibility of the Company's management.r@sgonsibility is to express an opinion on thesesolidated financial statements based on our .audit

We conducted our audit in accordance with the stadedof the Public Company Accounting Oversight®d&nited States). Those standards require
we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonabtirance about whether the consolidated finastaééments are free of material misstatement.
Company is not required to have, nor were we erdyjageerform, an audit of its internal control ofi@ancial reporting. Our audit included considirna
of internal control over financial reporting as asls for designing audit procedures that are apf@tapin the circumstances, but not for the purpof
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of thm@any's internal control over financial reportingccordingly, we express no such opinion. An ¢
also includes examining, on a test basis, evidenpporting the amounts and disclosures in the diokladed financial statements, assessing the acim
principles used and significant estimates made Agagement, as well as evaluating the overall fimdistatement presentation. We believe that odit
provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements referredibove present fairly, in all material respedis, ¢onsolidated financial position of Chembio Diasfits

Inc. and Subsidiary as of December 31, 2010, aadc:timsolidated results of their operations andr tbeesh flows for the year then ended in confor
with accounting principles generally accepted i thmited States of America.

PARENTEBEARD LLC

/sl PARENTEBEARD LLC

New York, New York
March 8, 2012
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CHEMBIO DIAGNOSTICS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

AS OF
- ASSETS -
December 31, 2011 December 31, 201

CURRENT ASSETS:
Cash and cash equivalel $ 3,010,95. $ 2,136,35:
Accounts receivable, net of allowance for doub#fetounts of $30,000 and $35,000 for 2C

and 2010, respective 2,998,44! 3,946,39:
Inventories 2,300,28! 1,349,16.
Prepaid expenses and other current assets 681,89: 204,82«
TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS 8,991,58; 7,636,73
FIXED ASSETS, net of accumulated depreciati 1,062,271 813,21«
OTHER ASSETS:
Deferred tax asset, net of valuation allowa 4,749,622 -
License agreements, net of current por 500,00( 600,00(
Deposits on manufacturing equipmi 139,79( -
Deposits and other assets 42,47 36,22¢
TOTAL ASSETS $ 15,485,74 $ 9,086,17.

- LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS ' EQUITY -
CURRENT LIABILITIES:

Accounts payable and accrued liabilit $ 2,789,501 $ 2,055,94.
Current portion of loans payat 53,55( 55,811
Deferred revenu - 65,00(
License fee payab - 875,00(
Current portion of obligations under capital leases 14,57¢ 24,69
TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES 2,857,621 3,076,45
OTHER LIABILITIES:

Loans payabl- net of current portio 133,48 186,19°
Obligations under capital leases - net of curremtipn - 14,57¢
TOTAL LIABILITIES 2,991,111 3,277,23|

COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY:
Preferred stoc— 10,000,000 shares authorized, none outstar - -
Common stock - $.01 par value; 100,000,000 sharé¢mezed, 63,368,096 and 62,238,98:

shares issued and outstanding for 2011 and 204ectvely 633,68: 622,39(
Additional paic-in capital 40,124,222 39,658,61
Accumulated deficit (28,263,27) (34,472,06)
TOTAL STOCKHOLDERS ' EQUITY 12,494,63 5,808,94
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY $ 15,485,74 $ 9,086,17.

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements
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CHEMBIO DIAGNOSTICS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME
FOR THE YEARS ENDED

December 31, 2011 December 31, 201

REVENUES:
Net product sale $ 17,422,31 $ 13,516,35
License and royalty revenue 140,32 432,23¢
R&D, milestone and grant revenue 1,825,40: 2,756,10!
TOTAL REVENUES 19,388,03 16,704,70
Cost of product sales 9,997,73: 8,604,00-
GROSS MARGIN 9,390,30: 8,100,69!
OPERATING EXPENSES:
Research and development exper 4.878,11! 2,586,30:i
Selling, general and administrative expenses 3,424,29 2,940,72.
8,302,411 5,527,02!
INCOME FROM OPERATIONS 1,087,88 2,573,67!

OTHER INCOME (EXPENSES):

Other expens - (3,929
Interest incomt 6,29¢ 4,147
Interest expense (18,627) (14,727

(12,32%) (14,509
INCOME BEFORE INCOME TAXES 1,075,56: 2,559,16
Income tax (benefit) provision (5,133,229 45,82
NET INCOME $ 6,208,79. $ 2,513,34.
Basic net income per shar $ 0.1C $ 0.04
Diluted net income per share $ 0.0¢ $ 0.04
Weighted average number of shares outstanding, bax 62,998,40 62,102,86
Weighted average number of shares outstanding, ditad 68,450,22 70,920,91

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements
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Balance at December 31
2009

Warrants and options:
Excercisec
Stock option compensatic

Net income

Balance at December 31
2010

Warrants and options:
Excercisec
Stock option compensatic

Net income

Balance at December 31,
2011

CHEMBIO DIAGNOSTICS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN STOCKHOLDERS * EQUITY

FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2011 AND 201(

Additional Paid in Accumulated
Common Stock Capital Deficit Total
Shares Amount Amount Amount Amount

61,979,90 $ 619,79¢ $ 39,453,52 $ (36,985,40) $ 3,087,91.
259,08: 2,591 35,02( - 37,611
- - 170,07" - 170,07!
- - - 2,513,34. 2,513,34.
62,238,98 $ 622,39( $ 39,658,61 $ (34,472,06) $ 5,808,94.
1,129,11. 11,29! 276,26 - 287,55:
- - 189,34° - 189,34
- - - 6,208,79. 6,208,79.
63,368,09 $ 633,68. $ 40,124,22 $ (28,263,27) $ 12,494,63.

See accompanying notes to consolidated financédstents
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CHEMBIO DIAGNOSTICS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED

December 31,

December 31,

2011 2010

INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS:
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Cash received from customers and gri $ 20,335,988 $ 14,534,63
Cash paid to suppliers and employ (18,055,25) (13,507,20)
Interest receive 6,29¢ 4,147
Interest paid (18,627) (14,727
Net cash provided by operating activities 2,268,40: 1,016,85!
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Acquisition of and deposits on fixed assets (726,68() (182,297)
Net cash used in investing activitie (726,68() (182,297)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Proceeds from option and warrant exerc 287,55: 37,61
Proceeds from loa - 250,00(
Payment of license obligatic (875,00() -
Payment of loan obligatic (54,980 (32,51)
Payment of capital lease obligation (24,697 (21,53¢)
Net cash (used in) provided by financing activities (667,12 233,55¢
INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 874,60: 1,068,11i
Cash and cash equivalents - beginning of the period 2,136,35. 1,068,23!
Cash and cash equivalent- end of the period $ 3,0109 $ 2,136,35
RECONCILIATION OF NET INCOME TO NET CASH PROVIDED B Y OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Net Income $ 6,208,79 $ 2,513,34
Adjustments

Depreciation and amortizatic 437,82¢ 283,74

Provision for deferred taxe (5,155,71) -

Provision for doubtful accoun (5,000 15,00(

Loss on retirement/sale of fixed as - 3,927

Share based compensat 189,34° 170,07!
Changes in assets and liabilit:

Accounts receivabl 952,94¢ (2,185,07)

Inventories (951,129 206,74

Prepaid expenses and other current a: (70,979 61,81:

Deposits and other assi (6,24¢) 93,33¢

Accounts payable and accrued liabilit 733,55° 149,78(

Deferred research and development revenue (65,000) (295,83))
Net cash provided by operating activities $ 2,268,400 $ 1,016,85!
Supplemental disclosures for non-cash investing arfthancing activities:

Deposits on manufacturing equipment transferrdikea asset: $ - $ 338,37!

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements




CHEMBIO DIAGNOSTICS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 1 — DESCRIPTION OF BUSINESS:

Chembio Diagnostics, Inc. (the “Company” or “Cheoibiand its subsidiary, Chembio Diagnostic Systeins,, develop,
manufacture, and market rapid diagnostic testsdbtct infectious diseases. The Company’s maidymts are three rapid tests
for the detection of HIV antibodies in whole blo@mkrum and plasma samples, two of which were aggrdy the FDA in
2006; the third is sold for export only. LaterdéWw Rapid HIV tests represented nearly 74% of tbenfBany’s product revenues
in 2011. The Company’s products based on itsnpateDPP® platform represented approximately 24%hef Company’s
product revenues in 2011. The Company also has o#ipéd tests that together represented approxiyn@e of sales in
2011. The Company’'s products are sold to medatadratories and hospitals, governmental and puigaith entities, non-
governmental organizations, medical professionats r@tail establishments both domestically andrivggonally. Chembio’s
products are sold under the Company’s STAT PAK®BREUCHECK® or DPP® registered trademarks, or untergrivate
labels of its marketing partners, for example tHea@iew® label owned by Alere, Inc. (“Alere”), wdfi is the Company’s
exclusive marketing partner for its rapid HIV lakflow test products in the United States. Thaslucts employ lateral flow
technologies that are proprietary and/or licensedhe Company. All of the Company’s products thet currently being
developed are based on its patented Dual PathoRtafDPP®), which is a unique diagnostic point-afe platform that has
certain advantages over lateral flow technology.

NOTE 2 — SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES:

@)

(b)

(©

(d)

(©

Principles of Consolidation:

The consolidated financial statements include tte®ants of the Company, and its wholly owned subsjd All intercompany
transactions and balances have been eliminatezhsotidation.

Use of Estimates:

The preparation of consolidated financial statesémtconformity with accounting principles geneyadiccepted in the United
States requires management to make assumptionssdingates that affect the reported amounts of siss®d liabilities and
disclosure of contingent assets and liabilitieshat dates of the consolidated financial statemantsthe reported amounts of
revenues and expenses during the reporting peciokered thereby. Actual results could differ frdmege estimates. Judgments
and estimates of uncertainties are required inyapplthe Company’s accounting policies in certaieas. The following are
some of the areas requiring significant judgmentd astimates: determinations of the useful livesagdets, estimates of
allowances for doubtful accounts, inventory reseraed deferred tax assets.

Fair Value of Financial | nstruments:

The carrying value for cash and cash equivalermtsounts receivable and accounts payable, approgifaatvalue because of
the immediate or short-term maturity of these firiahinstruments. The Company’s debt relates todwangs under its credit
facilities and term loan (see Note 7), which apprates fair value due to market interest rates.

Statements of Cash Flows:

For purposes of the statements of cash flows th@paay considers all highly liquid investments withmaturity of three
months or less when purchased to be cash equisalent

Concentrations of Credit Risk:

Financial instruments which potentially subject thempany to concentrations of credit risk consratgipally of temporary
cash investments and trade receivables. The Comptages its temporary cash instruments with wetiin financial
institutions and, at times, may maintain balanece®xcess of the FDIC Insurance limit. The Compamnitors the credit
ratings of the financial institutions to mitigathig risk. Concentration of credit risk with respeo trade receivables is
principally mitigated by the Company’s ability tbtain letters of credit from certain foreign custms) and its diverse customer
base both in number of customers and geographatitos. We currently do not require collateraldocounts receivable.
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CHEMBIO DIAGNOSTICS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2011 AND 2010

Inventories:

Inventories, consisting of material, labor and nfanturing overhead, are stated at the lower of a@wstmarket. Cost is
determined on the first-in, first-out method.

Fixed Assets:

Fixed assets are stated at cost less accumulapedciggtion. Depreciation is computed using thaight-line method over the
estimated useful lives of the respective assetgshwtange from three to seven years. Leaseholdaw@ments are amortized
over the useful life of the asset or the lease tevhichever is shorter.

License Agreement:

In February 2008, the Company entered into a seiiie agreement (see Note 6) for which it had Ihitr@ecorded an asset of
$1,000,000. This asset is being expensed ovestmated economic life of ten years, based on #peeted lifespan of our
then current HIV products. The current portiontlé asset is $100,000 as of December 31, 20112amb@ and is reported in
prepaid expenses and other current assets. Thedom portion as of December 31, 2011 and 2085&0,000 and $600,000,
respectively and is reflected in other assets erctinsolidated balance sheet.

Impairment of Long-Lived Assets and | ntangible Assets

Long-lived assets to be held and used are anafggethpairment whenever events or changes in cigtances indicate that the
related carrying amounts may not be recoverable Tompany evaluates at each balance sheet dathewhevents and
circumstances have occurred that indicate possiipairment. If there are indications of impairmethie Company uses future
undiscounted cash flows of the related asset agtag®uping over the remaining life in measuringetiter the assets are
recoverable. In the event such cash flows areerpécted to be sufficient to recover the recordesbiavalues, the assets are
written down to their estimated fair value. Weibet that the carrying values of our long-livedginhe and intangible assets
were realizable at December 31, 2011 and 2010ectisply.

Revenue Recognition:

The Company recognizes revenue for product salesdordance with Securities and Exchange CommisSiafi Accounting
Bulletin No. 104, “Revenue Recognition” (“SAB 104"VJnder SAB 104, revenue is recognized when therpersuasive
evidence of an arrangement, delivery has occurredeovices have been rendered, the sales priceeterndinable, and
collectability is reasonably assured. Revenuecslpi is recognized at time of shipment. Salesrammrded net of discounts,
rebates and returns.

For certain contracts, the Company recognizes evérom non-milestone contracts and grant revemde=n earned. Grants
are invoiced after expenses are incurred. Revefiaesprojects or grants funded in advance arerdedeuntil earned. As of
December 31, 2011 and 2010, an aggregate of nah®6H000, respectively of advanced revenues wearaed.

On June 15, 2010, the Company adopted Financiabdmting Standards Board (“FASB”) issued authomatguidance
(“guidance”) prospectively for the recognition afvenue under the milestone method. The Companyieaptiie milestone
method of revenue recognition for certain collabiwearesearch projects defining milestones at tiception of the agreement.

Research and Development:
Research and development (R&D) costs are expersset@arred. During the fourth quarter of 2010 @@mpany was awarded
$1,466,875 in Qualified Therapeutic Discovery Peogrants (“QTDP”) for the years 2010 and 2009 urfsiection 48D of the

Internal Revenue Code, as enacted under the Pd&iemtction and Affordable Care Act of 2010. Thias reflected as a
reduction of R&D costs for the year ended Decen3ier2010.
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CHEMBIO DIAGNOSTICS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2011 AND 2010

Stock-Based Compensation:

Stock-based compensation expense is calculated thgnBlack-Sholes valuation model based on awaltasately expected to
vest, reduced for forfeitures, and expensed onadgbt-line basis over the requisite service pedbthe grant.

Income Taxes.

The Company accounts for income taxes under theigioos of FASB Guidance. The deferred tax assetsl@bilities are
determined based on the difference between thadiabstatement carrying amounts and the tax bakassets and liabilities
using enacted tax rates in effect in the yearshitiwthe differences are expected to reverse.

The Guidance also prescribes a more-likely-thanthmshold for financial statement recognition andasurement of a tax
position taken, or expected to be taken, in a &Mrn. The Guidance also provides guidance reletedmong other things,
classification, accounting for interest and peealtssociated with tax positions, and disclosugairements. Any interest and
penalties accrued related to uncertain tax postieitl be recorded in tax expense.

Earnings Per Share
The following weighted average shares were usethfocomputation of basic and diluted earningsspare:

For the years endec
December 31, 201, December 31, 201
Basic 62,998,40 62,102,386

Diluted 68,450,22 70,920,91
Basic earnings per share is computed by dividingeaenings attributable to common stockholders Hegy weighted-average
number of common shares outstanding for the pebBddted earnings per share for the year ended Dbee 31, 2011 and 2010
reflects the potential dilution from the exercigeconversion of other securities into common stock.
The following securities, presented on a commomeskguivalent basis, have been used in the dilgedhare computations:

For the years ended
December 31, 201 December 31, 201

1999 and 2008 Plan Stoc

Options 5,451,81i 5,638,31!
Other Stock Options - 124,62*
Warrants - 3,055,11!

5,451,81i 8,818,05-

There were 708,631 and none options and warramssamging as of December 31, 2011 and 2010, raspigctwhich were not
included in the calculation of diluted income pka® for the years ended because their effect woand been anti-dilutive.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements Affecting the Company:

Revenue Arrangements with Multiple Deliverables

In October 2009, the FASB issued authoritative gna that amends existing guidance for identif@agarate deliverables in a
revenue-generating transaction where multiple éedifles exist, and provides guidance for allocatind recognizing revenue
based on those separate deliverables. The guidanegpected to result in more multiple-deliverabl@angements being

separable than under current guidance. This go@ldecame effective for the Company on Januar¥)11.2 The adoption of
this guidance did not have a material impact onGbmpany’s consolidated financial statements.
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CHEMBIO DIAGNOSTICS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DECEMBER 31, 2011 AND 2010

NOTE 3 — INVENTORIES:

Inventories consist of the following at:

December 31, 201

December 31, 201

Raw materials $ 1,340,17 $ 785,69
Work in process 390,16: 235,54¢
Finished goods 569,94° 327,92(

$ 2,300,281 $ 1,349,16:

NOTE 4 — FIXED ASSETS:

Fixed assets consist of the following at Decemier 3

December 31, 201.

December 31, 201

Machinery and equipme $ 1,982,921 $ 1,635,461
Furniture and fixture 221,29¢ 207,48¢
Computer and telephone equipm 460,84: 348,50
Leasehold improvemen 595,49: 482,21}
Automobiles 29,22¢ 29,22¢
3,289,78 2,702,89

Less accumulated depreciation and amortizi (2,227,51) (1,889,68)
$ 1,062,271 $ 813,21«

Included in fixed assets is $8,000 and $24,0000hetccumulated depreciation of $103,000 and $& @f0assets held under
capital leases as of December 31, 2011 and 204fecavely. Fixed assets also include $223,0G8iipment, which has been
delivered and set-up but is undergoing validatinod as such is currently not being depreciated pr@=ation expense for the
2011 and 2010 years aggregated $338,000 and $ZB4¢3pectively.

As of December 31, 2011, the Company had paid dispms various pieces of equipment aggregating ¥&®and is reflected
in Other Assets on the balance sheet. The Commafyrther committed to an additional obligation $f51,910 as various

milestones are achieved by the various vendors.

NOTE 5 — ACCOUNTS PAYABLE AND ACCRUED LIABILITIES:

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities consigheffollowing at December 31,:

December 31, 2011

December 31, 201

Accounts payable- suppliers $ 1,258,46! $ 883,71¢
Accrued commissions 205,58¢ 114,45
Accrued royalties / license fees 480,29° 352,28¢
Accrued payroll 174,39¢ 162,74(
Accrued vacation 156,88 129,73:
Accrued bonuses 284,37" 140,32!
Accrued income taxes 11,52 -
Accrued expense- other 217,97( 272,69:
TOTAL $ 2,789,500 $ 2,055,94.
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CHEMBIO DIAGNOSTICS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2011 AND 2010

NOTE 6 — DEFERRED RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT REVENUE:

In January 2009, the Company received a refundal#ase fee of $340,000 from Bio-Rad Laboratories,, pursuant to an
exclusive license of our DPP® technology for a #fieéield of use. The license fee become fullyrezd and non-refundable
based upon certain conditions being met in Jun20&D. In addition, the Company recognizes incornenfR&D milestones
when those milestones are reached and non-milestomteacts and grants when earned. Grants arécetv@fter expenses are
incurred. Any projects or grants funded in advaaeedeferred until earned. As of December 31, 201012010, an aggregate of
none and $65,000 of advanced revenues was unearned.

NOTE 7 — TERM NOTE, REVOLVING DEMAND NOTE, VEHICLE FINANCING AND LICENSE FEE PAYABLE:

In June 2010, the Company entered into three agrenwith HSBC Bank, NA (“HSBC”). The three agremits were: 1) a
secured term note (“Term Note”) of $250,000 to bpaid over sixty months; 2) a secured revolving aetnnote (“Demand
Note”) up to $250,000; and 3) a loan and secugrgement (“Security Agreement”).

The Term Note is payable at $4,775 per month ieaas. The payment was calculated by amortizing#%,000 note over 60
months at an interest rate of 5.5% per annum. Tten Note matures June, 2015 and is secured unhegetms of the Security
Agreement.

The Demand Note allows the Company to draw on ifhe from time to time an amount up to an aggregdt&250,000
outstanding at any one time. The accrued intereshe Demand Note is payable monthly at an inteege equal to one-quarter
percent above prime per annum. The Company caayrapy or all of the principal balance outstandigny time. This is a
demand note and is subject to annual reviews, 4swa 30-day clean-up, during which there cand@amounts outstanding.

The Security Agreement contains covenants thaeplestrictions on the Company’s operations, inclgdiovenants relating to
mergers, debt restrictions, capital expenditurasgible net worth, net profit, leverage, fixed geicoverage, employee loan
restrictions, distribution restrictions (commondat@nd preferred stock), dividend restrictionstrieions on lease payments to
affiliates, restrictions on changes in businesseisale restrictions, restrictions on acquisitiand intercompany transactions,
restrictions on fundamental changes. The SecAgtgement also requires that the Company maintamngmum tangible net
worth at all times of greater than $3,000,000 aBdTIBA to CMLTD plus interest cannot be less tha@5lto 1.00 for any fiscal
year. (EBITDA is earnings before interest, taxepréciation and amortization; CMLTD is defined fag,any one-year period,
the current scheduled principal payments requioellet paid for the applicable period.). The Compasag in compliance with
all required financial covenants at December 31,120

In July 2011, the Company entered into additiorggteaments with HSBC Bank, NA (“HSBC”). The agreeisewere: 1) a
secured revolving demand note for equipment (“Eopaipt Note”) up to $500,000, convertible to a temwterafter one year; and
2) a loan and security agreement (“Security Agragte

The Equipment Note allows the Company to draw anlithe from time to time an amount up to an aggeegd $500,000

outstanding at any one time. The accrued intameghe Equipment Note is payable monthly at anrésterate equal to one-
quarter percent above prime per annum. The Compamyrepay any or all of the principal balance wuiding at any

time. The Equipment Note will be converted int6tamonth term note at the end of one year.

The Security Agreement contains covenants thaeplastrictions on the Company’s operations, inclgdiovenants relating to
mergers, debt restrictions, capital expenditurasgible net worth, net profit, leverage, fixed gdercoverage, employee loan
restrictions, distribution restrictions (commoncit@nd preferred stock), dividend restrictionsfriesons on lease payments to
affiliates, restrictions on changes in businessetasale restrictions, restrictions on acquisitiand intercompany transactions,
restrictions on fundamental changes. The Compeasyin compliance with all required financial comets at December 31,
2011.
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CHEMBIO DIAGNOSTICS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2011 AND 2010

The Company currently maintains its operating, plyand primary cash accounts at HSBC. The balatwe on the Term
Note as of December 31, 2011 was $182,000 andngpthias drawn down on the Demand or equipment Notef ®ecember
31, 2011.

Future minimum payments under the Term Note, exetudhterest, as of December 31, 2011 were asvislio

Periods ending December 31,

2012 $ 48,50:
2013 51,23¢
2014 54,12¢
2015 28,12;
181,98!

Less: current maturities (48,50))
$ 133,48:

In June 2009, the Company purchased a vehicle derby the CEO and obtained financing in the amaofir$29,000. The
financing is for a period of 3 years, is securedh®y vehicle and is guaranteed by the CEO. Thenfimg agreement provides
for monthly principal and interest payments of $&4#@ carries an interest rate of 2.9% per annuhe bRlance due on this loan
as of December 31, 2011 was $5,000.

Future minimum payments under this obligation, ediig interest as of December 31, 2011 were asvist!

Year ending December 31,

2012 $ 5,04¢
5,04¢

Less: current maturities (5,049)
$ -

In February 2008, the Company entered into a seiie agreement (the “Agreement”), with Bio-Rad lLrataries, Inc. and
Bio-Rad Pasteur (collectively, “Bio-Rad”). Bio-Rasl the exclusive licensee of the HIV-2 patent fodid held by Institute
Pasteur of Paris, France. On January 29, 20@9Ctmpany and Bio-Rad agreed to amend the Agreeseeas to defer the
remaining $875,000 of payments due under the Ageaéno one payment due in December 2010 which &asqn January 3,
2011. The Company will also pay Bio-Rad a royadty net sales in the United States and Canada,Vif a@hrapid test
immunoassay tests sold under the Company’s brahtd&censed Products as defined in the Agreemené Agreement will
continue until the expiration of the last-to-expafethe sublicensed patents, unless otherwise textend at an earlier date by the
Company or Bio-Rad.

NOTE 8 — OBLIGATIONS UNDER CAPITAL LEASES:
The Company is obligated under capitalized leasesdrtain manufacturing and computer equipment.

Future minimum lease payments under these camthlzase obligations, including interest as of Ddwer 31, 2011 were as
follows:

Year ending December 31,

2012 $ 15,20:

15,20:

Less imputed interest (627)
Present value of future minimum lease

payments 14,57¢

Less current maturities (14,57¢)

$ _

These leases have annual interest rates rangimg1féd6 - 15%.
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CHEMBIO DIAGNOSTICS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2011 AND 2010

NOTE 9 — RELATED PARTIES:

In September 2006, the Company entered into digtab and licensing agreements with Alere, Inc.lé®"). As of December
31, 2011, Alere owns 8.48% of the Company. Se& NB6twhere Alere is listed as customer 1.

During the quarter ended December 31, 2008, Aletdied the Company that they had entered into @treat with Bio-Rad
Laboratories, Inc. (“Bio-Rad”) for royalties on BRad’'s patent for the detection of HIV-2 antibodidhe agreement also
provided for Alere to pay past royalties. On J@% 2009, the Company and Alere entered into arletgreement whereby
certain obligations were agreed to be paid fromriirevenues. The obligations included the Comigamyalties owed under
its agreements with Alere on lateral flow licens&ssuch royalty obligations were fully paid in 20.

NOTE 10 — INCOME TAXES:

The provision (benefit) for income taxes for thegeended December 31, 2011 and 2010, is comprfdbe following:

2011 201(
Current

Federal $ 2208. $ 45,12
State 402 701
Total current provision 22,48¢ 45,82

Deferred
Federal (5,155,71) -
State - -
Total deferred provision (5,155,71) -
Total provision $ (5,133,22) $ 45,82:

The Company had an ownership change as describbdeimal Revenue Code Sec. 382 during 2004 (“28tahge”). As a
result, the Company’s net operating losses prith¢o2004 change of $5,832,516 are subject to anatimitation of $150,608
and for the first five (5) years are entitled t8k5 (Built-In-Gains) of $488,207 per year. Thesé¢ operating losses expire in
2018 through 2024.

The Company had a second ownership change duridg 2006 change”). The net operating losses irzlitretween the 2004
change and the 2006 change of $8,586,861 are $ubjeo annual limitation of $1,111,831 and for thst five (5) years are
entitled to a BIG of $1,756,842 per year. Theseopetrating losses expire in 2018 through 2028.

After applying the above limitations, at Decembér 3011, the Company has post-change net operassgcarry-forwards of

approximately $14,225,901 which expire between 2820 2028. In addition the Company has researdndamelopment tax
credit carryforwards of approximately $582,000the year ended December 31, 2011, which expiredsstv2025 and 2031.
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CHEMBIO DIAGNOSTICS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2011 AND 2010

Prior to 2011 and through September 30, 2011, tregany had a full valuation allowance recorded regjaleferred tax assets.
In the fourth quarter of 2011, based on our susthprofitable operating performance over the gastet years and our positive
outlook for taxable income in the future, the Compaeevaluated its deferred tax asset. Based thmguidance under ASC
740 that it was more likely than not that the Compavould realize the benefit of such deferred tagess, the Company
reversed $5,156,000 of the valuation allowanceiptesly recorded against its deferred tax assets.ddmpany still maintains

a full valuation allowance on research and devekprtax credits.

Deferred tax assets consist of at December 31,

2011 2010
Current assets
Inventory reserve $ 260,66¢ $ 198,00(
Accrued expense 145,42¢ -
Less valuation allowance - (198,00()
Net current deferred ass $ 406,09: $ -
Noncurrent assets
Net operating loss car-forwards $ 4,837,461 $ 6,618,001
Research and development cr 581,57¢ 594,00(
Other 132,73¢ 34,00(
Gross noncurrent deferred tax as: 5,551,77! 7,246,00!
Depreciation (220,579 -
Noncurrent deferred tax ass 5,331,19: 7,246,00!
Less valuation allowances (581,57¢) (7,246,001
Net noncurrent deferred tax ass $ 4,749,622, $ =

A reconciliation of the Federal statutory ratehe effective rate applicable to income (loss) befacome taxes is as follows:

Year Ending December 3

2011 2010
Federal income tax (benefit) at statutory r: 34% 34%
State income taxes, net of federal ber 0% 0%
Nondeductible expens: 6.4% 2%
Change in valuation allowan -514.2% -34.4%
Other -0.7% 0.2%
Income tax (benefit) -474.6% 1.6%

Interest and penalties, if any, related to incomelibilities are included in income tax expenge of December 31, 2011, the
Company does not have a liability for uncertainpasitions.

The Company files Federal and New York state incaaxereturns. Tax years for fiscal 2008 througih@@re open and
potentially subject to examination by the federad &lew York state taxing authorities.
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CHEMBIO DIAGNOSTICS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2011 AND 2010

NOTE 11 — STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY:

@

Common Stock

During 2011, options to purchase 615,415 shar¢seo€ompany’s common stock were exercised at eserices ranging
from of $.13 to $.22.

During 2010, options to purchase 259,082 shar¢iseo€ompany’s common stock were exercised at eseqrices ranging
from of $.13 to $.22.

(b) Preferred Stock

(©

The Company has 10,000,000 shares of preferre# atgborized and none outstanding. These sharebemme issuable
upon an approved resolution by the board of dirscaad the filing of a Certificate of Designatioitiwthe state of Nevada.

Warrants

On April 26, 2011, warrants to purchase 513,698eshaf common stock were exercised at $.40 peeshiBine Company
received $205,479 for this exercise.

As of December 31, 2011, the Company had warramtstanding to purchase 33,381 shares of commok sto& price of
$.81. On February 5, 2012 these warrants to psechhares of common stock expired.

In January 2010, certain warrants to purchase ameggted 4,960,370 shares of common stock expatedn average
exercise price of $.474. In August 2010, certaiarrants to purchase an aggregated 94,650 sharesnuhon stock
expired, at an average exercise price of $.687.

NOTE 12 — RIGHTS AGREEMENT:

In March 2010, the Company entered into a RightseAment dated March 8, 2010 (the "Rights Agreemematween the

Company and Action Stock Transfer Corp., as Righgent. Pursuant to the Rights Agreement, the Cayppieclared a

dividend distribution of one preferred share pusehdght (a "Right") for each outstanding shareCommon Stock, $0.01 par
value (the "Common Stock"), of the Company. The @ az Directors set the payment date for the distion of the Rights as
March 8, 2010, and the Rights were distributechim@ompany’s shareholders of record on that daie description and terms
of the Rights are set forth in the Rights Agreement

Rights Initially Not Exercisable. The Rights are not exercisable until a DistribntDate. Until a Right is exercised, the
holder thereof, as such, will have no rights abaeholder of the Company, including, without liation, the right to vote or to
receive dividends.
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CHEMBIO DIAGNOSTICS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2011 AND 2010

Separation and Distribution of Rights . The Rights will be evidenced by the certificafes shares of Common Stock
registered in the names of the holders thereof,rmdy separate rights certificates until theieatb occur of (i) the close of
business on the tenth business day following aipudthnouncement that an Acquiring Person (as deéfimethe Rights
Agreement) acquired a Combined Ownership (as deéfim¢he Rights Agreement) of 15% or more of théstanding shares of
the Common Stock (the "Shares Acquisition Date"iipthe later of (A) the close of business on teeth business day (or such
later date as may be determined by action of ther@of Directors prior to such time as any persogroup of affiliated or
associated persons becomes an Acquiring Persaar) thit date that a tender or exchange offer oniitle to commence a
tender or exchange offer by any person is firstliphbd, announced, sent or given within the meawninBule 14d-4(A) under
the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amendedcdimsummation of which would result in any perbaning Combined
Ownership of 15% or more of the outstanding shafahe Common Stock, or (B) if such a tender orhexme offer has been
published, announced, sent or given before theafatee Rights Agreement, then the close of busimesthe tenth business day
after the date the Rights Agreement was entered@rtsuch later date as may be determined byracfithe Board of Directors
prior to such time as any person becomes an AcguiPerson); (the earlier of such dates referred (@ and (ii), which date
may include any such date that is after the datb@Rights Agreement but prior to the issuancthefRights, being called the
"Distribution Date").

NOTE 13 — EMPLOYEE STOCK OPTION PLAN:

The Company has a 1999 Stock Option Plan (“SORgirally covering 1,500,000 shares of Common Stadkder the terms
of the SOP, the Compensation Committee of the Cayipdoard is authorized to grant incentive optitm&ey employees and
to grant non-qualified options to key employees ked individuals. The options become exercisableugh times and under
such conditions as determined by the Compensat@nndittee. The SOP was amended at the Companys &@gkholders’

meeting. The number of options under the SOP na®ased to cover 3,000,000 shares of common stogkas also amended
to allow independent directors to be eligible foargs under the portion of the SOP concerning naalified options. As of

December 31, 2011, there were 1,575,500 outstaraptigns under this SOP. No additional optiony fba issued under the
SOP more than 10 years after its adoption

Effective June 3, 2008, the Company’s stockholdeted to approve the 2008 Stock Incentive PlanR"gIwith 5,000,000
shares of Common Stock available to be issuedth@&tAnnual Stockholder meeting on September 22128& Company’s
stockholders voted to approve an increase to ttereshof Common Stock issuable under the SIP by0JQ00 to

6,000,000. Under the terms of the SIP, the Congtams Committee of the Company’s Board has therdigm to select the
persons to whom awards are to be granted. Awamideadncentive stock options, restricted stock andgstricted stock units.
The awards become vested at such times and undercaunditions as determined by the Compensationitiee. As of

December 31, 2011, there were 134,997 options meec4,551,568 options outstanding and 1,313,486ms still available to
be issued under the SIP.

The Company's results for the years ended DeceBiheR011 and 2010 include stock-based compensatipense totaling
$189,000 and $170,000, respectively. Such amduwamie been included in the Consolidated Statemdn@perations within
cost of goods sold ($18,000 and $20,000, respég}iveesearch and development ($56,000 and $86,G&pectively) and
selling, general and administrative expenses (®DIband $64,000, respectively). In accordance WBIC 718 the Company
has not recorded a deferred tax asset relatecetoethoperating losses resulting from the exemfisisqualifying stock options
in the accompanying financial statements. The cativd amount of unrecognized tax benefits at De@n#i, 2011 was
immaterial, and if the Company is able to utilibestbenefit in the future it would result in a citetd additional paid in capital.

Stock option compensation expense in the yearsdebdeember 31, 2011 and 2010 represents the estinfair value of
options outstanding which is being amortized otraight-line basis over the requisite vesting peiod the entire award.

The weighted average estimated fair value of stimtions granted in the years ended December 311, aadl 2010 was $.29
and $.22 per share, respectively. The fair valueptions at the date of grant was estimated utfiegBlack-Scholes option
pricing model. The expected volatility is based mjpistorical volatility of our stock and other cahtiting factors. The expected
term is determined using the simplified method esitted by SAB 107, as the Company has minimabhjsof employee
exercise of options to date.
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The weighted-average assumptions made in calcgléimfair values of options are as follows:

For the years ended
December 31, 201. December 31, 201

Expected term (in years) 3.75 4
Expected volatility 111.45% 116.82%
Expected dividend yield n/a n/a

Risk-free interest rate 0.78% 1.43%
The Company granted 500,000 and 781,250 new optiorieg the year ended December 31, 2011 to emptoged members

of the board of directors, respectively at an ageraxercise price of $.54 and $.35, respectivelyshare.

On May 3, 2011 and effective May 9, 2011 in accomdawith the terms of the Company’s 2008 Stock ritige Plan, the
Company granted certain employees of the Compapiyores to purchase an aggregate of 500,000 shédrée dCompany’s
common stock exercise price for these options wédmetequal to the VWAP (Volume Weighted Average®rimarket price for
the Company’s common stock on May 9, 2011. Theoptbecome exercisable evenly on the second ambahniversaries of
the effective date of the grant. Each option grdill expire and terminate, if not exercised sEmmipon the earlier to occur of
(a) 30 days after termination of the employee’s leypent with the Company or (b) the fifth annivassaf the effective date
of grant.

The following table provides stock options activiity the years ended December 31, 2011 and 2010:

Weighted Average Weighted Average

Exercise Price per Remaining Contractu; Aggregate Intrins

Stock Options Number of Share Share Term Value
Outstanding at January 1, 20 5,586,900 $ 0.1t 3.59 year: $ 756,99
Granted 300,00¢ $ 0.27

Exercisec (259,08) $ 0.1¢ $ 27,90
Forfeited/expired /cancelled (97,250 $ 0.2€

Outstanding at December 31, 201 5,530,56¢ $ 0.1€ 2.82 years $ 1,497,0€
Granted 1,281,25( $ 0.42

Exercisec (615,41 $ 0.1z $ 192,50
Forfeited/expired/cancelled (69,339 $ 0.3€

Outstanding at December 31, 201 6,127,06: $ 0.21 2.61 years $ 1,339,6¢
Exercisable at December 31, 2011 3,580,39: $ 0.17 2.03 years $ 906,15

The following table summarizes information abowtcktoptions outstanding at December 31, 2011:

Stock Options Outstanding Stock Options Exercisable

Average
Remaining Weighted Weighted

Range of Contract Life Average Aggregate Average Aggregate
Exercise Prices Shares (Year) Exercise Price Intrinsic Value Shares Exercise Price  Intrinsic Value
$ 0.13- 0.1: 4,020,31i 21t $ 0.1t $ 1,165,89: 2,773,64: ¢ 0.1z $ 804,35’
$ 0.14- 0.2 381,50( 1.13 0.2z 76,30( 381,50( 0.22 76,30(
$ 0.23- 0.4 1,081,25! 4.2¢ 0.3¢ 96,56 281,25( 0.3 24,56
$ 0.46 -0.5¢ 644,00( 3.4¢ 0.52 - 144,00( 0.4¢ -
Total 6,127,06: 2.61 % 0.21 $ 1,338,75! 3,580,39: $ 0.17 $ 905,21¢
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As of December 31, 2011, there was $287,000 ofinetcognized compensation cost related to stockmpthat are not vested,
which is expected to be recognized over a weighisgtage period of approximately 1.17 years. Tl fair value of shares
vested during the years ended December 31, 2012Gi® was $149,000 and $124,000, respectively.

NOTE 14 — GEOGRAPHIC INFORMATION:

FASB Guidance establishes standards for the waty bhsiness enterprises report information aboutaipey segments in
financial statements and requires that those etidempreport selected information. It also estaeksstandards for related
disclosures about product and services, geographis, and major customers.

The Company produces only one group of similar pet&l known collectively as “rapid medical tests"ahhgement believes
that it operates in a single business segmentsales by geographic area are as follows:

For the years ended
December 31, 201, December 31, 201

Africa $ 2,340,63! $ 6,129,16'
Asia 1,784,81 255,21
Europe 57,20¢ 107,06(
North America 8,522,87i 5,977,10:
South America 4,716,77! 912,81:

$ 17,422,31 $ 13,516,35'

Sales to Africa decreased in 2011 primarily dueless sales in Ethiopia of approximately $3.08 wmiliand Nigeria of
approximately $.64 million. Sales in Asia incre$mm a new distributer in the Middle East of ¥Lillion. Sales in 2011
and 2010 to North America were primarily from sateshe U.S of approximately $7.21 million and $&:2illion, respectively
and sales in 2011 and 2010 to South America weneapity from sales in Brazil of approximately $4.66llion and $822,000,

respectively.
NOTE 15 — COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES:

Employment Contracts:

The Company has contracts with two key employdés®e contracts call for salaries presently aggrega®510,000 per
year. One contract expires in May 2013 and ondrachexpires in March 2013. The following tabdea schedule of future
minimum salary commitments:

2012 $ 545,00(
2013 172,50(
$ 717,50(

Pension Plan:

The Company has a 401(k) plan established fomigleyees. Effective January 1, 2011 the Compaegted to match 40% of
the first 5% (or 2% of salary) that an employeetdbntes to their 401(k) plan. Expenses relatethie matching contribution
aggregated $74,464 and none for the years endeghiibesr 31, 2011 and 2010, respectively.

Obligations Under Operating L eases:

The Company leases industrial space used for offt®D and manufacturing facilities, currently with monthly rent of
$18,223. The current lease expires on April 30,420We entered into two additional leases in 2@he, effective November 1,
2011 and the second, signed in December, effedtimeiary 1, 2012, the principal terms of these kase the same as the one
entered into in 2009 which was as follows: (a) asteterm ending April 30, 2014; (b) an initial reft$11,350 per month ;
(c) the monthly rent for year two of the lease wiltrease by the lower of (i) the change in thescomer price index, or (ii) five
percent; and (d) the monthly rent for years thheeugh five of the lease will increase each yeathigylower of (i) the change in
the consumer price index, or (ii) two and one palfcent.
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The following is a schedule of future minimum rér@mmitments (assuming no increases):

Years ending December 31,

2012 $ 217,89¢
2013 217,89¢
2014 70,35¢

$ 506,15!

Rent expense was $177,200 and $174,200 for the peaed December 31, 2011 and 2010, respectively.
Economic Dependency:

The following table delineates sales the Compamlytbaustomers in excess of 10% of total saleshfeperiods indicated:

Accounts
For the years endec Receivable
December 31, 201. December 31, 201! As of
% of % of
Sales Sales Sales Sales December 31, 201
Customer 1 $ 7,208,71; 41 $ 5,281,11. 39 % 782,30(
Customer : 4,662,60° 27 * * 685,69:
Customer & 1,713,391 10 - - 450,00(
Customer ¢ * * 3,689,86! 27 -

In the table above the asterisk (*) indicates Hads to the customer did not exceed 10% for thegedicated.
The Company had no vendor in excess of 10% of mtethases for the period ended December 31, 2011.

The Company currently buys materials which are Ipased under intellectual property rights agreemantb are important
components in its products. Management believasdther suppliers could provide similar matermbscomparable terms. A
change in suppliers, however, could cause a delagyanufacturing and a possible loss of sales, whichld affect operating
results adversely.

NOTE 16 — COLLABORATIVE RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT AG REEMENTS:

In 2011 and 2010, the Company earned $1.8 millramh$2.8 million, respectively from research revenard milestones. The Company
is now involved in additional feasibility and despment contracts related to its DPP® technologlye btal expended on R&D in 2011
and 2010, not including regulatory and QTDP, wagsreximately $3.1 million and $2.9 million, respeetly. During the fourth quarter
of 2010 the Company was awarded $1.47 million fiive Qualified Therapeutic Discovery Project gramiich reduced 2010 R&D
expenses to $1.4 million.

a. Oswaldo Cruz Foundation/Fiocruz:

During 2008, the Company signed four Agreements wie Bio-Manguinhos unit of the Oswaldo Cruz Faatiah of Brazil

(“FIOCRUZ") for the supply, license and transfer oértain products and related technologies from @wmpany to
FIOCRUZ. The agreements are for the following daesst products: i) DPP® HIV 1/2 Screen, ii) DPP®&H/2 Confirmatory,

iiiy DPP® Leptospirosis and iv) DPP® Leishmaniadibese Agreements provide for a staged technol@gster collaboration
pursuant to which FIOCRUZ will ultimately be abke fully manufacture the applicable product for dypp Brazil provided

certain minimum purchases of products and relavedponents have occurred.
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In 2011, FIOCRUZ informed the Company that ANVISAhg Brazilian regulatory agency) had approved theP®
Leishmaniasis, Syphilis Screen and Leptospirosiayssfor use in Brazil. This approval triggeredestone events of $305,000,
$100,000 and $100,000, respectively. In accordarntteguidance, management has concluded the FIQC&nts recorded
in 2011 met the definition of milestone events. Tempany earned an aggregate of $505,000 and $¥B20milestone
revenues from FIOCRUZ for the year ended Decembe@11 and 2010, respectively.

Under these contracts, there are additional r@skind purchase commitments due to the Companytloweemaining life of
the Agreement.

c. Infectious Disease Research Institute (IDRI) Agreement :

In April 2009, Chembio entered into a developmegteament for up to approximately $400,000 in cotinacwith the
development and initial supply of a low-cost, rapdint-of-care ("POC") test for infectious diseas@he agreement
contemplated a period of approximately two yeansliich the development activity is to be completed.

As of December 31, 2011, the Company received gneggte of $390,000 in research and developmenmh@atg from this
agreement. Future milestone payments of $10,00@@qvected over the next year and will be recognizieen the milestone is
met.

d. National Institutes of Health (NIH) Grant:

In June 2009, the Company received a $3 millionedtyear grant from the United States Nationalitutets of Health to
complete development of a test for Leptospiro§sants are invoiced after expenses are incurfElde Company earned, for
the years ended December 31, 2011 and 2010, $698r@D$656,000, respectively from this grant. Thenfany has earned an
aggregate of $2,389,000 from this grant from incepthrough December 31, 2011, of which $800,00% waid to sub-
contractors.

In March 2011, the Company received a $2.4 millibmee-year grant from the United States Nationatifutes of Health to
complete development of a test for Tuberculosisan® are invoiced after expenses are incurreg@ Gdmpany earned, for the
year ended December 31, 2011, $350,000, from tlsistgThe Company has earned $429,000 from thist gram inception
through December 31, 2011, of which $79,000 wad fmasub-contractors.

Governmental Regulation:

All of the Company’s existing and proposed diagimogiroducts are regulated by the United States Fand Drug
Administration (FDA), United States Department ajrisulture, certain state and local agencies, anddmparable regulatory
bodies in other countries. Most aspects of devalaq, production, and marketing, including prodiesting, authorizations to
market, labeling, promotion, manufacturing, andordckeeping are subject to review. After marketaqggproval has been
granted, Chembio must continue to comply with gowegntal regulations. Failure to comply with thesgulations can result in
significant penalties.
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Exhibit 21

List of Subsidiaries

Chembio Diagnostic Systems, Inc. (Delaware)




Exhibit 23.1
CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

Chembio Diagnostics, Inc.
Medford, New York

We hereby consent to the incorporationdfgrence in the Registration Statements on Form{i$e8333-69460, No. 333-141555 and No. 333-
151785) of our report dated March 8, 2012, retatmthe 2011 consolidated financial statementSh#mbio Diagnostics, Inc. appearing in this Fofim 1
K for the year ended December 31, 2011.

[sI BDO USA, LLP
BDO USA, LLP
Melville, New York

March 8, 2012




Exhibit 23.2
CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM
We hereby consent to the incorporationdfgrence in the Registration Statement No. 333-89Reégistration Statement No. 333-141555 and
Registration Statement No. 333-151785 on FormoBefir report dated March 3, 2011, relating to¢besolidated balance sheet of Chembio
Diagnostics, Inc. and Subsidiary as of Decembe2B810 amd the related consolidated statementserftipns, stockholder's equity and cash flowslie
year ended December 31, 2010 appearing in thisidimfReport on Form 10-K of Chembio Diagnostics, foc the year ended December 31, 2011.
ParenteBeard LLC

/s/ParenteBeard LLC

New York, New York
March 8, 2012




EXHIBIT 31.1

CERTIFICATION

I, Lawrence A. Siebert, certify that:
1. | have reviewed this Form 10-K of Chembio Diastics, Inc.;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does notain any untrue statement of a material fact oit torstate a material fact necessary to
make the statements made, in light of the circunt&ta under which such statements were made, ntgtadisg with respect to the period covered by this
report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statematd other financial information included in théport, fairly present in all material
respects the financial condition, results of operat and cash flows of the registrant as of, amgtfe periods presented in this report;

4, The registrant’s other certifying officer(s)cal are responsible for establishing and maintgmisclosure controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15&)}%(nd internal control over financial reportirag @efined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-
15(f)) for the registrant and have:

(a) Designed such disclosure controls and procsguarecaused such disclosure controls and procedarke designed under our supervisio
ensure that material information relating to thgistrant, including its consolidated subsidiarissmade known to us by others within those ent
particularly during the period in which this reparteing prepared;

(b) Designed such internal control over financigharting, or caused such internal control overrfaial reporting to be designed under
supervision, to provide reasonable assurance rieggtioe reliability of financial reporting and tipeeparation of financial statements for externappse
in accordance with generally accepted accountingiples;

(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registsamtisclosure controls and procedures and presentéhis report our conclusions about
effectiveness of the disclosure controls and proms] as of the end of the period covered by #psnt based on such evaluation; and

(d) Disclosed in this report any change in thesignt's internal control over financial reportitigat occurred during the registrathost rece
fiscal quarter (the registrastfourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annupbrg that has materially affected, or is reasopndikely to materially affec
the registrant’s internal control over financigboeting; and

5.  The registrant’s other certifying officer(sjcal have disclosed, based on our most recent atiratuof internal control over financial
reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and theitacmmmittee of the registrant’s board of direct(@spersons performing the equivalent functions):

(a) All significant deficiencies and material weakses in the design or operation of internal cootrer financial reporting which are reason:
likely to adversely affect the registrant’s abilttyrecord, process, summarize and report finamtiafmation; and

(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that invedvmanagement or other employees who have a sigmifiole in the registrant's internal cor
over financial reporting.

Date: March 8, 2012 /s/ Lawrence Ael@irt
Lawrence A. Siebert, Chief Executive Officer




EXHIBIT 31.2

CERTIFICATION

I, Richard J. Larkin, certify that:
1. I have reviewed this Form 10-K of Chembio Diastics, Inc.;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does notaio any untrue statement of a material fact oit torstate a material fact necessary to make the
statements made, in light of the circumstancesuwtiech such statements were made, not misleaditigrespect to the period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements$ adiner financial information included in this repdairly present in all material respects
financial condition, results of operations and cieWs of the registrant as of, and for, the pesipdesented in this report;

4, The registrang’ other certifying officer(s) and | are responsiftoleestablishing and maintaining disclosure cdstemd procedures (as definec
Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) ardriat control over financial reporting (as definedExchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for
the registrant and have:

(a) Designed such disclosure controls and procsdarecaused such disclosure controls and procsdarkee designed under our supervisio
ensure that material information relating to thgistant, including its consolidated subsidiarissmade known to us by others within those ent
particularly during the period in which this repartbeing prepared;

(b) Designed such internal control over financigharting, or caused such internal control overrfaial reporting to be designed under
supervision, to provide reasonable assurance rieggtioe reliability of financial reporting and tipeeparation of financial statements for externappse
in accordance with generally accepted accountinmgiples;

(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registsamtisclosure controls and procedures and presentéhis report our conclusions about
effectiveness of the disclosure controls and proms] as of the end of the period covered by #psnt based on such evaluation; and

(d) Disclosed in this report any change in thestgnt's internal control over financial reportitigat occurred during the registranthost recel
fiscal quarter (the registrastfourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annupbrg that has materially affected, or is reasopndikely to materially affec
the registrant’s internal control over financigboeting; and

5. The registrans other certifying officer(s) and | have disclosbdsed on our most recent evaluation of internatrobover financial reporting,
the registrar's auditors and the audit committee of the regi¢'s board of directors (or persons performing thewedent functions)

(a) All significant deficiencies and material weakses in the design or operation of internal cootrer financial reporting which are reason:
likely to adversely affect the registrant’s abilttyrecord, process, summarize and report finamtiafmation; and

(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that inedvmanagement or other employees who have a sagmifiole in the registrant's internal cor
over financial reporting.

Date: March 8, 2012 / Rchard J. Larkin
Richard J. Larkin, Chief Financial Officer




EXHIBIT 32

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Annual Report on Form 10tKe(“Report”) of Chembio Diagnostics, Inc. (the ‘t@pany”)for the year ended December 31, 2!
each of the undersigned Lawrence A. Siebert, thief(xecutive Officer of the Company, and Richard_drkin, the Chief Financial Officer of t
Company, hereby certifies pursuant to 18 U.S.Cti@ed 350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 @fSdrbane©xley Act of 2002, that, to the best
the undersigneds’ knowledge and belief:

(1) This Form 10-K for the year ended December2B81,1 fully complies with the requirements of sectid(a) or 15(d) of the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934; and

(2) The information contained in this Form 10-K fhe year ended December 31, 2011 fairly presén&| material respects, the financial
condition and results of operations of Chembio Ra@dics, Inc. for the periods presented therein.

Dated: March 8, 2012 Lisivrence A. Siebert
Lawrence A. Siebert
Chief Executive Officer

Dated: March 8, 2012 Rsthard J. Larkin
Richard J. Larkin
Chief Financial Officer




